1		1
2		
3		
4		
5		
6		
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13	CITY OF DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS	
14	BOPC VIRTUAL MEETING February, 18, 2021@ 3:00 P.M.	
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		



MS. WHITE: Good afternoon again and welcome to the Detroit Board of Police Commissioners meeting and please note the following reminders for virtual meetings on zoom.us. A message regarding zoom policies: attendees do not need to identify themselves unless they would like to make a comment. Attendees can phone in to the meeting and phone numbers will be masked by zoom.

If attendees join in by computer without a zoom account, they may be prompted for a name and email. The email is not visible to panelists or attendees. This is a prompt from zoom, not the city of Detroit. Additionally, the email address does not need to be your true email address. It can be none@none.com or anything similar will be fine for logging in.

A reminder about the meeting forum. As a reminder, please adhere to the Board's Bylaws and zoom's policies of using this forum appropriately. Failure to adhere to the policies will result in dismissal from the meeting. Accessing zoom platforms requires adherence to all policies.

Regarding BOPC contact information. To reach the Board's administrative office please dial (313) 596-1830, which is the administrative office and you may email the board of police commissioners at bopc@DetroitMi.gov. Regarding complaint investigations, to file a non-



criminal complaint; Please contact the office of the
 chief investigator. The 24-hour complaint line is (313)
 596-2499. The fax number is (313) 596-2482. And you may
 visit the board's website at detroitmi.gov/BOPC.

5 Regarding BOPC information resources, please again, 6 visit the city's website at detroitmi.gov/BOPC to find 7 the meeting calendar minutes, reports, presentations, 8 draft policy directives, video links and much more. You 9 may also join the email list for weekly agendas. Please 10 email the board at BOPC@Detroitmi.gov, or you may call 11 (313) 596-1830 and provide your email address to get the 12 draft agenda, which is distributed each Tuesday to some 13 360 people. You may also subscribe to GovDelivery where 14 there are over 5,800 people now receive BOPC news alerts 15 and draft agendas. Please also sign up on the 16 Detroitmi.gov homepage, and also find the BOPC Zoom link and other information is also posted on the board's 17 18 website as well as board's Facebook page.

Regarding public comments instructions, the virtual meeting will use a forum for public comments and you can sign up on Smartsheet without an email address. The board of police commissioners allows one hour from 3:00 to 4:00 PM for the public to request to speak during public comments or oral communications on the agenda. To make a request without Smartsheet, meeting participants may use



1 the "raise hand" icon on the website, or they may press
2 star nine (\*9) on the telephone.

3 Regarding important reminders for public comments. 4 Upon joining the meeting, participants will join the 5 meeting muted. Please do not start your video unless 6 invited to do so by the host. Video, images, or 7 unprotected speech deemed inappropriate by the Chair will 8 result in your dismissal from the meeting. And please 9 remember that you may complete the Smartsheet form. You 10 may use the Zoom controls on your computer screen "raise 11 hand," or you may dial star nine (\*9) from a mobile 12 device. You may use any one of these options by 4:00 PM 13 to be acknowledged for public comments.

And lastly, each speaker will have two minutes to speak during public comment. The BOPC staff will acknowledge each speaker. We ask that you remain respectful and professional and refrain from violating the Board's Bylaws, zoom's terms of services, and other relevant laws and ordinances, which are posted on all meeting access forums.

At this time, please silence your phones and other background sounds to prevent interrupting the meeting. And also honorable board and DPD executives and other panelists you do have the option to enable or disable your microphone or video at any time during the meeting.



And also please note honorable board you have received several email correspondences after distribution of your weekly packet, so please check your inbox for that

4 information.

1

2

3

5

# And now Chairperson Bell. Thanks you.

6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Ms. White. I apologize for 7 not being on the zoom, in terms of visuals, but I have an 8 on-going issue, but we're going to try to go forward in 9 terms of my cell phone. I'm going to call the meeting to order at this time. Before I called Chaplin Hudson for 10 invocation, I'd like to lift up retired Sergeant Paula 11 12 Gambrel who passed away. She formally worked at the 13 office of chief investigator. I had the opportunity to 14 work with her during that timeframe and also one of my 15 good friends Lieutenant Herman Perry was deceased this 16 week. So keep them in your prayers and support for their 17 family. Chaplin Hudson.

18 MS. WHITE: Chaplin Hudson, you're muted.

19 CHAPLAIN HUDSON: First of all, I would like to thank 20 you all for allowing me to be here. I want to honor our 21 chairperson Mr. Bell and all his staff. Before we go into 22 prayer this evening or this afternoon, God put on my 23 heart to pray for Mr. Bell. He said to pray for Mr. 24 Brown's healing, our Chief of Police. We're going to pray 25 for the State of Texas. We will continue to pray for the



1 continued love and expression that Detroit is showing. We're going to pray that the continuing of vaccine 2 distribution and COVID-19, those that are in the 3 hospitals, we've got to continue to pray for those that 4 5 are sick among us. Those that need healing, even in this zoom meeting. We're going to pray for the retired 6 7 sergeant and their family and Herman Perry. Those are the requests that I literally was listening to as we were 8 9 talking. We're going to continue to pray that this meeting and what you all are doing will be affective in 10 the community and in the City of Detroit. Let us touch 11 12 and agree together.

13 CHAPLAIN HUDSON: Father, in the name of Jesus, we 14 come to you this afternoon, first of all, asking for 15 forgiveness of our sins. We ask now God that we will not 16 pray a prayer just to be praying God. When we pray a prayer that will reach heaven. That is for us to 17 reverence who you are and what you have done in this 18 19 world and even in our life. We thank you for breath to breathe, God. We thank you for life and strength. We ask 20 God today that you will go into the hospitals and look 21 upon those that are sick. Look upon those even on this 2.2 23 zoom meeting, oh God. Some are dealing with things that we don't even know nothing about, loneliness, depression, 24 anxiety, frustration, oh God. But we ask God that you 25



will continue to move in our lives. Look at our
 community. Those that are battling outside in the cold
 weather, oh God. We ask that you will continue to give us
 a heart to reach those God.

CHAPLAIN HUDSON: We ask now, father, even in this 5 6 meeting, we bind up the retaliation that there will be no 7 animosity, no jealousy, no envy, and no strife. That 8 there will be peace in this meeting of God. And we pray 9 now God, the angel of wisdom will go into our hearts and 10 bring forth what you need and what you have a desire for this meeting. God, we thank you tonight, and even all 11 12 today, God, for what you're going to do in this place and 13 in our heart. We give you all the praise all the honor 14 and all the glory in the name of Jesus, we pray. Amen. 15 ALL: Amen.

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Chaplain Hudson, for 17 that very powerful and meaningful prayer. Because surely 18 we're standing in need of prayer for ourselves and about 19 family in our community. Thank you. Commissioners, the 20 next item would be introduced, Commissioners. As I 21 stated, I am Commissioner Willie Bell, District 4, and 22 Chair of the Board. Next would be Vice-Chair.

VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Good afternoon. Thank you, Chair
 Bell. Yes, good afternoon Board of Police Commissioners
 and staff, and the citizens of Detroit and the



courageous, the courageous men and women in blue. I am
 Commissioner Annie Holt, At-Large, Vice-Chair.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. District 1. 4 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Good afternoon, everyone. I am 5 Commissioner Brown and Mr. Chairman, I'll just take, take 6 a second to thank Wayne County sheriffs and Mildred Gaddis of 105.9 today. It was a collaboration when we 7 worked and passed out over 500 blankets to the homeless 8 in the downtown area at several different locations 9 10 today, and I also participated in a food bank over there on the Eastside. That was a marvelous job to see everyone 11 12 come together to help those that are struggling in need 13 and it's just a marvelous thing, and I think they should 14 be commended for it, and our DPDs MPOs officers were 15 there too helping with the traffic and making sure 16 everything was taken care of on the outside, where 17 everyone was still there working, and traveling around. 18 It was a great job for everyone coming together today. I 19 really appreciate it.

20 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. I appreciate that.21 District 2.

22 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Attorney Linda Bernard for 23 District 2. I too would commend the department for its 24 effort, actually the city and the Mayor's Office for its 25 efforts, with respect to the homeless population in



Detroit. I think you all know that they opened up the TCF center for homeless people to be there so that no one would be out overnight in the cold. So thank you to our entire community, and of course, to the police for the assistance that you are giving to those who are less fortunate, and don't have a roof over their head in this brutal weather. Thank you.

8 CHAIRPERSON BELL: District 3.

9 COMMISSIONER BURCH: District 3. Commissioner Shirley 10 Burch. I will hold my comments until the time that it is 11 a new business so we can move right along. But I am the 12 Commissioner for the 3rd District. Love and respect where 13 you live.

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. District 5.

15 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Commissioner Willie Burton 16 present.

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. District 6 is excused.18 District 7.

19 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Good afternoon, everyone. This 20 is police Commissioner, William M. Davis. Love where you 21 work. And also like to give a shout-out to the 22 outstanding neighborhood police officers, who were out 23 there shoveling people's snow, especially seniors over 24 here in the 7th District.

25 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Commissioners' At-



Page 10

1 Large, Commissioner Hernandez.

2 COM HERNANDEZ: Good afternoon. This is Hernandez, 3 At-Large, and I'd like to echo the comments that 4 Commissioner Davis shared. Just driving up and down the 5 city, all the great work that DPD has done and also the 6 Mayor's Office DPW and other areas as well with the snow 7 and the cold weather.

CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Commissioner Jones. 8 COMMISSIONER JONES: Good afternoon. This is 9 10 Commissioner Martin Jones, At-Large. Also giving our great DPD family a big hello and a big thank you as well 11 as the community members that are listening in to the 12 13 meeting today. Also, I would like to acknowledge 14 Commander Slappy of the 11th Precinct and our NPO 15 officers, Sergeant Kirkwood, and even Commander Hope for 16 their great, great and brilliant efforts to bring about 17 safety thought community by providing free gun locks and a free gun lock program so that our citizens can take 18 19 advantage of securing that weapons to help save our children's lives. Thank you. 20

21 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Commissioner Jones, for 22 making that announcement and also participating in that 23 program, which is very much needed, and last but not 24 least Commissioner Holley.

25 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'm



1 almost afraid to say anything because everybody doing so much talking here. I only have nothing else to say. 2 3 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Because everybody already made 4 announcements. 5 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Thank you. 6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Commissioner Holley, we appreciate you. The next item would be, Ms. White. I 7 assume we have a quorum. Is that correct? 8 9 MS. WHITE: Yes, Mr. Chair, you do have a quorum. CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Approval of the 10 February 18, 2021 agenda. 11 12 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: So moved. 13 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Second. 14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Properly moved and second. 15 Discussion? Those in favor. Aye. 16 ALL: Aye. Aye. CHAIRPERSON BELL: Those opposed? Motion carries. The 17 next item would be approved, I'm sorry, of the minutes 18 for February 11th, 2021. Are there any corrections? 19 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: So moved. 20 21 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Second. 2.2 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Any correction to the 23 minutes? CHAIRPERSON BELL: Properly moved and second. Those 2.4 25 in favor, Aye.



Page 12

1 ALL: Aye.

CHAIRPERSON BELL: Those opposed? Motion carries. 2 Thank you. Moving on to the next item would be, Ms. White 3 MS. WHITE: Through the Chair Honorable Board, the 4 Department of Innovation and Technology is monitoring and 5 recording the Board's meeting today. Our court reporter 6 is Mr. Don Handyside and the following Board staff 7 members are in attendance today, Mr. Robert Brown, 8 9 Administrative Specialist, Ms. Teresa Blossom, Community 10 Relations Coordinator, Ms. Jonya Underwood Administrative Assistant, Ms. Tiffany Stewart Investigator, Lieutenant 11 12 James Coles representing police HR and Police Recruitment Division, Interim Chief Investigator Lawrence Akbar, 13 14 Supervising Investigator Ansley Cromwell, Supervising 15 Investigator LiSonya Sloan, Senior Investigator Rosalia 16 Madrigal and also Assistant Corporation Counsel. Ericka Savage Whitley is on the line and that concludes the 17 staff introductions today, sir. 18

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Miss White. The next 20 item would be introduction of, I think that is Assistant 21 Chief David LeValley.

22 MS. WHITE: Yes, sir.

ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: Good afternoon to the Board.
Assistant Chief David LeValley, Office of Support
Operations. Thank you for having me.



1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Would you be so kind to 2 introduce any staff that you can see or hear or Ms. White 3 can assist you?

ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: Yes, sir. Assistant Chief Todd 4 5 Bettison is on the line Captain Aric Tosqui. I believe 6 NPO Coleman, Captain Tonya Leonard Gilbert, Captain Lena Lyondell, Captain Michael Parrish, Commander Kyra Joy 7 Hope, Commander Sonia Russell, Lieutenant Cheryl Stanley, 8 DPOA Vice-President Police Officer, Ron Thomas, Director 9 Chris Graveline, Lieutenant Coles from police recruiting, 10 Director Reid Branch-Wilson is on the line, Sergeant Glen 11 Anderson from police recruiting. And that's all I see. I 12 13 may have missed somebody, but it looks like, those are 14 the ones that I saw on the list. Thank you.

15 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I thank you for the names that 16 were called and perhaps the names that were not called. I 17 just want to recognize the DPD family in terms of the 18 executive and the teams throughout the City of Detroit 19 for the work that you've been engaging in. It had been mentioned, not just NPOs, but to those officers who 20 worked those three or four shifts in the clock. I just 21 want to thank you and your family for doing an 2.2 23 outstanding job. These are difficult times, the cold weather and the snow, but it's not unusual for DPD to 24 roll out each and every day. So thank you again, Deputy 25

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100

Chief LeValley, I'm sorry, Assistant Chief LeValley, and
 best regards to Chief Craig.

ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: Will do. Thank you, sir.
 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Any elected officials or
 representatives?

6 MS. WHITE: Through the Chair, Executive Director, 7 Patti Kukula of the Detroit Public Safety Foundation is 8 present in the meeting and Ms. Marie Overall of State 9 Representative Tyrone Carter's office is also present. 10 Thank you.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Marie Overall 12 representing State Representative Tyrone Carter, and 13 definitely Patty for the Public Safety Foundation. Thank 14 you. Your annual report was outstanding and other 15 activities that I see that you were involved in. I don't 16 know what we would do without your support. So thank you 17 for coming on the meeting and we appreciate you and could you convey that to your staff. We move on to my report. I 18 19 just want to share and recognize Ms. White, our Interim Board Secretary. Miss Blossom, community all-around 20 21 person, Mr. Brown, all-around person and Ms. Stewart, intern and Ms. Underwood for that work on the Board 2.2 23 staff. And also when we look at the office of the Chief Investigator Lawrence Akbar, Interim Chief Investigator 24 Ainsley Cromwell, Ms. Sloan, Madrigal, and others who I 25

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100

might not be able to call. I just want to acknowledge 1 your support. Without you, we could not be a Board. You 2 have to have a fantastic staff and you do an excellent 3 job. I know there's been some unfair criticism that came 4 5 up without any substance, but we have dealt with that and shared that with the Board. I hope you understand this is 6 a disgruntled individual. We went all out. I went 7 personally and I know DPD and all that, but we cannot 8 9 satisfy this person. But I just want to share that before we make statements about our staff, we should really look 10 into the matter before we make those types of statements 11 and concerns, but that matter has been represented. I 12 13 cannot say enough in terms of being the Chair of this 14 Board. As Chair, he has a responsibility to represent 15 this Board in terms of the day-to-day staff function and 16 overall. So I just want to say to you, let's be patient

17 with one another.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We heard the prayer and that is 19 our desire. I know people all over the country are looking at us in terms of, when I look at this lineup on 20 this call, we demand a great deal from our police 21 department in terms of DPD. In fact, our theme is 2.2 23 accountability to civilian oversight. So we have to have oversight and decorum ourselves in terms of how we've 24 conducted ourselves on these meetings and how we conduct 25



1 ourselves as commissioners because the eyes and ears are on this body. This Body has been around since 1974 and 2 the electric commission came about in 2014, as you well 3 know. So it's a great history, but the challenge is 4 before us. I'm looking for it. I chair on NACOLES, 5 National Association of Civilian Oversight of Law 6 Enforcement. As I mentioned last week, we receive a 7 \$100,000 grant. We're in the process of working with 8 President Biden and his team and Harris. And we're 9 looking forward to that overall through our summer and on 10 11 that note, so let's just try to carry on that note. We 12 move right into the Assistant the Chief's report. 13 Assistant Chief.

14 ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: All right. Yes, sir. Good 15 afternoon to the Board. I'm going to report first on 16 crime stats. Current, as of today. We have 31 homicides. 17 That's three less than we were at this point last year, 77 sexual assaults, which is 22 less than last year. 18 1,260 aggravated assaults, which is 233 more than last 19 year, 101 non-fatal shootings, which is 39, more than 20 last year, 178 robberies, which is 119 less than last 21 year in 28 carjackings, which is 5 more than last year. 2.2 23 Right now, our violent crime, part one violent crime is 6% higher than it was last year on this day. Burglaries 24 we're at 476, which is 301 less than last year. Larcenies 25



1 1,158, which is 617, less than last year, and 677 motor vehicle thefts, which is 144 less than last year. Our 2 3 total property part one crimes are down 31% and total part one crime is down 20% compared to last year. Our 4 priority one response time last week was 12 minutes and 5 35 seconds. Moving on to our current COVID situation is 6 that we have five members that have tested, that are 7 currently testing positive, and a total of 13 that are in 8 9 quarantine. That is the lowest number of positive tests 10 that we've had since March of last year since we actually started the COVID pandemic. So that's a good sign. We 11 12 have as of today, one, 137 members that have been 13 vaccinated, which is 39% of the department. We have 14 offered the vaccine and continue to offer the vaccine to 15 the entire police department if they so choose to receive 16 it. A question about facial recognition cases is going to 17 be addressed in the report from Captain Tosqui in a few moments. Arrest and citation data amid protests, there 18 19 have been no arrests in the recent weeks with regard to protests and also no citations. Critical incidents 20 21 impacting the department. Most recently there was a fatal accident and I'm pretty sure the Chief commented on that 2.2 already, but just to keep the Board up to date that 23 24 investigation is at the prosecutor's office. Our fatal squad is working with the prosecutor's office to supply 25



1 them with all of the information that they need in order to make a decision. A couple of other topics for the 2 Board. One is that the Chief recently presented awards to 3 5th Precinct officers and communications officers with 4 how well they handled a domestic violence situation that 5 involved an armed individual and children in the home. So 6 that was a very positive situation and a positive 7 outcome. Our community Comstat meetings, we started last 8 week with a new format, and each Precinct actually 2 9 Precincts at a time. I will have community Comstat 10 meetings once a month, and those are held on Tuesday and 11 12 Wednesday afternoons at 4 o'clock by zoom. So we just 13 started the new format last week and those seem to be 14 going well so far. Also, I know it was already briefly 15 mentioned in the beginning, but yesterday there was a 16 media release that was put out with regard to project 17 child safe which is a program to distribute gun locks at the Detroit police precincts, and that started yesterday. 18 19 And then with regard to some of the specific questions that were raised by the Board, there was a question about 20 loitering and panhandlers that was brought up at last 21 week's meeting. So there was a court ruling in 2013 that 2.2 23 made it so that begging it in and of itself was not against the law. And so when you see individuals that are 24 on the side of the road, they're holding a sign, asking 25



1 for donations that used to be against the law. It no longer is. I think the court ruled that that's part of a 2 person's free speech. They can stand there and hold a 3 sign if they so choose. So there is a city ordinance that 4 5 prohibits individuals from becoming aggressive in the way that they panhandle. So if somebody approaches a car and 6 the way the ordinance is worded is that if it would make 7 a reasonable person fearful for their safety. So if 8 somebody is banging on the window, if they're up next to 9 the car and being aggressive, that would be a violation 10 of the city ordinance. So we definitely would enforce 11 that ordinance, anytime that we make an observation of 12 13 such, or that we get a complaint that that's occurring. 14 But I think most of what we observed are individuals that 15 are standing on the side of the road with a sign.

16 ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: And so we don't have anything 17 in place right now that wouldn't be able to prohibit individuals from doing that. Walking in the streets where 18 19 sidewalks are provided, is a violation of the city ordinance. But officers use a lot of discretion in how 20 they enforce that ordinance. You know, there are certain 21 situations where walking in the street would just be 2.2 23 appropriate if the sidewalks aren't cleared or there aren't adequate sidewalks, even though they might be 24 provided. If they're covered in snow or there are other 25



1 situations that don't allow them to be on the sidewalk and somebody has to walk in the streets. So we try to be 2 real discretionary about how we enforce that ordinance. 3 Obviously, if somebody's walking in traffic and it's 4 becoming a safety concern, then we would enforce the 5 ordinance in that situation. But we don't want to over 6 police individuals by writing a bunch of tickets for 7 people that are walking in the street and they're not 8 committing any kind of other violation. 9

ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: The next question had to do 10 with an individual that made a presentation at the 4th 11 12 Precinct community relations meeting in, originally I was 13 told the name was Jim Collins, but that the individual's 14 name is actually Will Council and he is the community 15 outreach specialist in the public affairs office for the 16 FBI. And he gave a presentation to the 4th Precinct community relations on internet-related crime in 17 cybersecurity. And so I can definitely get his contact 18 19 information to Ms. White, and I'm sure we can work out a date if the Board wants to have a presentation made here, 20 I'm sure he would be agreeable to that. So I can pass 21 that information along. There was a question about the 2.2 23 release of the Nakia Wallace arrest video. At this time there's pending litigation with regard to that. And so 24 that video should be released once the litigation either 25



1 ends or was directed by the court to release it. There 2 was another question, an inquiry about carjackings and whether violent offenders are prosecuted and routed 3 4 through the criminal justice system appropriately. Yes is 5 the answer to that question. So every carjacking 6 individual that we identify we actually make a presentation through the FBI, to the US Attorney's Office 7 to make a determination whether or not they want to 8 charge the individuals in federal court because 9 carjacking is a federal offense. So some of our repeat 10 offenders or those that have a violent criminal history, 11 we prosecuted them in federal court where they probably 12 receive more severe sentences. And then all of the others 13 14 are presented to the Wayne County prosecutor's office and 15 we go through State court to prosecute them. And then the 16 last was information about human trafficking. With regard to that topic, our vice unit is actively addressing human 17 trafficking and they also do a number of community 18 19 outreach efforts to educate people on signs of human trafficking and what to look for. 20

ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: So I don't know if there were more specific questions about that. I'm sure there were. So in light of that, I can schedule our vice unit to make a more formal in-depth presentation on exactly what they do with regard to human trafficking. So I think that



concludes my portion of the report. I can take any
questions and then we also have a number of reports that
will be presented today. One on the ceasefire program
from Director Branch-Wilson and Commander Russell, and
then also a presentation from our Office of Internal and
External Relations from Captain Tonya Leonard-Gilbert,
and also an update on the facial recognition report from
Captain Tosqui. So I can take questions now if you want,
or I can hold them to the end.
COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.
COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Mr. Chairman.
COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Me too.
CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Just please speak up with
your name and I can, because I can't see you, you know
that. Okay. Thank you. Commissioner Davis.
COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes, good afternoon, sir. I was
wondering, could you give us some more information? I got
a report about a Detroit police department helicopter was
taken without authorization. Can you give us some more
information on it?
ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: I can give you some
information. The way that was reported is not true. The
helicopter was not taken without permission. We're doing
an investigation now to determine whether or not the



1 approval should have been granted. But the individual who used the helicopter for some training, with some 2 instrument training that my understanding required the 3 use of the vehicle for the training was a Lieutenant from 4 5 our air support unit, used the department helicopter for 6 some training that was approved. Part of the issue is that the timing of the approval - it was approved pre-7 COVID and then the training was put on hold. And then 8 9 when the training was brought back in place after things got under control with the pandemic the command granted 10 him the authorization to go ahead and go to the training 11 12 and use the department helicopter for part of the 13 training. So the way that the initial report was put out 14 indicated that the individual stole the helicopter. He 15 didn't steal the helicopter. He used the department's 16 helicopter to go to some approved training, but as I said, the training had been approved, I don't know, 8, 9 17 months ago. And then when the training was put back on 18 19 the command gave him the authorization to go ahead and attend the training. A little outside our normal approval 20 process, but he did have approval. He didn't just come in 21 and hopped in a helicopter and "steal it." 2.2

23 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: So it was a city-related

24 business that he was doing?

25 ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: Well, his training. I mean,



Page 24

1 we go to training all over the place, yes.

2 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay. So it wouldn't have been

3 cheaper for him just to drive the Pontiac?

4 ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: Well.

5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Sir, let's not get into that.

6 Excuse me, excuse me. Let's not get into that first

7 [28:15 inaudible]. And he gave you a response. Let's move

8 on. Thank you.

9 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Right.

10 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I just have a comment Chief -11 Assistant Chief LeValley. First of all, I want to thank 12 you because you answered every question that was raised 13 last week. You reminded us of the question and then you 14 had prepared with the response. I really appreciate that. 15 And I'm sure that my colleagues do as well. An excellent 16 report, just an excellent report. Thank you.

17 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Through the Chair.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Hope.

19 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: I'm going to lend my opportunity to 20 Commissioner Holley because it was he who asked about

21 human trafficking, Chair Bell. So thank you.

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Holley.

23 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. AC

24 LeValley, I thank you for the report and I really

25 appreciate what Commissioner Bernard said. Thank you for



that. My concern is the fact that if a person is hijacked it's supposed to be federal, then why do you have to make up your mind when you can run it through the court system, the lower court, rather than the federal court, either it is federal or it's not federal.

ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: Yes, sir. So we don't decide. 6 7 It's the US attorney's office. So we present all of the 8 cases, all carjacking cases, we present to the US 9 Attorney and then they make a determination whether or not they want to prosecute it in the federal court. And 10 so that determination is based on the individual's that 11 is based on the individual's history, criminal history, 12 13 and then the circumstances surrounding whether or not it qualifies for federal prosecution. So, anyone that they 14 15 reject, we make sure that those go to the Wayne County 16 prosecutor's office.

17 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Right. Thank you.

18 ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: Yes, sir.

19 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Mr. Chair.

20 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner? Yes.

21 COMMISSIONER BROWN: It is Commissioner Brown.

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

23 COMMISSIONER BROWN: AC, as my colleague stated, AC 24 LeValley, thank you for answering those questions. And 25 just my concern about the panhandling in the street. How



Page 26

1 are we going to proceed with it and how are we going to deal with it? Because they are walking in the street and 2 walking in places that don't have sidewalks and a lot of 3 4 the citizens are complaining about it. And I just want to 5 know how we're going to proceed to deal with it. Another 6 question I had for you was I saw something today. An officer had a young man handcuffed, standing outside of a 7 vehicle with no coat on and they were inside the vehicle, 8 9 I guess, conducting the investigation. Is that the 10 prudent thing to do during these winter months, you know, since we have this vortex that is coming down, but would 11 12 that be the prudent thing to do to shine a bad light on 13 the department to say like, if Detroit News was to ride 14 by and saw the same thing I saw? So, I mean, do we have a 15 policy and a procedure on the humane treatment of 16 prisoners? Because once he's handcuffed the law states that he is defenseless. Am I correct? 17 Well, we do have policies 18 ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: 19 and procedures on the treatment of individuals, but without knowing any of the details of that circumstance 20 or that specific incident, it's difficult for me to 21 answer the question as to whether or not that's 2.2

23 appropriate. So I think a lot of it would depend on what

24 led up to the detention of the individual, did the

25 individual shed his own coat? Did he come out without a



1	coat? How long did the officers hold them? Why was he	
2	being stopped? So, I mean, there's a lot of things that	
3	would go into making a determination as to the	
4	appropriateness of it that we just don't have available	
5	to us right here to be able to answer.	
6	COMMISSIONER BROWN: Okay. So would it be possible	
7	for us to just send out something reminding us that the	
8	humane treatment of prisoners, while they are in our	
9	custody?	
10	ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: Absolutely.	
11	COMMISSIONER BROWN: All right. Thank you, sir.	
12	Appreciate it.	
13	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Chair it's Commissioner	
14	Burch.	
15	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes ma'am.	
16	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes. So I just wanted to speak a	
17	moment to AC LeValley. I don't know if everything's in	
18	your area because you are the assistant chief.	
19	Commissioner Holley and I have a concern about far as	
20	recruiting. Okay. So if people are recruiting, I thought	
21	of the idea of why not utilize chaplains to work with the	
22	officers when a person decides they don't want to no	
23	longer be in the training. So we never did get back. At	
24	least I didn't get back in a positive answer regarding	
25	using the chaplains in the training or the assistance of	



1 securing people to become police officers. And then the other question regarding people walking in the streets, 2 kids have been, that's a fad. Kids have been walking in 3 the street, regardless if there's a sidewalk or not. To 4 5 me, that's not so important. I would say because these 6 people, the way they drive, you're putting your own life 7 in jeopardy, but it's something more important because I feel that chaplains play a very important role. Like 8 Chaplain Hudson did a beautiful prayer today. So I 9 recommended through a program which I'll share later, but 10 11 Commissioner Bell knows about it and Commissioner William 12 knows about it, that we need to have everybody involved, 13 AC LeValley with the church, with the chaplains, with the 14 police, and with the citizens. We have to stop being so 15 separated serving. And when a person has an idea, like 16 I've shared it with Commander Hope, we should go forward with these ideas so we can have better solutions. Do you 17 see what I'm saying, sir? 18

19 ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: Yes. Ma'am.

20 COMMISSIONER BURCH: How do you feel about chaplains 21 working with the recruiters that are trying to get people 22 to become police officers?

ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: I think it's a great idea. I'm sure they've shed a lot of valuable insights into what's going on and it makes perfect sense to me.



Page 29

1 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Okay, sir. Thank you. We know 2 it's a good idea. I'm saying move forward in it because of what I found out too and I'm sure every commissioner 3 knows this, chaplains received no stipend, and they 4 5 receive no pay. Fine, I understand people volunteering, but because I listened to that movie, the Black Church. 6 It shows the importance of chaplains, even back when we 7 were in slavery, but it's a different slavery now. I'm 8 9 saying that why not pay a stipend to the chaplains. I've spoken to Patti Kukula, you're on the line, Patti, that 10 11 there should be a way that even if we address this to the 12 churches, it could be out of their ties and their 13 offering. I know Mr. Bell, hold because I didn't say 14 anything in the beginning when everybody commented about 15 what they're doing in their precincts. I thank 16 Commissioner Martin and Ms. Holt, but we have a program 17 going where the churches are involved, the police involved and the citizens addressing the needs of our 18 19 seniors that's in-home and can't get out. So I'm the type of person we talk to but move in action. So I'm waiting 20 for Commander Hope to get back with me on something we're 21 supposed to do next week to hopefully get this out in the 2.2 23 community with every commissioner doing the same thing. We can't be divided, sir. We need to unite when they're 24 good ideas, work on them together. Do you understand 25



Page 30

1 where I'm coming from AC?

2 ASST. CHIEF LEVALLEY: Yes, ma'am.

3 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Well, I want to see some action 4 from my other commissioners and Reverend Holley. I love 5 you.

6 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I love you, I love you.

7 COMMISSIONER JONES: Thank you.

8 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: You have my support. Anything 9 you want me to do.

10 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Okay. Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON BELL: Any other question for AC. Thank 11 12 you, sir. We appreciate you. And as they stated, you 13 responded in a timely manner to those concerns. The issue 14 about the Chaplain Corps, I think that's a matter of 15 Chief Craig to weigh in on and he can get with the 16 chaplain leadership because we have over 100 chaplains 17 and now and so they can entertain any area or what they 18 endeavors are. Okay.

19 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I appreciate that. I'll look to
20 hear from the Chief. He can call me personally.

CHAIRPERSON BELL: Well, I won't get into that, but
 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I know, I know. But Chief Greg,
 you hear me, call Shirley.

CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay, call Shirley. Thank you. Wemove on to Ceasefire, Director.



Page 31

1 MS. WHITE: Mr. Chair, if I may Captain Aric Tosqui is also on the line as part of the presentation on DPD's 2 3 annual facial recognition report. CHAIRPERSON BELL: I don't see that on our schedule 4 5 agenda. 6 MS. WHITE: That was part of the Chief's presentation or the Chief's report out. 7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay, yes ma'am, go ahead. I'm 8 9 sorry. Go ahead. MS. WHITE: Yes, sir. Captain Tosqui? 10 11 CAPTAIN TOSQUI: Thank you. Aric Tosqui, Captain, 12 Commanding Officer of the Crime Intelligence Unit. Through the Chair, the annual facial recognition report 13 14 was prepared and provided to the Board so I will go over 15 that, and there were some questions provided to me 16 through the department that I will answer and then take any questions you have if that works for you. 17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, sir. 18 19 CAPTAIN TOSQUI: In 2020 there were 129 searches conducted using facial recognition technology and that 20 those were connected to 117 cases. In cases where a 21 possible match or possible lead was found, there were 82 22 23 arrests identified. Figure 1 in your report shows the count of crimes. There's approximately 56% of the crimes 24 25 were appravated assault. Approximately 30% were for



robbery, 10.5% for murder. 1.8% for criminal sexual 1 conduct. 0.9% for home invasion one and 0.9% was for a 2 3 threat against the police where an individual posted on 4 social media that he was going to shoot up the 2nd 5 Precinct. Figure 2 is about the number of possible 6 matches or leads that are resulting from the 7 investigation. In 2020, there were 65.1 possible leads and 34.9 where there was no match at all. Figure 3 8 9 includes the demographics of the pro photos used. The race demographic 100% were black. And in the gender 10 demographic 4.7% were female with the remaining 95.3% 11 12 were male. Figure 4 shows the status of the cases that 13 were connected to searches. Out of the possible matches, 14 29.7% were inactive as of January 27th when we compiled 15 the data, 32.4% were active and 37.8% were cleared. In 16 cases where there are no matches, 44.2% were inactive. 27.9% were active, and 27.9% were cleared. Figure 5 shows 17 the cases with, and without arrests that were connected 18 19 to searches using facial recognition. And the data is accurate as of January 27th where there was a possible 20 match or possible lead. 52.7% had no arrest associated. 21 47.3% had an arrest associated and where there are no 2.2 23 matches, 62.8% had no arrests associated and 37.2% had an arrest associated. Moving on to the specific questions 24 25 provided by the Board. Defining searches conducted versus



Page 33

1 cases conducted are they're mutually exclusive. And the answer to this is that there's not a one-to-one 2 relationship. The number of cases that were connected to 3 facial recognition searches was 117 as I reported just 4 now. However, the search is conducted is greater due to 5 multiple suspects' search for any particular case. 6 Documenting the source of facial recognition analysis, 7 the questions where please share more information 8 9 regarding project Green Light cases and median days closed inactive, close warrant regarding case status. 10 11 CAPTAIN TOSQUI: This answer will require a little 12 bit more time to investigate. We got these questions 13 recently. We'll get back to the Board with the response. 14 And we will also work to include this into the 2021 final 15 report moving forward. There's a question about the 16 location of the cases that were involved. Unfortunately, we cannot provide this because this would be considered a 17 serious violation. There was a question regarding the 18 19 demographics of DPD employed facial recognition analysts. The current breakdown of DPD employed analysts who are 20 trained to be able to use facial recognition is as 21 follows: their role. One is an executive manager. There 2.2 23 are 42 crime analysts, ones and twos. There are 20 intelligence specialists and 5 that are sworn, staff. The 24 breakdown is 33 females and 35 males. Race/ethnicity 25



would be 5 that are identifying as Asian, 26 that are 1 identifying as black. One is identified as Hispanic and 2 36 identified as white. Additional questions were 3 provided. Is this report only counting for violent crime? 4 5 According to the past reports, there was one arson, one damage to property report, and 3 miscellaneous reports 6 that were within the data collection for the last year. 7 The database that captures the information used to 8 develop both the weekly and the final report are 9 10 frequently used for technical errors in reporting. When we prepared the final report to the Board there were some 11 12 corrections paid to the previously reported offenses, as 13 well as one report that was deleted due to being a 14 duplicate entry in our database. So the weekly report 15 comes out of the same database. Were there any policy 16 violations or disciplinary actions imposed based upon the use or misuse of technology? And there were no policy 17 violations from the misuse of the software in 2020. 18 19 CAPTAIN TOSQUI: Were there any requests from outside agencies? There were no requests from outside agencies. 20 Were there any administrative policy changes, best 21



a full-time capacity to oversee the facial recognition

technology over the past year? The management team at the

Crime Intelligence Unit decided to assign an analyst and

practices, or lessons learned from the use of the

2.2

23

24

25

database. And this is part of what I just mentioned in 1 terms of going through and going through and ensuring 2 that we have the correct defense code listed. And 3 further, the department was asked to be included on 4 5 several panels. New stories that featured DPD as the 6 agency using facial recognition software and the strongest policies in the country. Was there any 7 information or were there any prosecutions or convictions 8 based on resulting from facial recognition use? That is 9 not a metric that we track in terms of prosecutions or 10 convictions. And then there were three more. The entire 11 12 report includes all searches conducted using facial 13 recognition, technology, or request made from January 1st 14 to December 31st, 2020, and that's accurate. Figure 4 and 15 figure 5 indicate the date of January 27th. The answer 16 for both of these is the same. In these figures, the timeline is consistent with January 1st to December 31st. 17 However, the data published in this report was finalized 18 19 on January 27th and therefore was accurate as of that date versus a status that it might have had. For example, 20 on December 31st, it may have had a different status on 21 that date. There could be additional updates to these 2.2 23 cases since then as all the cases are fluid. It could have changed the status even now from January 27th. And 24 25 that concludes the questions that were provided by the



Board. Through the Chair. I'm open for any questions that you may have.

3 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Through the Chair.

4 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: And then me.

5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

6 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Commissioner Chair Bell,

7 Commissioner Bernard.

8 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Speak up, go ahead.

VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Okay. I'll go. Okay. Commissioner 9 10 Holt. Thank you, Captain Tosqui. I am always entertained by your presentation as well as the materials that we 11 12 received in the packet. It amazes me how you can make a 13 presentation that's really powerful and show no expressions one way or the other. Okay. Now I have a 14 15 question and I don't even know if it's relevant, but I'm 16 going to try it anyway. In the case of facial 17 recognition, is data collected whereby we can determine if the cost of the technology is a positive because of 18 19 the savings in terms of not needing all of the officers to go through the, what do you call it, those books that 20 you have to go through when you're trying to identify an 21 individual? Is there a cost-saving for us as it relates 2.2 23 to the use of technology? Because it's supposed to, I believe eliminate the necessity crime books or something 24 25 where you take a Snapchat, I'm sorry.



1 COMMISSIONER JONES: Mugshot. VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Right, mugshot. Can we determine if 2 3 we are saving money in the use of facial technology 4 because we don't have to necessarily rely so heavily on 5 the mugshot process? 6 CAPTAIN TOSQUI: Through the Chair, Commissioner Holt, I will try to smile a bit more for you. 7 COMMISSIONER HOLT: You don't have to. 8 CAPTAIN TOSQUI: But it's arguable, although I don't 9 10 know if it's necessarily documented, but you would say that we have thousands or more than thousands of mugshots 11 12 and in any given situation, the technology expedites, the 13 search of those mugshots. Now for a detective to sit down 14 and look through those mugshots, or even a trained 15 analyst to go through page by page or even taken. If you 16 look at, for example, your zoom screen, you may have 46 17 pictures on your zoom screen. So you're looking at that the software accelerates that significantly and rates it. 18 19 Now that doesn't mean that the first 15 and the rating is going to be the one, but the likelihood that you can look 20 21 at a hundred pictures versus thousands over thousands of 22 pictures just by its nature is going to save some time. It also saves time because the analysts are doing in this 23 case, the trained analysts, whereas the detective is out 24 25 on the street, interviewing witnesses, doing the things



1 that detectives were supposed to be doing. And simultaneously at the same time, we're also putting these 2 3 images up using our media relations and putting it into the news, asking for the public self. So there's, it's a 4 multi-layered approach. Quantifiable, it's difficult to 5 say what that cost is. The way I look at it is that the 6 7 faster that we can solve the cases, the better opportunity it is to get a violent suspect off the street 8 and to provide the victim some kind of closure. 9 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Thank you, Captain Tosqui. Through 10 the Chair for those very tangible examples. 11 12 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I have a question. Captain, 13 the first question is you said that in the facial 14 recognition unit, there are 68 staff 33 females, 35 15 males, I mean, 68 staff. That's 68 people? 16 CAPTAIN TOSQUI: That's the number that is currently trained in the use of the software. So we've had 17 different analysts come in and go, some come on a hire. 18 We're looking to get the entire Crime Intelligence Unit 19 trained up. So COVID caused a problem with that. But we 20 21 figured a way to work with the FBI to get some more training, especially for our new hires. So we were asked 2.2 23 for the breakdown of the current staff that's trained in the use of the software. 24

25 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Can you also, perhaps at the



1 next meeting, give us the budgetary line item for the Crime Intelligence Unit, how much that costs overall? But 2 3 my comment, my other question to you, I know you don't 4 have that information right now is when you do this data 5 search this deep dive on anybody's face, that's on this 6 call right now, for example, and you determine that there 7 is no match with respect to the crime that was allegedly committed. What do you do with that data that you 8 9 collected, for example, Commissioner Holley or Linda Bernard, or anybody else? I mean, is that maintained by 10 11 you? I mean, is all the stuff that you did, what do you 12 do with it?

13 CAPTAIN TOSQUI: Through the Chair. If there's no 14 match, the pro photo is purged from the system. And so 15 assumingly the pro photo comes from a crime scene photo 16 or an evidentiary photo. So that would stay with the 17 detective in the case file. But it is purged through the 18 facial recognition system. So that Crime Intelligence 19 does not keep that photo at all.

20 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Okay. And when you do the 21 match of the picture with the person, you're pulling up 22 all the data on that person and their family?

23 CAPTAIN TOSQUI: Through the Chair, that's not24 accurate at all.

25 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: What they do. I'm sorry.



Page 40

1 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Through the Chair, I can 2 explain a little bit of the process. We take the pro 3 photo and that gets matched against mugshots. And if the analysts discover a match, then we investigate that 4 match. We'll look at that mugshot we'll look at other 5 6 mugshots of that person. We'll look at that person's social media. So all we're trying to determine is whether 7 8 or not that person in the pro photo matches the candidate that this software developed and then the analyst 9 corroborates. So it has nothing to do with the suspect's 10 family or anything like that. There may be some 11 12 corroborating things that the detective might do to look 13 and determine that the image that was provided by the 14 analyst is accurate. But I'm hoping that I'm answering 15 questioning. It has nothing to do with people's families 16 or anything like that. This is taking an image from a 17 crime scene or a pro photo that's identified by a victim and matching it against the database, the mugshots. 18 19 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: And you use that for the warrant, that information, for the warrant? 20 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Through the Chair, that is not 21 sufficient enough for a warrant at all. It is elite only. 2.2 23 The detective then has to go out and corroborate everything that's been done, which the detective is 24 probably doing anyway. The detective is probably out 25



there and he or she is working to develop a lead on his or her own. So what this does is it accelerates that process. And once they corroborate that, then they have to go through their different steps, whether it's to have a photo lineup its different things that they might have to do to develop that warrant before they go to the prosecutor's office.

8 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I see. That's an element of 9 the case, I assume that there was this match.

10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Bernard, I suggest 11 that you read the policy. We want to move on. Read the 12 policy. Ms. White.

13 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Chair Bell, Chair Bell. This is14 Vice-Chair Holt.

15 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes ma'am.

16 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: One last question to Captain Tosqui
17 as it relates to purging. And how often does that purging
18 happen, Captain Tosqui?

19CAPTAIN TOSQUI: Through the Chair. It's every time20there's no match. So everyone that I articulated that

21 there was no match that pro photo is purged.

22 COMMISSIONER JONES: Through the Chair.

23 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Chair.

24 COMMISSIONER JONES: Commissioner Jones,

25 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you, Captain Tosqui.



Page 42

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Jone

2 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Commissioner Jones then

3 Commissioner Burch.

4 COMMISSIONER JONES: Commissioner Burch can go first,5 it is okay.

6 COMMISSIONER BURCH: All right. Thank you.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Burch, go ahead. COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you, Commissioner. Mr. 8 9 Chair to the Captain. My question, could you bring back next week, some data regarding the Green Light, as far as 10 11 churches, how many churches actually have that Green 12 Light protection? Because as you know, I don't know how 13 old you are, but back in the day, the church was a place 14 that was never touched. It was respected, but I've 15 actually seen with my own eyes, a few churches with the 16 Green Lights. To me, that's a red signal control. Because we need to control the crime? So do you know offhand, how 17 18 many churches have the Green Light?

19 CAPTAIN TOSQUI: Through the Chair? I don't know, 20 offhand. We do provide the Board a list of every Green 21 Light location at the beginning of the month. However, I 22 can come back and provide you an accurate number of how 23 many of those locations are churches.

24 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I appreciate you bringing that 25 list. I just want to know about the churches. I know



about the list they send us. That's too many for my eyes
 to try and look through. But I thank you, Mr. Bell, and
 thank you, Captain.

4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Our staff will do that. We'll take 5 a look at the list and we report out to you as soon as 6 possible. Commission Jones.

7 COMMISSIONER JONES: Well, I like the commander part. 8 Captain Tosqui. I appreciate the report that you've 9 given. Basically, I want to make some clarification for our community members that are listening. With the 10 11 matches that you came up with for the FRT and one 12 category, they looked in where it says arrest in cases 13 where a possible match was found. I just want to make 14 sure that our public knows that those arrests probably 15 had to be predicated on a subsequent investigation that 16 you normally do before an arrest is actually made. Is 17 that correct?

CAPTAIN TOSQUI: Through the Chair, that's correct. 18 19 And also, if I didn't explain it before, I should explain it now that that arrest does not necessarily mean that 20 21 that suspect was a person in the pro photo. We're just linking the arrest to the cases where we did searches. 2.2 23 And then, like I mentioned that some of the cases had 24 matches and some didn't and some that didn't have matches did end up in arrest, but absolutely an excellent 25



Page 44

1 question, sir.

2 COMMISSIONER JONES: Thank you, sir.

3 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.

4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

5 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Question. To the gentlemen on 6 the line. Are you aware that Minnesota just recently 7 banned facial recognition? And are you aware that other 8 big cities also ban facial recognition?

9 CAPTAIN TOSQUI: Through the Chair, yes.

10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER BROWN: Through the Chair, this is
 Commissioner Brown.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We're going to entertain one more 14 question and then we're going to move on. Thank you. 15 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Yes. Hey captain Tosqui. Great 16 report. Good information. I appreciate it. So I just have a question. We come across the plans where, when you run 17 the searches and we do queries on individuals and their 18 19 names are into the system. Have we encountered any situations where this could count as any things that may 20 go on a criminal case behavior of any people that may be 21 potential applicants for the Detroit police department? 22 23 Has this ever come up anywhere that has been something that prevented people from being hired by the department? 24 25 Would this be considered like police contact, if you ran



a person's face through facial recognition and things
 like that?

CAPTAIN TOSQUI: Through the Chair, the best answer 3 to that is no, because there's no name associated with 4 5 the pro photo, right? So that's the whole reason for 6 using the system is that we lack the name and then the images that are extracted as candidates are mugshots and 7 it's any candidate for the Detroit Police Department 8 9 that's coming on would have to give notice that they had 10 been arrested in the past and have a mugshot that's still 11 in the system that's not expunged. So if there's anything 12 that would prevent that candidate from moving forward in 13 the system, it may be a previous violent felony as an 14 example, but there's no name attached unless that 15 candidate is identified as the suspect in the pro photo. 16 And if that's the case then that name would be attached to the case, should a warrant be issued, and then that 17 18 person goes to trial.

19 COMMISSIONER BROWN: All right. Thanks, man.

20 Appreciate it.

21 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Captain. Thank you, 22 Captain Tosqui. This was part of the Chief's report out, 23 it's not added to the agenda. This is part of the Chief's 24 report to cover a very, very important subject matter, as 25 you can see how you have responded to the Q&A. I want to



thank the Captain. We can move on to Ceasefire, Director Reid Branche-Wilson.

1

2

MR. BRANCHE-WILSON: Hello everyone. My name is Reid,
yes, trying to, yes, you can see me. Excellent. So Reid
Branche-Wilson. I'm the Director of Administrative
Operations. I'm here today with Commander Russell,
Commander.

8 COMMANDER RUSSELL: Commander Sonia Russell, Special9 Services. Good afternoon, Board.

10 MR. BRANCHE-WILSON: Oh, sorry, Commissioner. So we 11 are here today to talk about a ceasefire. Ceasefire 12 Detroit is really the cornerstone of our focus deterrent 13 models. It is a violence reduction program aimed at the 14 gang and group-related gun violence.

15 It's a partnership and Commander's going to talk 16 more about this, but it's a partnership with other law enforcement agencies and a wide range of community 17 partners. And I like to think of ceasefire as - it's a 18 19 promise with a coin, right? So, one side of the coin is that we'll promise any individual who is in a group or 20 21 gang, that if they want to leave that group or gang, we will provide them the services to help them leave that 2.2 23 life. Now, on the other side of the coin, if they say, no, I'd like to continue down this path, then we promise 24 to enforce the law to the best of our ability. And so 25



1 it's really that balanced approach of enforcement and services and outreaching. Commander's going to talk about 2 both of those in a little bit more depth. Before that 3 though, I just wanted to highlight how we've really 4 expanded to be city-wide since we first refreshed the 5 program in 2015. Initially, we were in 5 and 9, and then 6 in 2016, moved to Westside precincts. And then this 7 January really end of December, we moved to the 3rd 8 Precinct, which was the final precinct. And then now our 9 city-wide. So I'm going to hand it off to Commander 10 11 Russell now to talk a little bit about more about the enforcement side of the coin. Commander. 12

13 COMMANDER RUSSELL: That Ceasefire enforcement 14 ensures that groups who commit gun violence receive 15 special attention from law enforcement. You know, this is 16 a coordinated effort between DPD local, State, and federal law enforcement, prosecutors, and of course, the 17 Michigan Department of Corrections. The DPD strategy of 18 19 targeted enforcement is that we monitor all gun violence 20 and weapon offenses involving a group nexus. We have weekly meetings with our precinct ceasefire enforcement 21 units, of course, our gang intelligence team. And 2.2 23 basically what we do is we assess every firearm incident 24 for a group nexus. We are responsible for developing community outreach events and call-ins. Some of the 25



1 community outreach events, just to name a few have been 2 peace walks, areas of hotspots. It could be a barbershop 3 with frequent young individuals where we give out literature about the ceasefire program. And that's a way 4 5 to kind of prevent retaliation. We've done diaper 6 giveaways, assisting and partnering with the MPOs, of course at our local precincts, and of course, food 7 distribution. Service and outreach connect at-risk 8 individuals with social services and bridge a gap between 9 law enforcement and the community. Our responsibilities 10 include responding at the scenes of support victims of 11 12 violence, the community, and law enforcement. And so 13 sometimes the ceasefire outreach team can respond to the 14 hospital, and or the after shooting scene. And when they 15 arrive at those scenes, they basically provide counseling 16 and support to the victims and or the family members. And 17 they kind of serve as a peacekeeper between law enforcement and the community because sometimes crime 18 19 scenes get a little excited. We also conduct custom notifications with the department for individuals 20 21 involved in crimes and gun violence and a custom notification could basically be performed with either the 2.2 23 commander, the captain, or the lieutenant of that particular precinct along with the outreach team. 24 COMMANDER RUSSELL: And so the outreach team has a 25



1 team leader. It has a faith-based coordinator and it has a team member for that particular precinct of occurrence 2 in that area who is familiar with that community. And 3 basically what they do is two things. It's just like 4 Director Wilson talked about, you know, the first thing 5 6 we do is to say, Hey, you know, we know that you are an 7 affiliate or we know that you are somebody that's been involved with gun violence and the first thing is, we 8 9 want to help you, okay. How are we going to help you? Well, we're going to help you with job training, job 10 11 placement, emergency assistance, clearing your driver's 12 license. It could be removing tattoos. It could be legal 13 aid relocation out of town and just maybe getting your 14 GED or just emergency housing. And then again, as 15 Director Reid Wilson also said, if you don't want to, and 16 you continue to go down a path of gun violence, then 17 we're going to engage you. And with that being said Director Reid has some statistical data. 18

MR. BRANCHE-WILSON: Yes. So I'm just going to talk a little bit about what we did in 2020, and just want to highlight that honestly these numbers are just a credit to the Ceasefire enforcement teams and the outreach teams led by Director Cheryl Jones, who, you know, 2020 had a lot in store for us that we weren't ready for yet the ceasefire team really kept doing their work. So over 400



1 custom notifications were provided before the COVID pandemic. We had 36 individuals attended the call in and 2 given the economic effects of the COVID pandemic, I also 3 want to highlight that 41 individuals obtained new 4 employment and 14 individuals received temporary or 5 permanent housing assistance. On the enforcement side, 6 7 there were over - well, no, there were exactly 7,250 firearms recovered and two gangs, federally indicted. And 8 we all know that 2020 did see an increase in gun 9 violence. But the one thing I'd like to say in 10 11 Ceasefire's efforts is that the percent of gang or group-12 related violence actually decreased precipitously. So 13 comparing 2020 to 2018, we saw a 9 percentage point 14 decrease in the percent of basic shootings that were gang 15 or group related. And we just wanted to take a minute to 16 highlight one of our particular programs under Detroit youth violence prevention the brotherhood and sisterhood. 17 And I'm going to swing it back to Commander to talk a 18 19 little bit about the brotherhood and sisterhood. 20 COMMANDER RUSSELL: So the brotherhood and sisterhood is a program targeted for our young adults' ages 14 21 through 18 years of age. And it's basically to provide 2.2 23 positive supportive mentorships or Detroit teams. The

24 program includes weekly discussion sessions with officers

and community mentors. Some are development and



employment, and the course of city-wide youth summit. 1 Some are youth summits in the past have consisted of, you 2 know, helping high schoolers, you know with financial 3 aid. It could be financial planning, how to set up a bank 4 5 account things they need to advance as a young adult. We also have educational programs, mentoring sessions, we've 6 done food distribution PPE distribution. We've been 7 attending proms for high school, graduating high school 8 seniors. We've even bought things for people who need 9 them for a primer and or graduation. And we've also 10 helped young adults obtain scholarships for college with 11 12 the program. So it's been really beneficial. Currently, 13 the brotherhood and sisterhood is the 6 high school 14 within the City of Detroit that would be Denby Osborne, 15 East English Village, Pershing, Cody, and Henry Ford High 16 School. So how are the kids selected? Well, the kids are selected by the school principals and or deans within 17 those particular high schools. These kids are a mixture 18 19 of what we like to call leaders and challengers and which they are can learn from each other by being a good 20 mixture of all different types of children that's in the 21 22 program.

COMMANDER RUSSELL: So some of our people who have
helped benefit the brotherhood and sisterhood, of course,
that the Detroit Lions have been a great partner with



Page 52

1 this program. They attended one of our circle events with the brotherhood and the outreach team and officers in 2 3 which they discuss the effects of trauma and gun violence while growing up in an inner-city across the country. And 4 5 then of course you see the trauma intervention circle. And what that is basically, it's a debriefing of 6 7 counseling and services to members who lost a participant or the brotherhood and our sisterhood. So for instance, 8 9 we had somebody who participated in a program, a brotherhood program, and lost his life to gun violence, 10 or just lost his life in general. This is a debriefing 11 for the kids to follow up and give them a chance to 12 express themselves. And in closing last but not least, I 13 14 want to share a success story of the program and which a 15 former member of the brotherhood who attended the Hearing for high school here in Detroit is now I'm happy to say 16 17 in the Detroit Police Academy. He is 19 years old, he is a black male, and I want to introduce him. He is student 18 police officer Tamari Harper. Tamari can you tell the 19 Board 20 21 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Bend down, tell him to bend 2.2 down. 23 COMMANDER RUSSELL: Tell the Board why you wanted to be a Detroit police officer? 24

25 MR. HARPER: Well, after my junior year of high



1 school at Henry Ford. Sorry, I'm a little nervous. I apologize. Well, during my junior year of high school at 2 3 Henry Ford, I just find the brotherhood program. I got to build a very strong bond with a few officers out of the 4 5 precinct. Do a few ride-a-longs and get a lot of great 6 advice from them, and I still communicate with them daily 7 and they helped me throughout my work with the process as well. 8

9 COMMANDER RUSSELL: I just wanted, through the Chair, 10 just wanted him to meet the Board, also the Board knows that Director Jones, the Ceasefire outreach team even AC 11 12 Bettison, and Commander Hope, have done a phenomenal job 13 with the program. And now myself and AC LeValley is 14 taking a lead. But, you know, they've done a phenomenal 15 job with bringing in people who want to be Detroit police 16 officers. So we are doing great with recruitment. And at 17 this time I take any questions or concerns the Board may 18 have.

19 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Through the Chair.

20 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Just pause one second, I think 21 that was one of the highlights to bring this young person 22 in the Academy to just acknowledge and appreciate. I 23 think it's a major step in life. So, that's a success. 24 Now open up to the floor.

25 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Chair.



Page 54

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes. Ma'am

7

2 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes. To the Chair and Commander 3 Russell, excellent, excellent report. I congratulate you 4 all on the work that you've done. I have several, just a 5 few questions to enhance your program. You mentioned the 6 schools that were involved in the ceasefire, right?

COMMANDER RUSSELL: Yes. Ma'am.

COMMISSIONER BURCH: Do you take the schools as young 8 9 as elementary, and that would be in the11th Precinct is 10 the Davidson Elementary School. Do you bring presentations to that age level and also middle school? 11 12 Because I think the younger that we get them to 13 understand violence is not what they should be involved 14 in. The younger, if you agree with that Commander 15 Russell, and you did mention Pershing High School. I'm 16 very glad that you've included that because our Commander 17 Slappy works with the students in Pershing, and I believe it's called a sisterhood or something that she works 18 with. So the more - I'm just a person working together. 19 And so I wanted to actually, this question, is your 20 program involved with the revolving door of the juvenile 21 22 system?

23 COMMANDER RUSSELL: So the program is not directly 24 involved with a revolving through, I'm sorry, through the 25 Chair. The program is not directly involved with the



Page 55

1 juvenile system. These kids, as I stated in the presentation are a mixture of leaders and challengers 2 that have been identified by the school principals. So we 3 have a relationship with director Jones does a great job 4 working with the high school principals and they make 5 those recommendations as to who those children should be 6 in the program. We're not looking for a program that's 7 all negative, we're looking for leaders and challengers 8 so they can grow and learn from each other. 9 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Are you saying it comes from the 10 principals themselves to come to you? 11 12 COMMANDER RUSSELL: So the principals and the deans 13 of the high schools make the recommendations for who should participate in the program. 14 15 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Okay. MR. BRANCHE-WILSON: And through the Chair, just to 16 17 build on Commander Russell's point, the brotherhood and sisterhood are about providing mentors and positive life 18

19 experiences. So it's absolutely not getting people any 20 criminal justice nexus involved or juvenile delinquency 21 things like that. If Commissioner Burch, that was your 22 question.

COMMISSIONER BURCH: That's pretty good, sir. But Mr.
Chair, one more. What about the issue of mental health?
Is that involved in your program to see if some mental



1 health issues might be coming up warranting this, have
2 you checked that Commander Russell?

3 COMMANDER RUSSELL: Through the Chair. So mental 4 health, and as you know, Commissioner Burch, I know that 5 you are probably very knowledgeable or heard about our CIT program, crisis intervention, training, and Director 6 7 Wilson and Captain Leonard-Gilbert, which - she's coming on next. They're kind of taking that lead as opposed to 8 that. She's also a mentor in the sisterhood and we've had 9 some children that may have had medication. But CIT is a 10 11 separate program that the department is working on. And it's a really huge program that we're implementing 12 13 currently in downtown and the 9th Precinct.

14 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you, ma'am. Thank you so 15 very much.

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Burch, there are 17 other programs that address elementary and middle 18 schools. There are a lot of other programs but not 19 Ceasefire. Thank you.

20 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you, Mr. Bell.

21 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am. Next speaker.

22 COMMISSIONER JONES: Commissioner Jones.

23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Jones.

24 COMMISSIONER JONES: Yes. I'd like to thank the 25 Commander and also, both the Commanders for their report



on this program for Ceasefire. I know a couple of members 1 2 of Ceasefire that do some of the home visitations and the mentorship and helping people or young people get out of 3 their current situations in a neighborhood. But 4 5 certainly, your report has offered a lot more in-depth 6 information about how far you will go to give a person a 7 second chance or another opportunity to come out of the life that they're in and they're headed to versus being 8 9 able to go through let's say like the Academy, like the young man that you bought before. And I definitely want 10 to tell him that I congratulate him. I thank him. I'm 11 12 proud of him for the effort that he's making to change 13 his life around because he's going to help them make some 14 other individuals just like him be able to come out of 15 this circumstance and show that they can make something 16 of themselves and be productive members of our society. 17 You did mention even housing, you mentioned helping to get them food. You mentioned help with clearing driver's 18 19 licenses. These have all been challenges that a number of these people have faced because I've talked to some 20 people about it, but they've been able to help or to get 21 help through your program, correct? 22

23 COMMANDER RUSSELL: Yes, sir. Through the Chair. 24 Absolutely. And that's the goal. Of course, we're always 25 going to be the police department, but part of being a



police department is to also offer rehabilitative 1 services to transform members back into our community. 2 COMMISSIONER JONES: Okay. Well, thank you for your 3 4 proactive response. 5 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair. 6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir. 7 COMMISSIONER BURTON: You know question for Commander Russell. You know, you mentioned that 41 individuals 8 9 through Ceasefire received employment. Was that employment at the rate of \$15 per hour? Here in the City 10 11 of Detroit, on the local and state, and federal levels, 12 we are all pushing for \$15 an hour to help lift families 13 up out of poverty. Once again, I want to thank you guys 14 for the work you guys are doing with Ceasefire, but we 15 want to know, are they receiving the rate of \$15 an hour 16 because that's what so many of our elected officials are 17 pushing on the ground level to help families up out of poverty to give them a living wage? 18 19 COMMANDER RUSSELL: Sir, I can look into that and get

20 back to you with that information. I am not aware if it's 21 \$15 an hour or not, but I can get the information and get 22 back to you, sir.

23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

24 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Hi, this is Linda Bernard,25 Commander. Thank you for your report. Just a couple of



1 really quick questions. How many people are involved in 2 Ceasefire, both from a department level, be they either 3 civilian or sworn?

COMMANDER RUSSELL: Through the Chair? So from a 4 5 department level, we have several mentors. We have several command officers. We have command officers that 6 are involved in the sisterhood. We have Captain Potts, we 7 have Commander Slappy. We have Captain Leonard-Gilbert, 8 9 we have Captain Blackwell, and we have Commander Hope. And that's just some of the executive team members. We 10 11 have sergeants. So the numbers are numerous as far as the 12 department side. But as it relates to the actual outreach 13 team, we have possibly 25 people that work on that team 14 that's out of the kindness of their heart, they go out and they do this. They're on call at night and they 15 16 respond when needed. And they've done a great job.

17 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Is your effort funded by the 18 foundation or directly by the department or is it done by 19 two federal grants and how much is it? I'm just

20 wondering?

21 COMMANDER RUSSELL: Director Wilson.

MR. BRANCHE-WILSON: Most of it is city funding, but we can give you a breakdown next week that should be pretty easy.

25 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you.



1 MR. BRANCHE-WILSON: I just was building off of what 2 Commander said earlier. I do want to highlight that 3 Ceasefire truly is a department-wide initiative. Like you 4 just can look through the roster and everyone's involved in some capacity. 5 6 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Okay. Thank you. 7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. We want to move on. I want to thank Ceasefire commander Russell and Director 8 9 Wilson. I want to say once they open it up, I would 10 encourage the commissioners to take part in that process. 11 It's opened to you. I have taken part in three and four. 12 This initiative is led by the Mayor of the City of 13 Detroit Mike Duggan and also Chief Craig. They are the 14 main focus speaker that kicked this off. So it's 15 something that's worthwhile. I just want to commend you 16 to continue to work even under these difficult times, but 17 what you're trying to impact and that young man, as Commission Jones said, that was over the top. Thank you. 18 19 COMMANDER RUSSELL: Thank you. CHAIRPERSON BELL: Let's move on. 20 21 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Bell, excuse me. Let's give 2.2 that young man, put him back on Commander Russell. Let's 23 give him a hand clap to encourage him. 24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We've got to move on



CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. We're moving on. Thank

25

Page 61

1 you.

2	MS. WHITE: Yes, we're enabling Captain Tonya
3	Lennard-Gilbert's microphone, Captain Gilbert, your
4	microphone is muted at this time. If staff co-hosts could
5	assist please, thank you.
б	CAPTAIN LEONARD-GILBERT: Thank you. Good afternoon.
7	Honorable Board. I am Captain Tanya Leonard-Gilbert.
8	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Captain.
9	CAPTAIN LEONARD-GILBERT: Good afternoon, sir. I am
10	Captain Tonya Leonard- Gilbert of the Office of Internal
11	External Relations. I'm here to present on our unit.
12	Office of External Relations is a vision that the Chief
13	had that he launched in October of 2020. Our unit is
14	comprised of two components, the internal relations side,
15	as well as the external relations side. On the internal
16	relations side of the house, we have peer support, DPDFIT
17	the committee on race and equality. And on the external
18	relations side of the house, we have procedural justice
19	and police legitimacy, and the mental health core
20	response partnership. Internally, the unit focuses on
21	providing support and resources for our members, making
22	sure they are mentally and physically, and emotionally
23	fit. Our peer support unit provides a listening ear to
24	members in need after traumatic events. Our DPDFIT
25	encourages all of its members to embark on a daily



1 wellness journey. And then our committee on race and 2 quality ensures that equal treatment for all within the 3 department, both sworn and non-sworn. Our peer supports unit helps guide support sworn and non-sworn members 4 5 through challenges they experienced in both professional and in their personal lives. And I'll highlight a few 6 7 things that we do. Peer support is available for our members 24 hours a day, 7-days a week. Our peer support 8 9 unit is happy to report that we are working on obtaining a new facility and are on target. We scheduled to be in 10 11 there by 2022, it'll be located at 13206 East Jefferson, 12 which is in the 5th Precinct. Peer support traditionally 13 contacted members that are quarantined or isolated that 14 have been impacted by COVID-19. We also provide 15 additional support to their immediate family members who 16 live in their household as well. Peer support assists 17 with families of fallen officers as family liaisons to assist and provide those resources and supports for those 18 19 members. They provide support and resources to our 20 members who are critically injured or ill as well and 21 conduct various incident stress debriefings. Just to name a few of the things that our peer support unit is 2.2 23 designed to do

24 CAPTAIN LEONARD-GILBERT: At DPDFIT empowers members 25 to be at their mental and physical best. Currently,



1 DPDFIT University has an advisory board that consists of 2 14 members, both sworn and non-sworn throughout the 3 entire Detroit police department. We are scheduled to have DPDFIT support liaisons housed in each command 4 5 within the Detroit Police Department that will coordinate with our DPDFIT coordinator housed here at the Office of 6 Internal External Relations. Some of the historical 7 events that DPDFIT University has participated in are 8 9 Baker to Vegas, the Detroit free press marathon, Detroit police field day, as well as several other fitness-themed 10 11 events. DPDFIT University encourages wellness through 12 physical fitness, nutrition, DPDFIT videos, mental 13 fitness, education, and training individual teams and 14 competitions and challenges as well as testimonies of 15 members, fitness and wellness journeys. Our last 16 committee under our internal relations side is the 17 committee on race and equality, which is an advisory committee to the Chief and a resource for all department 18 19 members, both sworn and non-sworn, or as a resource for members to voice their concerns regarding perceived 20 21 discriminatory treatment and or practice based on age, gender, gender identity, race, religion, national origin, 2.2 23 or sexual orientation. CORE's mission is to increase awareness, safeguard equality, and celebrate the strength 24 25 of diversity. Promote inclusiveness, provide a safe



haven, and encourage positive change within the Detroit
 Police Department under Chief Craig's leadership.

CAPTAIN LEONARD-GILBERT: On our external side of the 3 house, we have the Procedural Justice and Police 4 5 Legitimacy Unit, as well as the mental health co-response 6 partnership pilot. Externally the unit focuses on 7 bridging the gap, strengthening the relationships, and providing support and resources between the Detroit 8 Police Department and the community. Procedural justice 9 and police legitimacy facilitate courageous conversations 10 to foster mutual understanding. And we hope to strive to 11 12 repair, strengthen, and nourish relationships between the 13 Detroit Police Department and the community. Under the 14 procedural justice and police legitimacy side of the 15 house. We've had several community engagement 16 initiatives, which I'll talk to them all in just a 17 moment. Our mental health co-response partnership is a mental health co-response pilot program that is just 18 19 recently launched. It partners with the housing revitalization division, which is HRD and our Detroit 20 Wayne integrated health network, which is the DWIHN to 21 connect individuals suffering from mental health crises 2.2 23 to services that they need. Our mental health co-response pilot mental health diversion has a 3-pronged 24 intervention approach consisting of the crisis 25



Page 65

1 intervention team, which is the correspondent vehicle that pairs a behavioral health specialist with mental 2 health trained officer to co-respond to those non-violent 3 mental health police rounds that they are dispatched to. 4 5 We have the 911 integrated response that connects callers to behavioral health specialists embedded within the 911 6 call center to address underlying health needs as those 7 calls come in for service. And then lastly, the third 8 prong is the Detroit homeless outreach team known as HOT, 9 where we partnered the housing revitalization division 10 with members of the Detroit Police Department that either 11 12 is in the neighborhood police officers or in a patrol 13 function and with the Detroit WIHN integrated health 14 network. And the goal there is homelessness advocates and 15 behavioral health workers to connect the homeless to 16 services and resources and to try to put the sustainable 17 prong in place to assist them with all of their needs. CAPTAIN LEONARD-GILBERT: Lastly, our Procedural 18 19 Justice and Police Legitimacy Unit build strong relationships between the Detroit Police Department and 20 the community. We host police-community summits, which 21 are safe havens for citizens of Detroit and the 2.2 23 department members to acknowledge, evaluate problem-solve and repair the harm that has been done through a 24 restorative practice approach. Currently, we've had one 25



Page 66

1 police community summit that was launched out of the 8th Precinct. Historically we've had approximately 12 2 additional police community summits. This was an 3 initiative that started initially in the 5th precinct 4 5 under Commander Ewing and Captain Williams. The Chief decided to expand it and take a city-wide. And it's now 6 housed under the Office of Internal, External Relations. 7 When we had our first police-community summit in the 8th 8 9 Precinct, I'm happy to report that Commissioner Holt and Commissioner Brown attended the summit with us. The 10 police community summit also identifies as officers with 11 12 the highest number of citizen complaints to participate 13 within that Precinct has been selected. We work closely 14 with OCI, we're scheduled to launch in the 2nd, 3rd, and 15 12th Precincts this year in 2021. Unfortunately, due to 16 constraints with the pandemic and being mostly concerned 17 about our members, as well as the community's health and wellness, we had to postpone our complete community 18 19 summit because they're held in person, cannot really be, they're not effective over zoom. And one last thing to 20 mention our office of internal and external relations 21 plans to expand into each precinct, hopefully by the end 2.2 23 of the 4th quarter of 2022. The Office of Internal and External Relations is currently housed out of the 3rd 24 Precinct. We can be reached at (313) 596-5308. And our 25



email address is on the screen is the Office of InternalExternalRelations@Detroitmi.gov. We're happy to hear from
you and partner with anyone who would like to reach out
to us. And our mantra is, We are one, We are all the
essence of Detroit. We are all community. Thank you.
Through the Chair. I'll take any questions at this time.
CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Commissioners.

VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Yes. Through the Chair. Thank you, 8 9 Captain, for your presentation and your revisit of the 10 history of the program. As you noted Commissioner Brown and I attended the summit that was held at the 8th 11 12 Precinct and I believe it was Commissioner Brown who 13 suggested that NACOLES be made aware of this opportunity. 14 Now, you know, we're approaching, a maybe convention comes September - a NACOLES convention. Has there been 15 16 any dialogue between DPD and the leadership of NACOLES, whereby this will be one of the discussion items on their 17 18 aqenda

CAPTAIN LEONARD-GILBERT: Through the Chair,
Commissioner Holt. No, ma'am not at this time, but I will
through the Chair, through Assistant Chief Bettison and
the Chief, we will make that connection.

VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Thank you so much because we really Commissioner Brown, maybe I'm speaking for him. We became really excited about the opportunity and the obvious



1 learning the hands-on right there, learning that transpired between the civilians and the sworn officers 2 3 at that event. 4 CAPTAIN LEONARD-GILBERT: To the Chair. Yes ma'am. 5 Thank you. 6 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: You made an excellent report. 7 And I want to thank you very much. It was very clear. I 8 mean, it's easy to understand and easy to read, and easy 9 for us to share with the community. Thank you very, very 10 much. 11 CAPTAIN LEONARD-GILBERT: Through the Chair, thank 12 you, ma'am. COMMISSIONER BERNARD: You're welcome. 13 14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Captain Gilbert COMMISSIONER BURCH: Through the Chair, I just want 15 16 to briefly share that there is such a need for a mental 17 health facility and I mean a state of the art. And so you're doing a very good job, but limited, and we are 18 19 working. There's a core group in the third district that working on trying to get that done. So we're going to 20 21 reach out to you naturally because you all are a part of 2.2 this facility. Very, very good report. Thank you, Mr. 23 Chair. 24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

25 CAPTAIN LEONARD-GILBERT: Thank you, ma'am.



1	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Thank you, Captain.
2	Outstanding, outstanding. Our next reporting out will be
3	towing. Mr. Johnson will be speaking on behalf of that.
4	MS. WHITE: Mr. Johnson.
5	MR. JOHNSON: Yes. Good afternoon.
б	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Good afternoon.
7	MR. JOHNSON: How is everybody? I hope you're having
8	a good day, and it's a pleasure to be here with you. Mr.
9	Chairman, I appreciate the opportunity to be here with
10	you. And before my remarks, I'd like to ask your
11	indulgence at a portion of the opportunity I'm being
12	given to speak. I'd like to yield some time to our legal
13	counsel and attorneys Tom Stiham and Dan McLean so that
14	they might talk to you from the legal side of what we're
15	going to present today. If that's okay.
16	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir. We're allotting about 15
17	minutes. So you would have to work that in. Of course, we
18	have, as you know, a long agenda. So we try to bring it
19	home and especially if you want to entertain questions,
20	but that questions are not in your time, right? Thank
21	you.
22	MR. JOHNSON: I think we can handle that. I'm going
23	to go off-screen, but you'll still be able to hear me
24	just so that I can read my prepared remarks. Thank you
25	again for the opportunity to make this presentation



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

23

24

before the Honorable Body and the Board of Police Commissioners. My name is Bertrand Johnson. I'm privileged to represent the Detroit Towing Association since 2019. And I will use a portion of the time allotted here, reserve the balance for our legal experts to weigh in. Since coming on board to represent this group of industry-leading professionals, I've undertaken a significant crash course in all things related to towing. I've learned a great deal about towing, its operations, the costs associated, and the businesses in our association. I will attest to you today and this Honorable Body that these experts are the cream of the crop in Detroit towing. Gone are the days of pay to play and corruption wants inherent in towing and not just in Detroit, by the way. What now remains is an outstanding group of towing experts who served the city of Detroit for decades on private property, impounds, and tows. But for the purposes of this conversation, police authorized towing. We're before you today to express our concerns with the proposed towing ordinance being offered by the council, President, Brenda Jones, and I've provided some written testimony for the commissioners previous to this meeting to review at your convenience, President Jones' efforts to regulate the towing industry in Detroit,

25 shouldn't be characterized as anything short of a sincere



1 effort at alignment across the industry. We consider 2 ourselves fortunate in as much, we were at one time, invited to the table to discuss what a new towing 3 ordinance would look like. After our initial discussions 4 on the subject President Jones ordered all interested 5 parties, including Captain Michael Perez, the tow 6 7 monitor, the city law department, her staff assistants, and the DTA, including our legal counsel, Dan McLean, and 8 then attorney Tom Stiham and the towers into a workgroup 9 10 aimed at settling our differences. At the repeated requests of Captain Parrish and attorneys, Chuck Raimi, 11 12 and Tonya Long from the law department, we reluctantly 13 agreed to turn over a document describing an initial list 14 of problems we saw in the ordinance proposal, including a 15 new licensing provision. Our paranoia proved to be 16 accurate. That list was used to shut us out of all 17 meetings. To date, and although President Jones ordered us into a workgroup, subsequent to her initial meeting, 18 19 my attempts to get us together have been met with a consistent, no. I've since spoken with President Jones's 20 21 office and I'm relying on her leadership to once again direct the parties to meet with us as was her wish at the 2.2 23 beginning of the discussions. To that end, I do remain 24 hopeful, but if the ordinance is adopted, the Board of Police Commissioners will see its authority to resolve 25



1 disputes between the towers and DPD eliminated, as that power will transfer to the Chief of Police. To be clear, 2 we have no ax to grind with Chief Craig. However, it 3 would be wholly inequitable to see the power to act as 4 judge, jury, and executioner in settling grievances to 5 the Chief of Police instead of the Board of Police 6 Commissioners. After all, we're supposed to be in a 7 partnership with DPD yet, the department is fast becoming 8 a competitor whose business practices and constraints 9 under a new ordinance threaten our very survival. We are 10 11 far more comfortable with the BOPC shouldering the 12 responsibility of dealing with police authorized towing 13 as promulgated under the current rules. If there is to be 14 more power transferred between the entities, we believe 15 the Board of Police Commissioners should have more 16 authority over towing, but it's clear to me that this 17 Body isn't being consulted either as to what powers will be stripped away by a new towing ordinance. There are 18 19 several extremely troublesome items in the current draft of the ordinance the DTA has concerns over. 20

21 MR. JOHNSON: I won't belabor them all, but I'll 22 present just a quick few. Foremost is the duplicative 23 licensing provision. And if adopted and then somehow 24 revoked could borrow a tower from operating in all manner 25 of towing in the City of Detroit and perhaps the State of



1 Michigan for the DTA. That's a poison pill. Presently, all towers must be registered and licensed with the State 2 of Michigan at the commercial vehicle enforcement 3 division or CVED. That license when violated can be 4 revoked at any time. Detroit has relied on that licensure 5 for guite some time. We see no reason at the DTA for 6 change. Second is the idea that towing companies may be 7 held criminally liable for the inadvertent deliberate or 8 otherwise in the performance of duty actions of an 9 employee. That's a prejudicial and targeted way of going 10 after otherwise compliant companies. Don't get me wrong, 11 12 we do not support, I repeat, we do not support any 13 illegal activity on the part of anyone involved in 14 towing, whatsoever. And we're thankful I have purged that 15 behavior in Detroit, but we already have laws and rules 16 in place that police authorities can use to punish offenders. Third, is the theory that somehow DPD is more 17 able to operate efficiently in the towing industry than 18 19 are the industry-leading experts I represent? We routinely purchase more costly, higher quality equipment, 20 employ staff at much better wages and benefits, pay more 21 2.2 in both income and property taxes and fees. And do so 23 with absolutely no civil liability to the residents of this city, nor in the appropriation for our operations. 24 We've heard time and again, that at the heart of this new 25



1 proposed ordinance is the health, safety, and welfare of the residents of Detroit. I've yet to determine from my 2 3 read of the proposal where that can be seen. The DTA simply cannot stand by and watch our spoken partner 4 5 develop into an existential threat as a competitor by coopting our trade secrets and learning that the job at 6 such a significant cost to the residents of Detroit. 7 Fourth is the idea we have moving away from permits to 8 9 contracts, given the subjective nature of how a tower can be stripped of that contract and disempowered, and then 10 forced to wait until the next open contract period, which 11 12 could be at least five years. Again, without the right 13 impartial arbiter, DTA members could find themselves on 14 the outside of the bubble looking inward.

15 MR. JOHNSON: Lastly, I'll sum up my remarks by saying thank you to the police department for the way 16 it's handled the civil unrest that some were attempting 17 to unleash on Detroit this past summer as saw in other US 18 19 cities. There's a nexus here to police authorize towing. It's because Detroit has always been first in so many 20 categories, and first out that our Chief and our past 21 chiefs have had a blueprint for tamping down the acrimony 2.2 that has plagued other departments. The DTA sees 23 24 burdensome administrative fees, and the constant problems residents are faced with when trying to retrieve vehicles 25



1 from police lots as adding to the negative perception of 2 towers and the police department. When in all actuality, 3 it really doesn't have anything to do with DTA 4 membership. It is the reason that we're so thankful for 5 not having to collect those administrative fees anymore as a component part of towing fees. Citizens are finally 6 beginning to understand that the more burdensome portions 7 of towing aren't brought about by our towing companies 8 and with that Mr. Chairman, and with your permission 9 again, I'd like to introduce the DTAs legal counsel. We 10 have Dan McLean and we have attorney Tom Stiham present 11 12 and prepared to present on our behalf as well. Thank you 13 for your time.

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir. Thank you.

15 MR. MCLEAN: Good afternoon, Dan McLean on behalf of 16 the DTA. Now I work on behalf of the DTA, but I also do 17 work on behalf of tow companies around the State, and I can tell you without a doubt at the tow professionals of 18 19 the DTA, they are the best you're going to find it anywhere. They invest in the best equipment. They invest 20 in the best training. They know what they're doing, 21 they're safe, and they do it in a prompt manner. They 2.2 23 also understand what their role is. They are a partner with the department. On any given day, they are standing 24 alongside your officers working on a daily basis. Now 25



1 this ordinance, as it is, as a lawyer, I'm going to tell you, I'm going to be brief. I know that's going to cause 2 some eyes to roll. But as it's drafted, it has some real 3 problems. The licensing scheme that's provided in there 4 and the ordinance requirements, they're simply overly 5 broad. They go far beyond what is necessary. And frankly, 6 as it's drafted, it is duplicative of existing 7 regulations and laws that they're already in place. 8 Specifically, the State statute, which is in place 9 governance, the majority of what this is trying to 10 accomplish. It's simply trying to do the same thing 11 12 twice, which is the very definition of red tape, 13 burdensome, inexpensive for towers to now, all of a 14 sudden, comply with this and that. And there are two sets 15 of guidelines in processes that they now need to follow. 16 Further, there are already regulatory bodies here in 17 place that can do what this is trying to do. They've governed tow companies. They can hold them accountable if 18 19 they do the wrong thing and they should and frankly it can be as simple as picking up a phone to hold the tow 20 company accountable. 21

22 MR. MCLEAN: It's reporting them to the proper 23 appropriate Body and that Body does what it needs to do. 24 What I think is most concerning that's really struck us 25 is that our concern related to how this proposed



1 ordinance, appears to remove the authority of the Board 2 of Commissioners to serve as an arbiter of disputes. That is a role that the DTA has long welcomed. It's a role 3 that we understand that this body has a long history. 4 It's been a fair and clear direction to not only the 5 6 police towing professionals but also giving that direction to the department. We would prefer to see that 7 remain in the ordinance if it's going to go forward and 8 9 further, what concerns us as well is that it seems to remove entirely the permit process that's already in 10 place, that's been in place for a long time. That permit 11 12 process works. To remove it entirely and to shift over 13 now to a contract process, simply does not make sense. 14 It's a solution in search of a process. So I do want to 15 echo what Bert has already provided, that we really are 16 looking for an opportunity to sit down with the department and sit down with counsel to work with this 17 Body and along with any other interested individuals or 18 19 parties, to ensure that this ordinance, as it's proposed, if it's going to go forward, that is tailored in the 20 appropriate way. We simply need to know what issues are 21 in place, and then we can help find a solution that will 2.2 23 work. If there aren't any questions I do believe Tom Stiham might have a few things he would like to say as 24 well. But I want to thank this Body for the opportunity 25



Page 78

1 to present and to make known some of the issues that we
2 have with this proposal.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

4 MR. STIHAM: Through the Chair, if I may Mr. Bell.
5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir. Go ahead.

6 MR. STIHAM: I just have to highlight historically 7 for the commission rather than as Dan McLean said, currently the police authorized towers to operate on a 8 9 permit basis issued by this Body. And those permits were initially issued in 2011. They were renewed in 2016. They 10 each have a term of five years. So they're up for renewal 11 12 this coming June, I believe. And in 2017, I don't know if 13 any of the commissioners recall, but the corporation counsel, the prior corporation council, not Mr. Garcia 14 15 came before this Body and issued a memo to the chief of police and declared that all the towing permits were 16 17 unlawfully issued that were not proper. And that this Body did not have the authority to select or issue the 18 19 towing company permits. That was challenged in court, in federal court, by another towing company that's no longer 20 a police authorized tower and in 2018 the Honorable Linda 21 Parker in the US District court determined that the 2.2 towing permits were properly issued and that this Body, 23 or that the permits did comply with the charter and did 24 not violate State law or any city code. And that's 25



Page 79

1 currently what the towers right now, as we operate, we remain under this permit system, which has Dan highlight 2 gives, empowers this Body to d issue the discipline, and 3 here are the disputes related to police authorized 4 5 towing. Currently, as the tower as both Dan and Bert, 6 excuse me said, that they were searching for a voice to 7 continue our operation under the permit system. We have, as they've highlighted had some conversations with the 8 council. We recognize that this is part of the 9 legislative process, but this commission should recall 10 that the towers, the police authorized towers in Detroit 11 historically have always worked and participated and had 12 13 been a meaningful voice in the process way back from 2008 14 when there were first discussions involving creating the 15 towing rules, which culminated in the existing rules 16 being promulgated in 2010. We were part of that process, 17 we were part of the process of coming up when the city wanted to monetize towing in order to recoup some costs. 18 19 We worked with this Body back at that time only five members to come up with the city, to come up with the 20 imposition of the administration fee and throughout the 21 process at every turn, every legal challenge the towers 22 had worked with the police department and the city to 23 come up with a fair solution. We're simply asking again, 24 as we meander down this legislative process path that the 25



Page 80

towers have a meaningful voice and opportunity to 1 participate in coming to address this proposed ordinance. 2 So, Bert, I'll turn it back to you if there are any 3 4 questions. MR. JOHNSON: Mr. Chairman. 5 6 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Through the Chair. CHAIRPERSON BELL: Just pause for one second, just 7 pause for one second, please. Okay, that ends that part 8 of that. The Chair - we're going to entertain three or 9 four questions. This is going to take some time in terms 10 of research, in terms of these particular issues. I know 11 12 the cooperation council and Captain Parish has already 13 prepared a letter, but we will not deal with it on this 14 particular agenda item. So Commissioner, is that Holt? 15 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Yes, it is, and thank you, Chair 16 Bell. Okay. My question relates to the responses that you 17 received from DTA and I'm looking specifically at the document that you share with us on page 2 of 9 pages, and 18 19 I'm assuming that Mr. Johnson and Mr. McLean, and Mr. Stiham have this document as well, because I need to have 20 an understanding of one bullet item that's here as a 21 2.2 response. So do I need 23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: What is your question?

VICE-CHAIR HOLT: The item says again, bullet point
 under B, under item B other DPD enforcement actions



1 bullet point 1 2, 3, in 2020, an employee. No, that's not 2 it.

COMMISSIONER BURCH: Can we come back?
VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Yes. I'm sorry for the time waste
here. Here it is. Okay, well, go on and I'll come back.
I'm sorry.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: No, you can text your question to 8 Ms. White, and if we don't have an answer now, we can 9 look into that matter. We get an opportunity to respond 10 to the next question.

11 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Chair.

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes. Ma'am.

13 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I wanted to share myself and my 14 opinion, I'm looking at all of this from being the 15 perspective of a layman's term, that I'm not 16 understanding all of these things you're saying. All I 17 can say is that I do know Bertram. I've been knowing him for years. But my point is that when we come with all of 18 19 this information, it's so much to intake. And I'm speaking on behalf of the citizens that they may not know 20 21 what you're talking about - that we look for tow trucks 2.2 to be responsible like they treat the suburbs. If there's 23 an accident, do they clean up? And my associates have 24 experienced where tow trucks do not clean up the area after an accident. So I think this is where we would be 25



at an advantage to have a Board attorney to help us to digest all of this, what these lawyers are saying, not just hearing from Mr. Johnson and the two lawyers but we need legal opinion and authority to know what we're listening to and what we're going to vote on, Mr. Chair. That's just my opinion. Thank you.

7 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: This is Commission Holt again. I8 found the page to which I was trying to,

CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Holt, excuse me, 9 please. I can't see you, but be patient. The concerns of 10 Commissioner Burch are valid. The issue of clean-up is 11 not an issue, but that's why they're coming before you 12 13 presenting out. And then Captain Parrish also presented 14 out. We have to sort through with the corporation counsel 15 and highlight certain issues. We don't expect you to 16 digest all of this, this is information at this time to 17 give them the opportunity to express their concern. Commissioner Holt, could you make your point? 18

19 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Is this okay now for Chair Bell, 20 Commissioner Holt, page 4 of 9 the document that we 21 received from you. May I reference this item?

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am. What is your question? 23 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Well, it's page 4 of page 9, bullet 24 point 3 requiring tow companies to obtain department 25 approval prior to hooking up a vehicle in conjunction



Page 83

with a private property impound. What does that mean? And
 it's a response from DTA.

MR. JOHNSON: Mr. Chairman, through you to Vice-3 Chair, woman Holt, might I have our legal counsel, Dan 4 5 McLean, answer that question, please? 6 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Thank you so much. 7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. MR. MCLEAN: So what that's referring to is on a 8 9 private property impound, which is separate from a police-directed tow. This is simply a vehicle that was 10 parked in the wrong place of, of property owners said, 11 12 No, get it out of here. So the statute on point provides 13 the statute on point provides that yes, the towing 14 operator. So when they show up on the scene, they're 15 there at the direction of the property owner. The 16 property owner tells them, remove this vehicle, that tow 17 operator then contacts as a matter of law, has to contact 18 the police agency where that vehicle sitting. So they 19 contact them, notify them of what the license is, if they can get to the VIN, they identify it. They provide that 20 21 information to the police agency so that the police agency can check to make sure that that vehicle is not 2.2 23 identified as stolen. Obviously, if it's a stolen vehicle and it was parked there, it has to remain. They can't 24 touch it. We wait for the police to show up and do what 25



they need to do. After that notification is provided, then generally, that's the point when a vehicle can then be hooked up, which takes time if the vehicle owner shows up and says, No, I'm sorry, I'm here to move it, and they unhook it and they can remove their vehicle. But at that point, that's when it can be removed

7 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Through the Chair. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Mclean. You treat this situation as if the owner of 8 9 the violated space is present. What if this happens at a place where it's posted that this vehicle is subject to 10 be towed. So does this provision still prevail that the 11 12 tow company has to be identified by the department? MR. MCLEAN: Yes, absolutely. So in response to the 13 14 question, so here's what we have. In every single 15 business, no matter where they are in the State of 16 Michigan, if they have a prohibition about parking at any 17 point in their lot, they must put signage up identifying not only that, if you're unauthorized, she'll be removed, 18 19 but also if your vehicle is removed, this is who took it, and here's their phone number. So, you know exactly where 20 it's going. Now as to the notice provision, the tow 21 operator needs to call directly over to the police agency 2.2 23 notified them. And once the police agency returns and identifies that this vehicle is not a stolen vehicle, 24 25 then the property owner who wants it removed, then it can



be removed by the tow operator. Obviously, if the person does show up, they can say, no, I want my vehicle back and they have to unhook it. That's the existing law. The ordinance simply goes beyond that.

5 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman, I want to 6 7 respond in part to your question, Commissioner Holt. There are two fundamental issues here, at least as I see 8 9 it. And I think that the Board has a really important responsibility to review this ordinance and also all of 10 the documents, but the core issue for us is whether or 11 12 not we are going to continue to be the body that provides 13 towing contractors a permit, we have done it historically. We have always, and we do it well. When I 14 15 was your lawyer, when there were lawyers within the 16 department, et cetera, there was a review process. It's 17 done very collegially with the department of DPD, sit down and it's worked out and they bid these contracts and 18 19 the people are actually selected. There are only a few things that we are responsible for as you know Vice-Chair 20 Holt and also Mr. Chairman, and this is one of them. 21 Secondly, as I said the permit process is clear. There's 2.2 no real need for the law department and the City of 23 Detroit, which has a five-layer contracting sort of if 24 25 you will protocol to be involved in this process. This is



Page 86

1 a DPD Border Police Commissioners process. Secondly, we should remain the arbiter of disputes. I've sat in these 2 3 meetings, I've represented the BOPC. What happens is that we will decide if, in fact, a tow is no longer 4 5 legitimate, and if you can no longer be a part of our 6 process. And we do that based on whether or not they paid all of their fees on what complaints we've received, et 7 cetera, our process is excellent and it's very thorough 8 9 and it's designed to support obviously the community. We can do this. We don't need the law department to do it or 10 the city department, quite frankly. We've been doing it. 11 12 We do it well. The ordinance says that we do it and any 13 change, I haven't had a chance to read the ordinance yet, 14 Mr. Chairman, but I will, I read everything else. But I 15 know for a fact that this is within our power and within 16 our ability to do this well, and I'm sure Mr. Chairman 17 was here and several other Board members over the last 18 several years, I'm sure - Commissioner Holley was on the 19 Board before as well. So this is not new. It is something that we, unfortunately, Commissioner Holt, are backing 20 21 off of, I think some of our responsibilities, and I think that's unfortunate. I think it was true with respect to 2.2 23 the personnel issue. In the past, the whole Board read resumes and as a committee, we decide we want to 24 25 interview, et cetera. We now allow the personnel



department to do that for us. They don't have our eyes, they don't have our vision and they don't have our connections to the community. So therefore I strongly urge you to review this and seriously consider you know,

5 what is being proposed because it is a power that I think6 we should not relinquish.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. We are going to take8 one more

9 COMMISSIONER BURTON: To the Chair.

10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

1

2

3

4

COMMISSIONER BURTON: You know, I have a few 11 12 questions here. I just want to raise them. When the City 13 of Detroit created the ordinance on towing was the 14 Detroit Board of Police Commissioners aware of it? Did we 15 get anything in writing? And if so, when? In addition to 16 that when we talked about towing here in the City of Detroit, let's have a discussion at some date and time 17 regarding best practices and procedures right here you 18 19 know, in the State of Michigan. Let's look at the County and the State level of how towing is being conducted, but 20 we need to look at and define best practices and 21 procedures in order to really improve the towing 2.2 23 conditions. Question for whoever's reporting out on point today, looking at during this pandemic how are the tow 24 companies holding up since the City of Detroit got 25



involved in towing, how many employees have you guys lost since the city got involved. And we'd like to hear more from all of those towing companies and have them to be, you know, present at a meeting where they can be able to voice their concerns.

6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Ms. White make a notation of 7 those questions, and concerns. We're not going to ask for 8 a response as it is a little elaborate. Any other 9 questions we make a note of that we would get back with 10 you on that? Any other concerns? Of course, I should say 11 questions with the towers, Mr. Johnson.

12 MR. JOHNSON: Mr. Chairman, just one last point. It's really rhetorical. I would ask and I do appreciate 13 through you Commissioner Linda Bernard. I appreciate the 14 15 idea that I'm hoping that all the members will have an 16 opportunity to read through the ordinance itself. And I 17 am going to provide post the meeting that we're expecting to get with the council, President, Brenda Jones' office, 18 19 a more detailed look at what we believe point in the ordinance are the deficiencies, and we will provide as 20 well, a rationale for why we believe something should be 21 stricken or ways in which that it can be improved. We 2.2 23 have clean hands here. We want to operate and continue to operate in good faith. And the last thing that I will say 24 25 is that we operate under an extreme set of circumstances.



1 That is just not the same for our chief partner in DPD, 2 and we'll outline that more when we give you our next 3 document, which I'm hoping will be in the next two weeks 4 to answer more of your questions and provide greater 5 detail. Thank you for your time.

CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Mr. Johnson, and thank 6 7 you to the lawyers that represent you. We're going to move on. You have documentation and there's going to be a 8 9 great deal of up concerning this matter. As you stated counsel, President Brenda Jones, the council is deeply 10 11 involved in this whole process. Hopefully, we have some 12 interactions, but just to get it to the floor, we want to 13 bring it to your attention now. We're going to move on to 14 hearing from Ms. White the Board Secretary.

15 MS. WHITE: Yes. Through the Chair, Honorable Board, 16 please refer to the agenda for the incoming 17 correspondence for this week. And they are as follows. Number one, weekly DPD facial recognition technology 18 19 report for the week of February 8th, 2021 through February 14th, 2021. Legal correspondence, number two 20 21 from Nabid Ayad, Ayad Law PLLC Attorneys and Counselors at Law. Number three, the Board received the DPDs 2.2 23 response to the DTA's correspondence to the BOPC. And 24 number four, the staff reports were included in your 25 weekly packet, and that concludes the incoming



1 correspondence for this week.

2 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Ms. White. The next 3 item is on unfinished business.

COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I just have one thing, Mr. 4 5 Chairman. Again, I have requested that the Board be 6 provided the Inspector General's opinion and the report on the litigation, which I sent you a memo about. I don't 7 try to delay these proceedings by talking a lot about 8 9 stuff that I think we need, but I would appreciate us 10 getting that material as soon as possible, so we can start thinking about the appropriate way to perhaps 11 12 attack various communication and other issues that we 13 have.

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am, it's definitely 15 forthcoming and my understanding is the IG will be 16 reporting out soon. I thought was going to be this week, 17 but we will get that before. They were going to report 18 out the concerns that the commission (Audio Distortion) 19 that we thought that was (Audio Distortion).

20 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I wanted to see the complaint 21 and the answer and the judge's order, in particular, 22 because we are subject to a judicial ruling and we don't

23 know what it is. Thank you.

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Well, that is forthcoming. Also, 25 jobs for the Board are been posted by HR and you will



1 receive the hiring policy issue next week.

2 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON BELL: And the crime summit is all the 3 4 participants have consented to take part in that whole 5 process. We are pleased with that. You will hear more 6 about it next week, but that is moving right along in 7 terms of the panelists that we put together. And I know Reverend Holley, Commissioner Holley is involved. 8 9 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Great. 10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes. Ma'am. COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I said great. I'm sorry. 11 12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Unfortunately, I can't see 13 you, I definitely have to switch up companies next week. 14 This is just totally ridiculous. Any new business? 15 COMMISSIONER BURCH: New business, yes.

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am, Commissioner Burch. COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Chair. I wanted to give a 17 shout-out to number 9 and number 11. Today, Number 11 18 took by, what we call the senior drive by. The officers 19 from the different Precincts take baskets that were 20 21 provided by Lomax Temple. What we're trying to do is to show the citizens another side of our police department 2.2 to have a better relationship. So therefore we are 23 focusing on seniors - I'm talking about 70 plus that is 24 in their homes and the officers just simply drive by. 25



1 They do not go in unless they were invited, but they stay outside. And I wanted to give a shout-out to Chaplain 2 Marsha Williams. That's the first time we use the 3 chaplain. This is what I mean about unifying with our 4 5 Board of Police Commissioners, that we all do the same 6 thing within each precinct to show love to our seniors. That's the shout-out I wanted to give to Commander Slappy 7 and Commander McGinnis. Thank you Mr. Chair. 8 9 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Congratulations. CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. You have to be 70. Huh? 10 11 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I beg your pardon? 12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: The age. 13 COMMISSIONER BURCH: No. It's just about, you know, 14 the seniors don't get a chance, Mr. Bell, I'm going to 15 have to talk to you. 16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I just thought - you said that we 17 have to be 70 and up. COMMISSIONER BURCH: We don't do up. I'm just 18 19 talking. No, but I thank you all for understanding. It's about unifying our community and love where you live. 20 21 That's what I'm trying to tell everybody. You have to 2.2 love where you live. 23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am and you've been on that bandwagon, which is really encouraging, and thank you. 24 25 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I thank you.



VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Through the Chair. Is this a good
 time for announcements?

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Announcements. Go ahead. 4 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: We've been announcing all day. 5 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Okay. I too would like to send 6 kudos to Precinct 6 with Captain Potts who is maintaining her community closet whereby she continues to ask for 7 8 donations, diapers, very very gently worn clothing, and 9 also Precinct 6 were highlighted as they shoveled snow for seniors in and out of the 6th Precinct District. So 10 11 again, kudos to Captain Potts and her working with the 12 community.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Mr. Brown.

MR. ROB BROWN: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair and this Honorable Board. These are the next meetings for the Board of Police Commissioners virtual meeting February 25th at 3:00 pm and March 4th at 3:00 pm. And sir, I'll go right into public comments. Currently, have 10 speakers. I'll call them by three. Your first speaker would be Ms. Bernie

21 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Okay. 10 sec. I'm sorry,

22 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.

VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Mr. Brown, but Commissioner Burton is raising his hand. I think he was not aware that he had muted himself.



1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Well, Commissioner Holt, would you 2 pause and let Mr. Brown continue, please? Mr. Brown, go 3 ahead.

4 MR. ROB BROWN: Yes, sir. Your first speaker would be
5 Ms. Bernie Smith followed by Miss Sharon Parnell,

6 followed by Minister Eric Blunt.

7 MS. SMITH: Okay, Bernie. Commissioners, good evening. I'm going to be very brief because it is late. I 8 9 just want to thank those police officers that helped that family when they rescued the wife and the mother and the 10 kids. That child was so - he was so, he was really 11 pathetic because of the fact that he thanked the police 12 13 would come in there to save his mother. It makes anybody 14 want to cry because of the fact that he was so grateful 15 and the police - you're doing such a wonderful job. Oh, 16 and you were at Parnell's house, also shoveling the snow 17 and going on. I mean, some people, they're just being loved by the police department and we just love them 18 19 also. And you keep up the good work and be safe out there 20 and get your shot. I got my shot. I'm on my second one. 21 So everybody goes on and gets your shot and be over with, 2.2 but you just be careful and wear a mask. That's all I got 23 to say. Take care. Good night.

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

25 MR. ROB BROWN: Ms. Parnell.



MS. PARNELL: Hi, this is Sharon Parnell. I'm just giving out kudos to my Precinct 2. There were here, channel 4, and channel 2. They were on our hill shoveling my snow the other day and I do appreciate my commander and captain Chambers. And that's all I have to say is thank you. Thank you,

7 MR. ROB BROWN: Minister Blunt.

MIN ERIC BLUNT: Yes. This is Minister Eric Blunt. 8 9 Commissioners, please avoid participating in press conferences and public events not related to police 10 misconduct. The performance of Commissioners on this 11 12 Board must be singular in the sight of the public. 13 Commissioners participating in crime-fighting events 14 distort the public's understanding of the Board, which 15 has the overwhelming purpose of addressing police 16 misconduct. There are more than enough incidences of police misconduct to keep all 11 Commissioners very busy. 17 Case in point, just this week, a Wayne County judge 18 19 ordered a new trial for a 61-year-old man who spent seven years in prison due to the lies and common scheme of 20 misconduct by a DPD homicide detective who headed the 21 case. If operating effectively, this Board should provide 2.2 23 an early warning system of police misconduct, but this Board's deliberate refusal to focus on police misconduct 24 has forced me to yield to the words of wisdom of my 25



1 priest and a current commissioner who both have said to 2 me, if you are not at the table, then you are on the 3 menu, and we are tired of being on the menu. If there are any others with the same understanding of how this Board 4 5 can begin to focus on its charter mandated police 6 misconduct, the nomination petitions are on the city's website. And the deadline for submission is April 20th 7 for the August 3rd primary. It is my understanding that 8 300 signatures are needed for a Board of Police 9 Commissioners petition, but know this, win or lose, I 10 will continue to do what I have done for the last five 11 12 years, which is to pressure this Board to focus on police 13 misconduct.

MR. ROB BROWN: Mr. Chair, your next three speakers would be Ms. Maria Overall followed by a caller by the name of Roo and Monica Jones. Ms. Overall.

MS. OVERALL: That was a mistake, but I'd like to thank the 4th Precinct for all that they do. And thank you for the police officers as I hold you in my prayers. Thank you. I yield my time.

21 MR. ROB BROWN: Speaker with the name of Roo.

22 ROO: Yes. Can you hear me?

23 MR. ROB BROWN: Yes. You got a little feedback.

24 ROO: Okay. That's going to be settled right now. Can 25 you hear me?



Page 97

1 MR. ROB BROWN: Yes. ROO: Okay. Dismissing all formalities, Willy Bell 2 3 you're in the way. 4 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Was he muted? Was that person 5 muted? 6 MR. ROB BROWN: We'll go on to the next three. 7 ROO: Hello? Can you hear me? COMMISSIONER BERNARD: We'll start all over. 8 9 ROO: Thank you, 10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Mr. Brown. MR. ROB BROWN: He went off. Okay. We'll go to Alicia 11 12 Jones. 13 ROO: I am here. I'm here. I'm here. I'm here. 14 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: What's his name? ROO: Roo, I'm here. 15 16 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Okay. 17 ROO: Can you hear me? COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Yes. 18 19 ROO: Can I be allowed to speak, please? COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes. 20 21 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Speak, sir. ROO: Dismissing all formalities, Willy Bell you're 2.2 23 in the way. Move out of the way. Melanie White is entirely complicit in denying Board members 24 correspondence right along with Jonya Underwood. 25



Assistant Chief Todd Bettison is a cold-blooded liar and 1 2 questioning data, and I dare him to say, otherwise. 3 Lawrence Akbar, I'm still waiting on you to find out if you have permission to take these three complaints I've 4 5 been trying to file for months now. You don't need any approval to take complaints. All you need to do is ask 6 Willie Bell, he knows the truth. Today, the death of 7 Tanesha Coleman take center stage the direct actions of 8 9 Detroit police department homicide Captain Derek May in his decision to not rule Tanisha Coleman's murder a 10 homicide, even though he was in possession of the Wayne 11 12 County medical examiner's findings and rulings, is 13 totally out of pocket and crosses every line of human 14 decency.

15 ROO: The investigation being done by the OCI, it 16 says access and the matter is a shame, simple access, a 17 simple motion be entertained to bequest an outside law enforcement agency to be called in, to assist in DPD 18 19 homicide case number 20-11112 to demonstrate full transparency in determining the events and circumstances 20 surrounding her murder and the OCI investigation into 21 DPDs handling of the matter. Office of the Chief 2.2 23 Investigator Interim Lawrence Akbar's OCI chief 24 demonstrated neglect of duty in unrelated matters is included in this request for promotion. Commissioner 25



Burch, District 3 representative, in order to convey the impartiality, you should recuse yourself from voting on any matter related to myself owing to our telephonic conversations. Thank you.

5 MR. ROB BROWN: Mr. Chair, the next three speakers 6 would be Ms. Tawana Petty, followed by JW, followed by 7 Ms. Michelle George.

8 MS. PETTY: Thank you. Can you hear me?

9 MR. ROB BROWN: Yes, ma'am.

MS. PETTY: Thank you, Commissioners. This is the 10 first meeting where I saw a face recognition report 11 12 thoroughly read through. I'm kind of floored that it took 13 so many requests to ask that folks even be explained what 14 you all are getting every single week when people's lives 15 are on the line. And just based on what I was listening 16 to, I'm pretty confident that there still isn't a 17 thorough understanding of how this technology is being used and the fact that it has been banned in other places 18 19 and places are continuing to ban it that we're continuing to move forward without that thorough understanding of 20 the impact that it is having on the lives of community 21 members in Detroit Commissioner Bernard, you are a breath 2.2 23 of fresh air. I am so deeply grateful that you are on this Board. You ask deep questions that are unfortunately 24 25 a lot of times squashed and relegated to the margins or



Page 100

1 behind the scenes. But I encourage you to continue to ask 2 deep questions, to continue to represent the public, to 3 continue to challenge when you are not being met with the responses that we all deserve. This is the only space 4 that the citizens of Detroit have to air grievances to 5 6 ask for policy clarification regarding law enforcement and to work, to create equity in the relationship. We get 7 two minutes and sometimes less and that's it. And so 8 please continue to be an advocate for the members of 9 Detroit. And there are Detroiters behind you pushing to 10 add other Board members that will support along with 11 12 William Davis and Willie Burton. Thank you. 13 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you, Ms. Petty. 14 MR. ROB BROWN: JW. JW? 15 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Next speaker, please. 16 MR. ROB BROWN: Okay. Ms. Michelle George. MS. GEORGE: Hi, Mr. Brown. 17 MR. ROB BROWN: Hi. 18 19 MS. GEORGE: To Commissioner Bell, and the Honorable Board, good evening. I do want to thank Commander Russell 20 and Director Reid that was a good fresh air to hear. I'm 21 2.2 hoping the Ceasefire program - we can utilize more youth 23 and probably in the high schools because we do need to have a diversity of young people of color on DPD. Also 24 25 the facial recognition report. It is good to hear that



1 report because we know just like Ms. Petty stated other major companies across the country, especially after the 2 lynching and killing of Mr. George Floyd, Amazon removed 3 that technology from cities. What I'm hoping that facial 4 5 recognition really should have gone into resources for police officers is still a racist system. I understand. I 6 7 know when we go to the airport, there's a sort of facial recognition, but we're talking about the city denied 8 that, and I'm hoping, they'll see council members that 9 voted for facial recognition will be removed by the 10 people to vote them out. And it is important that when we 11 12 see black lives matter, that was nominated for the Nobel 13 Peace Prize. That's wonderful because that's what we need 14 to see that the world recognized their fight dealing with 15 injustice, but also to this Board of Police 16 Commissioners, I don't know what your role is, we have to 17 find out about these missing young women. I did write the assistant chief email. I'm not getting any response. I 18 19 wrote the Mayor. Maybe the Mayor or candidates will address this, but we got missing young people, no Amber 20 alert. I know what I'm going to need to do, that I'm 21 going to have to do, but we have missing young people in 2.2 the city every week. There was another young lady 23 missing. We don't hear the follow-up if they're runaways. 24 25 This is important to a city.



1	MR. ROB BROWN: JW. JW. Mr. Chair, it seems like
2	she's having a problem with her audio.
3	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Well, she can call next week.
4	MR. ROB BROWN: Okay, and that was your last speaker.
5	CHAIRPERSON BELL: That was our last speaker before
6	now, the Chair, will entertain a motion for adjournment.
7	COMMISSIONER BURCH: No, wait just a minute, Mr.
8	Chair.
9	COMMISSIONER BURTON: To the Chair.
10	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Burton, would you allow me
11	to speak then you can speak, sir.
12	COMMISSIONER BURTON: Absolutely.
13	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you. Mr. Chair.
14	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.
15	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Last week, we had real
16	difficulty in what one of the call-ins was speaking about
17	the character or whatever with Ms. Melanie White. I made
18	the motion that we table that. Now today, sir, I'm asking
19	you that this keeps coming up. The only way we're going
20	to settle this issue is that we have what they call the
21	inspector general that I understand she listens to our
22	meetings that this is only going to be settled by an
23	investigation from her department so that this citizen
24	can be satisfied and you all be satisfied and we all be
25	on one accord. Could I just make a motion that we have



Page 103

1 the inspector general investigate what the citizen is 2 saying? Can we do that?

CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Burch hear me out. 3 That is not the role, it's inappropriate. Of the issue 4 5 that was raised, we are looking into it. Of the person, 6 we gave a detailed report out on this particular matter. 7 So we don't really try this in the motion process. There 8 is a process of dealing with personnel now. And so I will 9 respond, I think we have responded and we would pretty much address that issue of concern. Just because somebody 10 11 irate makes all types of claims, there is a process. He 12 has been making claims for quite some time. He's not 13 satisfied with the service of DPD, or Office of the Chief 14 Investigator, or the Board. So how much can we do? You know, but there will be closing on any matter 15 COMMISSIONER BURCH: But Mr. Bell, I was just trying 16

17 to say to you for us to settle this. We as Board members 18 should be on one accord and I don't believe we are 19 because you weren't there when we voted last week, you 20 weren't present.

21 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Ma'am, I looked at the minutes,22 and

23 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I'll leave it alone. Again, you24 all like confusion, I don't.

25 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. I'll move on. Commissioner



Page 104

1 Burton.

2 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 3 Citizens of Detroit are reaching out to me saying that they're being pushed out of this meeting. One, in 4 particular, said they've been on the line since 3:45 and 5 6 have not been able to be called upon. They actually have 7 a timestamp since they've been on the meeting. You know, Mr. Chairman, I just say I'm worn for it. This level of 8 abuse is not acceptable. When citizens of Detroit reach 9 out to participate in this meeting or not being called 10 upon. They actually can validate that they've been on 11 12 since 3:45, not to mention there has been a couple of 13 people that reached out and steadily reaching out. And so I'd just like that this Board knowledge the process of 14 15 you have to be on by 4:00 o'clock in order to participate 16 for public comments. I hope that we, as a Board uphold 17 our end.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Burton, I hear you. 19 If you help a person who feels as though they've been locked out or blocked out, why don't you get a name and 20 cell number or telephone number and have them contact me? 21 And I would look into it. And that applies to all the 2.2 23 Commissioners in terms of any concern that you might have, let me know, and we will look into it. Be specific 24 25 in terms of your concern. We don't have to continue to



1 talk about it. Let's see if there is any documentation to

2 that whole process. Can we do that?

3 COMMISSIONER JONES: Yes, we can.

4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Thank you. Motion for

5 adjournment, please.

6 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Mr. Chair.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Motion for adjournment.

8 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Davis.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I'd like to raise the point that 9 10 I raised last week. The fact that we got in our package 11 from yesterday, we got some correspondence from February 12 the 8th. We should be getting our information more 13 timely. I see that it was emailed to you and others, but 14 we never did get a copy of the email, we got a hard copy 15 yesterday. We need our information timely. Everyone 16 should receive all the information on this Board and not just some people, sir. 17

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Well, if you've got a specific 19 concern I will entertain, but some Commissioners did not 20 want information. They wanted it more or less - do not 21 bombard us with information and you know who you are so 22 we can process it. If you have a concern, let me know and 23 I will

24 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I want all the information.
25 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I know. Hopefully, you get all



1 information. So if there's anything you're not getting,

2 let me know immediately. Can we do that?

3 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I will attempt to do that more,4 sir.

5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay, thank you.

6 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman, just quickly as 7 a point of order. I don't think the public can hear us 8 right now. Melanie, if you don't mind, please make sure 9 that you include our discussions so they won't appear 10 that we're meeting outside of the open meetings.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

12 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you. That's my only 13 point.

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Motion for adjournment, please.

15 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So moved.

16 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Second.

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: The motion has been properly moved

18 and second. Those in favor say, aye.

19 ALL: Aye.

20 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We stand adjourned. Thank you.

21 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Good night.

22

23 (Meeting adjourned at 5:30p.m.)

24

25

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100

1	STATE OF MICHIGAN )
2	COUNTY OF WAYNE )
3	RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE AND NOTARIZATION
4	I, Donald Handyside, Court Recorder, do
5	hereby certify that on February 18, 2021, at 3:00
6	p.m., I did record the Detroit BOPC meeting, the
7	same being later reduced to typewriting and that the
8	
9	foregoing is a true and accurate transcription of
10	said electronic recording taken at such time and
11	place.
12	I further certify that I am not related to
13	or employed by any party of this cause or their
14	respective counsel.
15	() n l =
16	Lower
17	DONALD HANDYSIDE (CER 1464)
18	Notary Public
19	My Commission Expires: 5/6/2020
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



<b>37</b> 17:12 <b>4</b> 50:5,21 63:2 <b>44</b> 17:2 <b>4th</b> 89:20 <b>5</b> 37:19 69:16 <b>78</b> 16:21 <b>3</b> 11:11 50:22 <b>9</b> 52:17 <b>974</b> 16:2 <b>5</b> 35:13,17 <b>2</b> 8:21,23 18:9 32:5 80:18 81:1 95:2,3 <b>0</b> 33:23 <b>0%</b> 17:4 <b>0</b> 17:4 <b>0</b> 17:4 <b>0</b> 79:16 <b>011</b> 78:10 <b>013</b> 18:22	24 62:8 24-hour 3:2 25 59:13 25th 93:17 26 34:1 27.9% 32:17 27th 32:14,20 35:15,19,24 28 16:22 28:15 24:7 29.7% 32:14 2nd 32:4 66:14 3 3 9:8,9 32:8 34:6 81:1 82:2 99:1 3-pronged 64:24 30% 31:25 300 96:9 301 16:25 31 16:16
44 17:2 4th 89:20 5 37:19 69:16 78 16:21 3 11:11 50:22 9 52:17 974 16:2 st 35:13,17 2 8:21,23 18:9 32:5 80:18 81:1 95:2,3 0 33:23 0% 17:4 0-11112 98:19 008 79:13 010 79:16 011 78:10	25 59:13 25th 93:17 26 34:1 27.9% 32:17 27th 32:14,20 35:15,19,24 28 16:22 28:15 24:7 29.7% 32:14 2nd 32:4 66:14 3 3 9:8,9 32:8 34:6 81:1 82:2 99:1 3-pronged 64:24 30% 31:25 300 96:9 301 16:25
4th       89:20         5       37:19       69:16         78       16:21         3       11:11       50:22         9       52:17         974       16:2         st       35:13,17         2         8:21,23       18:9         33:23         0%       17:4         0-11112       98:19         008       79:13         010       79:16         011       78:10	25th 93:17 26 34:1 27.9% 32:17 27th 32:14,20 35:15,19,24 28 16:22 28:15 24:7 29.7% 32:14 2nd 32:4 66:14 3 9:8,9 32:8 34:6 81:1 82:2 99:1 3-pronged 64:24 30% 31:25 300 96:9 301 16:25
5 37:19 69:16 78 16:21 3 11:11 50:22 9 52:17 974 16:2 5t 35:13,17 2 8:21,23 18:9 32:5 80:18 81:1 95:2,3 0 33:23 0% 17:4 0-11112 98:19 008 79:13 010 79:16 011 78:10	<ul> <li>26 34:1</li> <li>27.9% 32:17</li> <li>27th 32:14,20 35:15,19,24</li> <li>28 16:22</li> <li>28:15 24:7</li> <li>29.7% 32:14</li> <li>2nd 32:4 66:14</li> <li>3</li> <li>3 9:8,9 32:8 34:6 81:1 82:2</li> <li>99:1</li> <li>3-pronged 64:24</li> <li>30% 31:25</li> <li>300 96:9</li> <li>301 16:25</li> </ul>
78 16:21 3 11:11 50:22 9 52:17 974 16:2 5t 35:13,17 2 8:21,23 18:9 32:5 80:18 81:1 95:2,3 0 33:23 0% 17:4 0-11112 98:19 008 79:13 010 79:16 011 78:10	27.9% 32:17 27th 32:14,20 35:15,19,24 28 16:22 28:15 24:7 29.7% 32:14 2nd 32:4 66:14 3 3 9:8,9 32:8 34:6 81:1 82:2 99:1 3-pronged 64:24 30% 31:25 300 96:9 301 16:25
8 11:11 50:22 9 52:17 974 16:2 st 35:13,17 2 8:21,23 18:9 32:5 80:18 81:1 95:2,3 0 33:23 0% 17:4 0-11112 98:19 008 79:13 010 79:16 011 78:10	27th 32:14,20 35:15,19,24 28 16:22 28:15 24:7 29.7% 32:14 2nd 32:4 66:14 3 3 9:8,9 32:8 34:6 81:1 82:2 99:1 3-pronged 64:24 30% 31:25 300 96:9 301 16:25
9 52:17 974 16:2 st 35:13,17 2 8:21,23 18:9 32:5 80:18 81:1 95:2,3 0 33:23 0% 17:4 0-11112 98:19 008 79:13 010 79:16 011 78:10	<ul> <li>28 16:22</li> <li>28:15 24:7</li> <li>29.7% 32:14</li> <li>2nd 32:4 66:14</li> <li>3</li> <li>3 9:8,9 32:8 34:6 81:1 82:2 99:1</li> <li>3-pronged 64:24</li> <li>30% 31:25</li> <li>300 96:9</li> <li>301 16:25</li> </ul>
974       16:2         st       35:13,17         2       8:21,23         8:21,23       18:9         95:2,3       33:23         0''       17:4         0-11112       98:19         008       79:13         010       79:16         011       78:10	<ul> <li>28:15 24:7</li> <li>29.7% 32:14</li> <li>2nd 32:4 66:14</li> <li>3</li> <li>3 9:8,9 32:8 34:6 81:1 82:2</li> <li>99:1</li> <li>3-pronged 64:24</li> <li>30% 31:25</li> <li>300 96:9</li> <li>301 16:25</li> </ul>
2         8:21,23 18:9 32:5 80:18 81:1         95:2,3         0 33:23         0% 17:4         0-11112 98:19         008 79:13         010 79:16         011 78:10	29.7% 32:14 2nd 32:4 66:14 3 3 9:8,9 32:8 34:6 81:1 82:2 99:1 3-pronged 64:24 30% 31:25 300 96:9 301 16:25
2 8:21,23 18:9 32:5 80:18 81:1 95:2,3 0 33:23 0% 17:4 0-11112 98:19 008 79:13 010 79:16 011 78:10	2nd 32:4 66:14 3 3 9:8,9 32:8 34:6 81:1 82:2 99:1 3-pronged 64:24 30% 31:25 300 96:9 301 16:25
8:21,23 18:9 32:5 80:18 81:1 95:2,3 0 33:23 0% 17:4 0-11112 98:19 008 79:13 010 79:16 011 78:10	3 3 9:8,9 32:8 34:6 81:1 82:2 99:1 3-pronged 64:24 30% 31:25 300 96:9 301 16:25
95:2,3 <b>0</b> 33:23 <b>0%</b> 17:4 <b>0-11112</b> 98:19 <b>008</b> 79:13 <b>010</b> 79:16 <b>011</b> 78:10	<ul> <li>3 9:8,9 32:8 34:6 81:1 82:2 99:1</li> <li>3-pronged 64:24</li> <li>30% 31:25</li> <li>300 96:9</li> <li>301 16:25</li> </ul>
95:2,3 <b>0</b> 33:23 <b>0%</b> 17:4 <b>0-11112</b> 98:19 <b>008</b> 79:13 <b>010</b> 79:16 <b>011</b> 78:10	99:1 <b>3-pronged</b> 64:24 <b>30%</b> 31:25 <b>300</b> 96:9 <b>301</b> 16:25
0% 17:4 0-11112 98:19 008 79:13 010 79:16 011 78:10	99:1 <b>3-pronged</b> 64:24 <b>30%</b> 31:25 <b>300</b> 96:9 <b>301</b> 16:25
0-11112 98:19 008 79:13 010 79:16 011 78:10	<ul><li>30% 31:25</li><li>300 96:9</li><li>301 16:25</li></ul>
008 79:13 010 79:16 011 78:10	<b>300</b> 96:9 <b>301</b> 16:25
<b>010</b> 79:16 <b>011</b> 78:10	<b>301</b> 16:25
<b>011</b> 78:10	
	<b>31</b> 16:16
<b>113</b> 18.22	
10.22	<b>31%</b> 17:3
<b>D14</b> 16:3	<b>313 596-1830</b> 2:22 3:11
<b>015</b> 47:6	<b>313 596-2482</b> 3:3
<b>016</b> 47:7 78:10	313 596-5308 66:25
<b>017</b> 78:12	<b>31st</b> 35:14,17,21
<b>018</b> 50:13 78:21	<b>32.4%</b> 32:15
<b>019</b> 70:4	<b>33</b> 33:25 38:14
<b>020</b> 31:19 32:7 34:18 35:14	<b>34.9</b> 32:8
49:20,23 50:9,13 61:13 81:1	<b>35</b> 17:6 33:25 38:14
<b>021</b> 11:11,19 33:14 66:15	<b>36</b> 34:3 50:2
	<b>360</b> 3:13
	<b>37.2%</b> 32:23
	<b>37.8%</b> 32:15
	<b>39</b> 16:20
	<b>019</b> 70:4 <b>020</b> 31:19 32:7  34:18 35:14 49:20,23 50:9,13 61:13 81:1



<b>39%</b> 17:13
<b>3:00</b> 3:22 93:17
<b>3:45</b> 104:5,12
<b>3rd</b> 9:12 47:8 66:14,24 96:8

# 4

**4** 7:21 18:12 32:12 35:14 82:20,23 95:3 4.7% 32:11 400 49:25 **41** 50:4 58:8 **42** 33:23 **44.2%** 32:16 **46** 37:16 47.3% 32:22 **476** 16:25 4:00 3:22 4:12 104:15 4th 20:11,16 66:23 93:17 96:18

## 5

**5** 9:14 16:22 32:17 33:24 34:1 35:15 47:6 **5,800** 3:14 **500** 8:8 **52.7%** 32:21 **56%** 31:24 **596-2499** 3:3 5:30p.m 106:23 5th 18:4 62:12 66:4

### 6

**6** 9:17 51:13 93:6,9 **6%** 16:24 61-year-old 95:19

02/18/2021 617 17:1 62.8% 32:23 65.1 32:7 **677** 17:1 **68** 38:14,15 6th 93:10 7 **7** 9:18 7,250 50:7 7-days 62:8 70 91:24 92:10,17 77 16:18 **7th** 9:24 8 8 23:17 **82** 31:22 8th 66:1,8 67:11 89:19 105:12 9

**9** 23:17 47:6 50:13 80:18 82:20,23 91:18 **911** 65:5,6 95.3% 32:11 9th 56:13

Α

ability 46:25 86:16 absolutely 27:10 43:25 55:19 57:24 73:23 84:13 102:12

abuse 104:9

**AC** 24:23 25:23 27:17 28:13 30:1,11 53:11,13

Academy 52:17 53:22 57:9

accelerates 37:18 41:2 acceptable 104:9 access 4:20 98:16 Accessing 2:19 accident 17:22 81:23,25 accomplish 76:11 accord 102:25 103:18 account 2:9 51:5 accountability 15:23 accountable 76:18,21 accurate 32:20 35:14,19 39:24 40:14 42:22 71:16 acknowledge 4:16 10:13 15:1 53:22 65:23 acknowledged 4:13 acrimony 74:22 act 72:4 action 29:20 30:3 actions 34:16 73:9 80:25 98:8 active 32:15.17 actively 21:17 activities 14:15 activity 73:13 actual 59:12 actuality 75:2 add 100:11 added 45:23 adding 75:1 addition 87:15 additional 34:3 35:22 62:15 66:3 Additionally 2:11 address 2:12,13 3:11,21 29:11 56:17 65:7 67:1 80:2 101:20 103:10 addressed 17:17



addressing 21:17 29:18 95:15 adequate 19:24 adhere 2:16,17 adherence 2:19 adjourned 106:20,23 adjournment 102:6 105:5,7 106:14 administration 79:21 administrative 2:22,23 12:9, 10 34:21 46:5 74:24 75:5 adopted 71:24 72:23 adult 51:5 adults 51:11 adults' 50:21 advance 51:5 advantage 10:19 82:1 advice 53:6 advisory 63:1,17 advocate 100:9 advocates 65:14 affairs 20:15 affective 6:10 affiliate 49:7 afraid 11:1 afternoon 2:1 5:22 6:14 7:23, 24 8:4 9:19 10:2,9 12:23 16:15 22:17 46:9 61:6,9 69:5, 6 75:15 93:14 afternoons 18:12 age 50:22 54:11 63:21 92:12 agencies 34:20 46:17 agency 35:6 83:18,21,22 84:22,23 98:18 agenda 3:12,24 11:11 31:5 45:23 67:18 69:18 80:14 89:16

02/18/2021 agendas 3:9,15 ages 50:21 aggravated 16:19 31:25 aggressive 19:5,10 agree 6:12 54:14 agreeable 20:21 agreed 71:13 ahead 23:11,19 31:8,9 36:8 42:7 78:5 93:3 94:3 aid 49:13 51:4 aimed 46:13 71:10 Ainsley 14:25 air 23:5 99:23 100:5,21 **airport** 101:7 Akbar 12:13 14:24 98:3 Akbar's 98:23 alert 101:21 alerts 3:14 Alicia 97:11 alignment 71:1 all-around 14:20,21 allegedly 39:7 allotted 70:4 allotting 69:16 allowed 97:19 allowing 5:20 alongside 75:25 amazes 36:12 **Amazon** 101:3 Amber 101:20 **Amen** 7:14,15 amid 17:18 analysis 33:7 analyst 34:24 37:15 40:9,14

analysts 33:19,20,23 37:23,24 38:18 40:4 Anderson 13:12 angel 7:9 animosity 7:7 **Annie** 8:2 announcement 10:22 announcements 11:4 93:2,3 announcing 93:4 annual 14:14 31:3,13 **Ansley** 12:14 answering 25:24 40:14 anxiety 6:25 anybody's 39:5 anymore 75:5 anytime 19:12 **apologize** 5:6 53:2 appears 77:1 applicants 44:22 **applies** 104:22 approach 38:5 47:1 64:25 65:25 approaches 19:6 approaching 67:14 appropriately 2:17 21:4 appropriateness 27:4 appropriation 73:24 approval 11:10 23:1,7,20,21 82:25 98:6 approved 11:18 23:6,7,16,17 approximately 31:24,25 66:2 **April** 96:7 arbiter 74:13 77:2 86:2 area 8:9 27:18 30:17 49:3 81:24



areas 10:6 48:2 arguable 37:9 **Aric** 13:5 31:1,11 armed 18:6 arrest 17:18 20:23 32:21,22, 24 43:12,16,20,22,25 arrested 45:10 arrests 17:19 31:23 32:18,23 43:14 arrive 48:15 arson 34:5 art 68:17 articulated 41:20 Asian 34:1 assault 31:25 assaults 16:18,19 assess 47:23 assign 34:24 assist 13:3 61:5 62:18 65:17 98:18 assistance 9:5 27:25 49:11 50:6 assistant 12:11,16,20,24 13:4 14:1 16:12,13 24:11 27:18 67:21 98:1 101:18 assistants 71:7 assisting 48:6 assists 62:16 associates 81:23 association 16:6 70:3,11 **ASST** 12:23 13:4 14:3 16:14 19:16 20:10 21:21 22:22 23:25 24:4 25:6,18 26:18 27:10 28:19,23 30:2 assume 11:8 41:9 assuming 80:19 assumingly 39:15

02/18/2021 At- 9:25 At-large 8:2 10:3,10 at-risk 48:8 attached 45:14,16 attack 90:12 attempt 106:3 attempting 74:17 attempts 71:19 attend 23:20 attendance 12:8 attended 50:2 52:1,15 66:10 67:11 attendees 2:4,6,8,10 attending 51:8 attention 47:15 89:13 attest 70:11 attorney 8:22 25:9 71:9 75:11 82:1 attorney's 21:7 25:7 attorneys 69:13 71:11 89:21 audio 90:18,19 102:2 August 96:8 authorities 73:16 authority 71:25 72:16 77:1 78:18 82:4 authorization 22:20 23:11,19 authorize 74:19 authorized 70:18 72:12 78:8, 21 79:4,11 avoid 95:9 awards 18:3 aware 44:6,7 58:20 67:13 87:14 93:24 awareness 63:24 ax 72:3 Ayad 89:21

**aye** 11:15,16,25 12:1 106:18, 19

В
<b>back</b> 23:9,18 27:23,24 29:7,21 33:13 42:9,13,22 50:18 58:2, 20,22 60:22 79:13,19 80:3 81:3,5 85:2 88:9
background 4:22
backing 86:20
bad 26:12
<b>Baker</b> 63:9
balance 70:5
balanced 47:1
ban 44:8 99:19
bandwagon 92:24
banging 19:9
bank 8:10 51:4
banned 44:7 99:18
barbershop 48:2
<b>based</b> 25:11,12 34:16 35:9 63:21 86:6 99:15
<b>basic</b> 50:14
<b>basically</b> 43:9 47:23 48:15,22 49:4 50:22 52:6
basis 75:25 78:9
baskets 91:20
battling 7:2
beautiful 28:9
beg 92:11
begging 18:23
<b>begin</b> 96:5
<b>beginning</b> 18:15 29:14 42:21 71:23 75:7
<b>behalf</b> 69:3 75:12,15,16,17 81:20

4

 RENAISSANCE
 hansonreporting.com

 COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO
 313.567.8100

behavior 44:21 73:15

behavioral 65:2,6,15

belabor 72:21

Bell 5:5,6,21,23 7:16,21,24 8:3,20 9:8,14,17,25 10:8,21 11:6,10,14,17,22,24 12:2,19 13:1,15 14:4,11 15:18 22:11, 14 24:5,18,21,22 25:20,22 27:15 28:11 29:13 30:11,21, 24 31:4,8,18 36:5,6,8 41:10, 13,15 42:1,7 43:2,4 44:4,10, 13 45:21 53:20 54:1 56:16,20, 21,23 58:6,23 60:7,20,21,24, 25 61:8 67:7 68:14,24 69:1,6, 16 75:14 78:3,4,5 80:7,16,23 81:7,12 82:9,19,22 83:7 87:7, 10 88:6 89:6 90:2,14,24 91:3, 10,12,16 92:10,12,14,16,23 93:3,13 94:1,24 97:2,10,21,22 98:7 100:15,19 102:3,5,14 103:3,16,21,25 104:18 105:4, 7,8,18,25 106:5,11,14,17,20

**bend** 52:21

beneficial 51:12

benefit 51:24

benefits 73:21

**bequest** 98:17

Bernard 8:22 11:13 22:13 24:10,25 30:6,8 36:4,7 38:12, 25 39:10,20,25 40:1,19,21 41:8,10,25 58:24 59:17,25 60:6 68:6,13 85:6 88:14 90:4, 20 91:2,9,11 92:9 97:8,14,16 99:22 100:13 106:6,12,15

Bernie 93:20 94:5,7

Bert 77:15 79:5 80:3

Bertram 81:17

Bertrand 70:2

Bettison 13:5 53:12 67:21 98:1

**bid** 85:18

**Biden** 16:9

02/18/2021 **big** 10:11 44:8 **bind** 7:6 **bit** 33:12 37:7 40:2 47:3,11 49:20 50:19 black 29:6 32:10 34:2 52:18 101:12 Blackwell 59:9 blankets 8:8 blocked 104:20 Blossom 12:9 14:20 **blue** 8:1 blueprint 74:22 **Blunt** 94:6 95:7,8 **board** 2:2,24 3:10,21 4:23 5:1 7:22,24 12:4,7,23 14:20,22 15:2,6,14,15 16:15 17:23 18:3,20 20:20 31:14 32:25 33:13 34:11 36:1 42:20 46:9 52:20,23 53:10,17 61:7 63:1 70:1,6 71:24 72:6,15 77:1 82:1 85:9 86:17,19,23 87:14 89:14,15,22 90:5,25 92:5

89:14,15,22 90:5,25 92:5 93:15,16 95:12,14,22 96:4,9, 12 97:24 99:24 100:11,20 101:15 103:14,17 104:14,16 105:16

**board's** 2:16 3:18 4:18 12:6 95:24

board's 2:22 3:4,17

**bodies** 76:16

**body** 16:2 70:1,12 72:17 76:23 77:4,18,25 78:9,15,18,23 79:3,19 85:12

bombard 105:21

**bond** 53:4

books 36:20,24

**BOPC** 2:21 3:5,14,16 4:15 72:11 86:3 89:23

BOPC@DETROITMI.GOV 3:10 Border 86:1

**borrow** 72:24

bought 51:9 57:10

Branch-wilson 13:11 22:4

Branche-wilson 46:2,3,5,10 49:19 55:16 59:22 60:1

breakdown 33:20,25 38:23 59:23

breath 6:19 99:22

breathe 6:20

Brenda 70:21 88:18 89:10

**bridge** 48:9

bridging 64:7

briefly 18:14 68:16

brilliant 10:16

bring 7:10 10:16 42:9 53:21 54:10 69:18 89:13

bringing 42:24 53:15

**broad** 76:6

brotherhood 50:17,19,20 51:13,24 52:2,8,10,15 53:3 55:17

brought 18:21 23:9 75:8

Brown 8:4,5 12:8 14:21 25:19, 21,23 27:6,11 44:11,12,15 45:19 66:10 67:10,12,24 93:13,14,23 94:2,4,25 95:7 96:14,21,23 97:1,6,10,11 99:5,9 100:14,16,17,18 102:1, 4

Brown's 5:24

brutal 9:7

**bubble** 74:14

budgetary 39:1

**build** 53:4 55:17 65:19

building 60:1



bullet 80:21,24 81:1 82:23

**bunch** 20:7

Burch 9:9,10 11:3 27:13,14,16 28:20 29:1 30:3,10,19,22 41:23 42:2,3,4,6,7,8,24 52:21 53:19,25 54:2,8 55:10,15,21, 23 56:4,14,16,20 60:21 68:15 81:3,11,13 82:11 91:15,16,17 92:11,13,18,25 97:20 99:1 102:7,10,13,15 103:3,16,23 106:16,21

burdensome 74:24 75:7 76:13

#### Burglaries 16:24

Burton 9:15 44:3,5 58:5,7 87:9,11 93:22,23 100:12 102:9,10,12 104:1,2,18

**business** 9:11 23:24 72:9 84:15 90:3 91:14,15

businesses 70:10

**busy** 95:17

Bylaws 2:16 4:18

## С

### calendar 3:7

**call** 3:10 5:9 15:1,21 30:20,23, 24 36:20 39:6 50:2 51:19 59:15 65:7 84:22 91:19 93:19 102:3,20

call-ins 47:25 102:16

**called** 5:10 13:16 54:18 98:18 104:6,10

**caller** 96:15

callers 65:5

calls 65:8

candidate 40:8 45:8,12,15

candidates 45:7 101:19

capacity 34:25 60:5

**captain** 13:5,6,7 17:17 22:6,8 31:1,10,11,19 33:11 34:19 36:10 37:6,9 38:10,12,16

#### 02/18/2021

39:13,23 41:16,18,19,25 42:9, 19 43:3,8,18 44:9,15 45:3,21, 22 46:1 48:23 56:7 59:7,8,9 61:2,3,6,7,8,9,10 62:24 64:3 65:18 66:5 67:9,19 68:4,11, 14,25 69:1 71:6,11 80:12 82:13 93:6,11 95:5 98:9

captures 34:8

car 19:6,10

care 8:16 94:23

careful 94:22

carjacking 21:5,10 25:8

carjackings 16:22 21:2

carries 11:17 12:2

carry 16:11

Carter 14:12

Carter's 14:9

**case** 33:6,10 36:16 37:24 39:17 41:9 44:21 45:16,17 95:18,22 98:19

**cases** 17:16 25:8 31:21 32:12, 16,18 33:1,3,9,16 35:23 38:7 43:12,22,23

categories 74:21

category 43:12

caused 38:20

**ceasefire** 22:3 30:25 46:1,11, 18 47:13,21 48:4,13 49:22,25 53:11 54:6 56:19 57:1,2 58:9, 14 59:2 60:3,8 100:22

Ceasefire's 50:11

celebrate 63:24

**cell** 5:9 104:21

center 9:2 65:7 98:8

cetera 85:16 86:8,25

chair 4:7 7:22,23 11:9 12:4 14:6 15:13,14 16:5 24:17,21 25:19 27:13 31:1,13 36:1,3,6 37:6 38:11 39:13,23 40:1,21 41:13,19,22,23 42:9,19 43:18 44:3,9,11 45:3 53:9,19,25 54:2,25 55:16,24 56:3 57:23 58:5 59:4 67:6,8,19,21 68:4, 11,15,23 78:4 80:6,9,15 81:11 82:5,19 83:4 84:7 87:9 89:15 91:17 92:8 93:1,14,22 96:14 99:5 102:1,6,8,9,13 105:6

Chairman 8:5 10:25 22:10,12 24:23 69:9 75:9 80:5 83:3 85:6,21 86:14,16 88:12 90:5 104:2,8 106:6

chairperson 5:5,6,21 7:16 8:3, 20 9:8,14,17,25 10:8,21 11:6, 10,14,17,22,24 12:2,19 13:1, 15 14:4,11 15:18 22:11,14 24:5,18,22 25:20,22 27:15 30:11,21,24 31:4,8,18 36:5,8 41:10,15 42:1,7 43:4 44:4,10, 13 45:21 53:20 54:1 56:16,21, 23 58:6,23 60:7,20,24,25 61:8 67:7 68:14,24 69:1,6,16 75:14 78:3,5 80:7,23 81:7,12 82:9, 22 83:7 87:7,10 88:6 89:6 90:2,14,24 91:3,10,12,16 92:10,12,16,23 93:3,13 94:1, 24 97:10,21 100:15 102:3,5, 14 103:3,21,25 104:18 105:4, 7.8.18.25 106:5.11.14.17.20

challenge 16:4 79:22 100:3

challenged 78:19

challengers 51:19 55:2,8

challenges 57:19 62:5 63:14

Chambers 95:5

**chance** 52:12 57:7 86:13 92:14

change 57:12 64:1 73:7 86:13

changed 35:24

channel 95:3

chaplain 5:19 6:13 7:5,16 28:9 30:14,16 92:2,4

chaplains 27:21,25 28:8,13,20 29:4,7,9 30:16

Chaplin 5:10,17,18

 RENAISSANCE
 hansonreporting.com

 COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO
 313.567.8100

character 102:17 characterized 70:25 charge 21:9 charter 78:24 96:5 cheaper 24:3 check 5:3 83:22 checked 56:2 Cheryl 13:8 49:23 chief 3:2 5:13,24 12:13,21,23, 24 13:4 14:1,2,3,23,24 16:13, 14 17:22 18:3 19:16 20:10 21:21 22:22 23:25 24:4,10,11 25:6,18 26:18 27:10,18 28:19, 23 30:2,15,20,22 60:13 61:12 63:18 64:2 66:5 67:21,22 72:2,3,6 74:21 78:15 89:1 98:1,22,23 101:18 103:13 Chief's 31:6,7 45:22,23 chiefs 74:22 **Chief's** 16:12 child 18:17 94:11 children 18:6 51:21 55:6 56:10 children's 10:20 choose 17:15 19:4 **Chris** 13:10 Chuck 71:11 **church** 28:13 29:6 42:13 churches 29:12,17 42:11,15, 18,23,25 circle 52:1,5 circumstance 26:20 57:15 circumstances 25:13 88:25 98:20 **CIT** 56:6,10 citation 17:18 citations 17:20

# 02/18/2021 cities 44:8 74:19 101:4 citizen 66:12 102:23 103:1 citizens 7:25 10:18 26:4 28:14 29:18 65:22 75:6 81:20 91:22 100:5 104:3,9 city 2:11 6:11 8:24 10:5 13:18 19:4,11,19 51:14 58:10 59:22 60:12 70:16 71:7 72:25 73:24 78:25 79:17,20,23 85:23 86:11 87:12,16,25 88:2 101:8, 23,25 city's 96:6 city-related 23:23 city-wide 47:5,10 51:1 66:6 **city's** 3:6 **civil** 73:23 74:17 civilian 15:23 16:6 59:3 civilians 68:2 claims 103:11,12 clap 60:23 clarification 43:9 100:6 clean 81:23,24 88:23 clean-up 82:11 clear 68:7 72:2,16 77:5 85:22 cleared 19:23 32:15,17 clearing 49:11 57:18 clock 13:21 close 33:10 closed 33:10 **closely** 66:13 **closet** 93:7 closing 52:13 103:15 closure 38:9 clothing 93:8 **co-** 74:5 co-hosts 61:4

co-respond 65:3 **co-response** 64:5,17,18,23 coat 26:8,25 27:1 code 35:3 78:25 Cody 51:15 coin 46:19,23 47:12 cold 7:2 9:3 10:7 13:23 cold-blooded 98:1 **Coleman** 13:6 98:8 Coleman's 98:10 **Coles** 12:12 13:10 collaboration 8:7 colleague 25:23 colleagues 24:15 collect 75:5 collected 36:17 39:9 collection 34:7 **college** 51:11 collegially 85:17 **Collins** 20:13 **color** 100:24 comfortable 72:11 command 23:10,19 59:6 63:4 commander 10:14,15 13:7,8 22:4 28:16 29:21 43:7 46:6,7, 8 47:10,12,13 48:23,25 50:18, 20 51:23 52:23 53:9,12 54:2, 7,14,16,23 55:12,17 56:2,3,25 57:23 58:7,19,25 59:4,8,9,21 60:2,8,19,22 66:5 92:7,8 95:4 100:20 Commander's 46:15 47:2 Commanders 56:25 Commanding 31:12 commend 8:23 60:15 commended 8:14



comment 2:6 4:15 24:10 39:3

commented 17:22 29:14

**comments** 3:19,20,24 4:3,13 9:10 10:3 93:18 104:16

commercial 73:3

**commission** 16:3 43:6 60:18 78:7 79:10 82:7 90:18

commissioner 7:21 8:2,4,5,22 9:9,12,15,19,20 10:1,4,8,9,10, 21,24,25 11:3,5,6,12,13,20 22:10,12,13,16,17 23:23 24:2, 9,10,18,20,22,23,25 25:17,19, 20,21,23 27:6,11,13,16,19 28:11,20 29:1,3,16,23 30:3,6, 7,8,10,19,22 36:4,6,7,9 37:1, 6,8 38:12,25 39:9,20,25 40:1, 19,21 41:8,10,22,23,24,25 42:1,2,3,4,6,7,8,24 43:7 44:2, 3,5,11,12,15 45:19 46:10 52:21 53:19,25 54:2,8 55:10, 15,21,23 56:4,14,16,20,22,23, 24 58:3,5,7,24 59:17,25 60:6, 21 66:9,10 67:10,12,20,24 68:6,13,15 80:14 81:3,11,13 82:9,11,18,19,20 83:6 85:6,7 86:18,20 87:9,11 88:14 90:4, 20 91:2,8,9,11,15,16,17 92:9, 11,13,18,25 93:4,22,23 94:1 96:1 97:4,8,14,16,18,20 98:25 99:22 100:13,19 102:7,9,10, 12,13,15 103:3,16,23,25 104:2,18 105:3,6,8,9,24 106:3,6,12,15,16,21

commissioners 2:2,24 3:22 7:19,20,24 9:25 16:1 30:4 60:10 67:7 70:2,22 71:25 72:7,15 77:2 78:13 86:1 87:14 92:5 93:16 94:7 95:9,11,13,17 96:10 99:10 101:16 104:23 105:19

**commit** 47:14

committed 39:8

committee 61:17 62:1 63:16, 17,18 86:24

committing 20:9

02/18/2021

common 95:20

communicate 53:6

communication 90:12

communications 3:24 18:4

**community** 6:11 7:2,19 9:4 10:12,17 12:9 14:20 18:8,10 20:12,14,17 21:18 29:23 43:10 46:17 47:25 48:1,10,12, 18 49:3 50:25 58:2 64:9,13,15 65:21 66:1,3,11,18 67:5 68:9 86:9 87:3 92:20 93:7,12 99:21

community's 66:17

companies 73:7,11 75:8,17 76:18 82:24 87:25 88:3 91:13 101:2

**company** 76:21 78:19,20 84:12

compared 17:4

comparing 50:13

competitions 63:14

**competitor** 72:9 74:5

compiled 32:14

complaining 26:4

**complaint** 2:25 3:1,2 19:13 90:20

complaints 66:12 86:7 98:4,6

complete 4:9 66:18

compliant 73:11

complicit 97:24

comply 76:14 78:24

component 75:6

components 61:14

comprised 61:14

computer 2:8 4:10

**Comstat** 18:8,10

**concern** 20:5 25:1,25 27:19 76:25 82:17 103:10 104:23,25 105:19,22 concerned 66:16

**concerns** 15:12 30:13 53:17 63:20 70:19 72:20 77:9 82:10 88:5,7,10 90:18

**concludes** 12:17 22:1 35:25 89:25

conditions 87:23

**conduct** 15:25 32:2 48:19 62:21

**conducted** 15:25 31:20 32:25 33:1,5 35:12 87:20

conducting 26:9 conferences 95:10

confident 99:16

confusion 103:24

congratulate 54:3 57:11

Congratulations 92:9

conjunction 82:25

connect 48:8 64:22 65:15

connected 31:21 32:13,18 33:3

connection 67:22

connections 87:3

connects 65:5

consented 91:4

considered 33:17 44:25

consisted 51:2

consistent 35:17 71:20

consisting 64:25

consists 63:1

constant 74:24

constraints 66:16 72:9

consulted 72:17

**contact** 2:21 3:1 20:18 44:25 83:17,19 104:21

contacted 62:13



contacts 83:17 **continue** 5:25 6:4,9 7:1,3 17:14 46:24 49:16 60:16 79:7 85:12 88:23 94:2 96:11 100:1, 2,3,9 104:25 continued 6:1 continues 93:7 continuing 6:2 99:19 contract 74:10,11 77:13 contracting 85:24 contractors 85:13 contracts 74:9 85:18 control 23:10 42:16,17 controls 4:10 convenience 70:23 **convention** 67:14,15 conversation 70:18 conversations 64:10 79:8 99:4 convey 14:18 99:1 convictions 35:8,11 cooperation 80:12 coordinate 63:5 coordinated 47:16 coordinator 12:10 49:1 63:6 **copy** 105:14 core 61:19 68:19 85:11 CORE's 63:23 cornerstone 46:12 corporation 12:16 78:13,14 82:14 **Corps** 30:14 **correct** 11:8 26:17 35:3 43:17, 18 57:22 correction 11:22 corrections 11:19 34:12 47:18

02/18/2021 correspondence 89:17,20,23 90:1 97:25 105:11 correspondences 5:2 correspondent 65:1 corroborate 40:23 41:3 corroborates 40:10 corroborating 40:12 corruption 70:14 cost 36:18 38:6 74:7 cost-saving 36:22 costly 73:20 costs 39:2 70:10 79:18 council 20:14 70:21 78:14 79:9 80:12 88:18 89:10 101:9 **counsel** 12:16 69:13 71:8 75:10 77:17 78:14 82:14 83:4 89:10 counseling 48:15 52:7 Counselors 89:21 count 31:24 44:20 counting 34:4 country 15:19 35:7 52:4 101:2 County 8:6 21:14 25:15 87:19 95:18 98:12 couple 18:2 57:1 58:25 104:12 courageous 8:1 64:10 court 12:6 18:22 19:2 21:1,9, 12,15 25:3,4,10 78:19,20,22 **cover** 45:24 **covered** 19:25 **COVID** 17:6,11 23:8 38:20 50:1.3 COVID-19 6:3 62:14 Craig 14:2 30:15 60:13 72:3 Craig's 64:2 crash 70:8

cream 70:12 create 100:7 created 87:13 creating 79:14 credit 49:21 crime 16:16,23 17:4 20:17 31:12 33:23 34:4,24 36:24 38:19 39:2,7,15,18 40:17 42:17 48:18 91:3 crime-fighting 95:13 crimes 17:3 31:24 48:21 **criminal** 3:1 21:4.11 25:12 32:1 44:21 55:20 criminally 73:8 crises 64:22 crisis 56:6 64:25 Critical 17:20 critically 62:20 criticism 15:4 **Cromwell** 12:14 14:25 **crop** 70:13 crosses 98:13 **cry** 94:14 culminated 79:15 current 16:16 17:6 33:20 38:23 57:4 72:13,19 96:1 custody 27:9 custom 48:19,21 50:1 **CVED** 73:4 cybersecurity 20:18

## D

daily 53:6 61:25 75:25
damage 34:6
Dan 69:13 71:8 75:11,15 78:7 79:2,5 83:4

 ENAISSANCE
 hansonreporting.com

 COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO
 313.567.8100

dare 98:2 data 17:18 32:15,19 34:7 35:18 36:17 39:4,8,22 42:10 49:18 98:2 database 34:8,14,15 35:1 40:18 date 17:23 20:20 35:15,20,22 71:17 87:17 **David** 12:21,24 Davidson 54:10 Davis 9:19,20 10:4 22:10,12, 16,17 23:23 24:2,9 97:4 100:12 105:6,8,9,24 106:3 day 13:25 16:24 42:13 62:8 63:10 69:8 75:24 93:4 95:4 day-to-day 15:15 days 33:9 70:13 deadline 96:7 deal 15:21 26:2,5 70:9 80:13 89:9 dealing 6:23 72:12 101:14 103:8 dealt 15:5 deans 51:17 55:12 death 98:7 debriefing 52:6,11 debriefings 62:21 decades 70:17 deceased 5:15 December 35:14,17,21 47:8 **decency** 98:14 decide 25:6 86:4,24 decided 34:24 66:6 decides 27:22 decision 18:2 98:10 declared 78:16 **decorum** 15:24

02/18/2021 decrease 50:14 decreased 50:12 deemed 4:7 deep 39:5 99:24 100:2 deeply 89:10 99:23 defense 35:3 defenseless 26:17 deficiencies 88:20 define 87:21 Defining 32:25 definition 76:12 delay 90:8 deleted 34:13 deliberate 73:8 95:24 delinguency 55:20 demand 15:21 demographic 32:10,11 demographics 32:9 33:19 demonstrate 98:19 demonstrated 98:24 **Denby** 51:14 **denied** 101:8 denying 97:24 department 8:23 12:5 15:22 17:13,15,21 22:19 23:5,12 26:13 31:16 35:4 44:22,24 45:8 47:18 48:20 56:11 57:25 58:1 59:2,5,12,18 62:3 63:3,5, 18 64:2,9,13 65:11,20,23 71:7,12 72:8 74:16 75:2,24 77:7,17 79:23 82:24 84:12 85:16,17,23 86:10,11 87:1 91:22 94:18 98:9 102:23 department's 23:15 department-wide 60:3 departments 74:23 depend 26:23

depression 6:24 **depth** 47:3 **Deputy** 13:25 **Derek** 98:9 describing 71:13 **deserve** 100:4 designed 62:23 86:9 desire 7:10 15:19 detail 89:5 detailed 88:19 103:6 **details** 26:20 detective 37:13,24 39:17 40:12,23,24,25 95:21 detectives 38:1 detention 26:24 determination 21:8 25:9,11 27:3 determine 22:25 36:17 37:2 39:6 40:7,13 74:2 determined 78:22 determining 98:20 deterrent 46:12 Detroit 2:2,11 6:1,11 7:25 9:1 13:18 14:7 18:18 22:19 26:13 44:22 45:8 46:12 50:16,23 51:14,25 52:16,17,24 53:15 58:11 60:13 63:3,5,9 64:1,8, 13,20 65:9,11,13,20,22 67:5 70:3,13,15,16,24 72:25 73:5, 15 74:2,7,18,20 79:11 85:24 87:13,14,17,25 98:9 99:22 100:5,10 104:3,9 Detroiters 100:10 Detroitmi.gov 3:16 detroitmi.gov/bopc 3:6 detroitmi.gov/bopc. 3:4 develop 34:9 41:1,6 74:5 developed 40:9



 ENAISSANCE
 hansonreporting.com

 COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO
 313.567.8100

developing 47:24 development 50:25 **device** 4:12 dial 2:22 4:11 dialogue 67:16 diaper 48:5 diapers 93:8 differences 71:10 difficult 13:23 26:21 38:5 60:16 difficulty 102:16 digest 82:2,16 direct 71:22 98:8 directed 21:1 direction 77:5,7 83:15 directives 3:8 directly 54:23,25 59:18 84:22 director 13:9,11 14:6 22:4 30:25 46:1,5 49:5,15,18,23 53:11 55:4 56:6 59:21 60:8 100:21 disable 4:24 disciplinary 34:16 discipline 79:3 discover 40:4 discretion 19:20 discretionary 20:3 discriminatory 63:21 discuss 52:3 71:3 discussion 11:15 50:24 67:17 87:17 discussions 71:4,23 79:14 106:9 disempowered 74:10 disgruntled 15:7 dismissal 2:18 4:8

02/18/2021 Dismissing 97:2,22 dispatched 65:4 disputes 72:1 77:2 79:4 86:2 distort 95:14 **Distortion** 90:18,19 distribute 18:17 distributed 3:12 distribution 5:2 6:3 48:8 51:7 district 7:21 8:3,21,23 9:8,9, 12,14,17,18,24 68:19 78:22 93:10 99:1 dive 39:5 diversion 64:24 diversity 63:25 100:24 divided 29:24 division 12:13 64:20 65:10 73:4 document 71:13 80:18,20 82:20 89:3 documentation 89:8 105:1 documented 37:10 **Documenting** 33:7 documents 85:11 domestic 18:5 **Don** 12:7 donations 19:1 93:8 door 54:21 **doubt** 75:18 downtown 8:9 56:13 **DPD** 4:23 10:5,11 13:17,24 15:8,22 33:19,20 35:5 47:16, 18 67:16 72:1,8 73:17 80:25 85:17 86:1 89:1,18 95:21 98:18 100:24 103:13 **DPD's** 31:2 **DPDFIT** 61:16,24 62:24 63:1, 4,6,8,11,12

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

**DPDS** 8:14 89:22 98:22 **DPOA** 13:9 **DPW** 10:6 draft 3:8,12,15 72:19 drafted 76:3,7 drive 24:3 28:6 91:19,25 driver's 49:11 57:18 driving 10:4 **DTA** 71:8 72:20 73:1,6 74:3, 13,23 75:3,16,19 77:3 80:17 83:2 DTA's 89:23 **DTAS** 75:10 due 33:5 34:13 66:15 95:20 **Duggan** 60:13 duplicate 34:14 duplicative 72:22 76:7 duty 73:9 98:24 **DWIHN** 64:21

### Е

ear 61:23 earlier 60:2 early 95:23 ears 16:1 East 51:15 62:11 Eastside 8:11 easy 59:24 68:8 echo 10:3 77:15 economic 50:3 educate 21:19 education 63:13 educational 51:6 effective 66:20 effectively 95:22

effects 50:3 52:3 efficiently 73:18 effort 8:24 47:16 57:12 59:17 71:1 efforts 8:25 10:16 21:19 50:11 70:24 elaborate 88:8 **elected** 14:4 58:16 electric 16:3 element 41:8 elementary 54:9,10 56:17 eliminate 36:24 eliminated 72:1 **elite** 40:22 email 2:9,10,12,23 3:9,10,11, 21 5:2 67:1 101:18 105:14 **emailed** 105:13 embark 61:25 embedded 65:6 **emergency** 49:11,14 emotionally 61:22 employ 73:21 employed 33:19,20 employee 73:10 81:1 employees 88:1 employment 50:5 51:1 58:9, 10 empowers 62:24 79:3 enable 4:24 enabling 61:2 encountered 44:19 encourage 60:10,23 64:1 100:1 encourages 61:25 63:11 encouraging 92:24 end 22:9 43:25 47:8 66:22

02/18/2021 71:23 104:17 endeavors 30:18 ends 21:1 80:8 enforce 19:11,21 20:3,5 46:25 enforcement 16:7 46:17 47:1, 12,13,15,17,19,21 48:10,12, 18 49:22 50:6 73:3 80:25 98:18 100:6 engage 49:17 engagement 64:15 engaging 13:19 English 51:15 enhance 54:5 ensure 77:19 ensures 47:14 62:2 ensuring 35:2 entertain 30:17 44:13 69:19 80:9 102:6 105:19 entertained 36:10 98:17 entire 9:4 17:15 35:11 38:19 63:3 entities 72:14 entry 34:14 envy 7:7 equal 62:2 equality 61:17 63:17,24 equipment 73:20 75:20 equity 100:7 Eric 94:6 95:8 Ericka 12:16 errors 34:10 essence 67:5 evaluate 65:23 evening 5:22 94:8 100:20 event 68:3 events 47:25 48:1 52:1 61:24

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

63:8,11 95:10,13 98:20 everyone's 60:4 everything's 27:17 evidentiary 39:16 **Ewing** 66:5 examiner's 98:12 examples 38:11 excellent 15:3 24:15,16 43:25 46:4 54:3 68:6 86:8 excited 48:19 67:25 exclusive 33:1 excuse 24:6 60:21 79:6 82:9 excused 9:17 executioner 72:5 **executive** 13:18 14:6 33:22 59:10 executives 4:23 existential 74:5 existing 76:7 79:15 85:3 expand 66:6,22 expanded 47:5 **expect** 82:15 expecting 88:17 expedites 37:12 experienced 62:5 81:24 experiences 55:19 experts 70:5,12,16 73:19 explain 40:2 43:19 explained 99:13 express 52:13 70:19 82:17 expression 6:1 expressions 36:14 expunged 45:11 external 22:6 61:11,12,15,17 63:7 64:3 66:7,21,24

Externally 64:6 Externalrelations@detroitmi. gov. 67:2 extracted 45:7 extreme 88:25 extremely 72:19 eyes 16:1 42:15 43:1 76:3 87:1

# F

face 39:5 45:1 99:11 Facebook 3:18 faced 57:20 74:25 facial 17:16 22:7 31:3,13,20 32:19 33:4,7,19,21 34:25 35:6,9,12 36:16 37:3 38:13 39:18 44:7,8 45:1 89:18 100:25 101:4,7,10 facilitate 64:10 facility 62:10 68:17,22 fact 15:22 25:1 86:4,15 94:12, 14 99:18 105:10 fad 28:3 Failure 2:17 fair 77:5 79:24 faith 88:24 faith-based 49:1 fallen 62:17 familiar 49:3 families 40:15 58:12,17 62:17 family 5:17 6:7 7:19 10:11 13:17,22 39:22 40:11 48:16 62:15,17 94:10 fantastic 15:3 fast 72:8 faster 38:7 fatal 17:21,24

02/18/2021 father 6:13 7:5 favor 11:15,25 106:18 fax 3:3 FBI 20:16 21:7 38:21 fearful 19:8 featured 35:5 February 11:11,19 89:19,20 93:16 105:11 federal 21:9,10,12 25:2,4,5,10, 14 47:17 58:11 59:19 78:20 federally 50:8 fee 79:21 feedback 96:23 feel 28:8.20 feels 104:19 fees 73:22 74:24 75:5,6 86:7 felony 45:13 female 32:11 females 33:25 38:14 field 63:10 fight 101:14 figure 31:23 32:5,8,12,17 35:14.15 figured 38:21 figures 35:16 file 2:25 39:17 98:5 final 33:14 34:9.11 47:9 finalized 35:18 finally 75:6 financial 51:3.4 find 3:6,16 53:3 74:13 75:19 77:22 98:3 101:17 findings 98:12 fine 2:14 29:5 firearm 47:23

firearms 50:8 fit 61:23 fitness 63:12,13,15 fitness-themed 63:10 five-layer 85:24 floor 53:24 89:12 **floored** 99:12 Floyd 101:3 fluid 35:23 focus 46:12 60:14 95:24 96:5, 12 focuses 61:20 64:6 focusing 91:24 folks 99:13 follow 52:12 76:15 **follow-up** 101:24 food 8:10 48:7 51:7 57:18 forced 74:11 95:25 Ford 51:15 53:1,3 Foremost 72:22 forgiveness 6:15 form 4:9 formal 21:24 formalities 97:2,22 formally 5:12 format 18:9,13 forthcoming 90:15,24 fortunate 9:6 71:2 forum 2:15,17 3:20 forums 4:20 forward 5:8 16:10 28:16 29:2 33:15 45:12 77:8,20 99:20 foster 64:11 found 29:3 31:22 43:13 82:8 foundation 14:7,13 59:18



Fourth 74:8 frankly 76:6,19 86:11 free 10:17,18 19:3 63:9 frequent 48:3 frequently 34:10 fresh 99:23 100:21 friends 5:15 FRT 43:11 frustration 6:25 full 98:19 full-time 34:25 function 15:15 65:13 fundamental 85:8 funded 59:17 funding 59:22

#### G

Gaddis 8:7 Gambrel 5:12 gang 46:14,21 47:22 50:11,14 gangs 50:8 **qap** 48:9 64:7 Garcia 78:14 gave 20:16 23:19 24:7 103:6 **GED** 49:14 gender 32:10 63:22 general 52:11 102:21 103:1 **General's** 90:6 generally 84:2 gentlemen 44:5 gently 93:8 George 99:7 100:16,17,19 101:3

get all 105:25

02/18/2021 Gilbert 13:6 61:3,10 68:14 give 7:3,13 9:21 22:18,20,22 39:1 45:9 48:3 52:12 57:6 58:18 59:23 60:21,23 82:17 89:2 91:17 92:2,7 giveaways 48:6 giving 9:5 10:10 77:6 95:2 glad 54:16 Glen 13:11 glory 7:14 goal 57:24 65:14 God 5:22 6:15,16,20,21,23,25 7:3,4,8,9,11,12

**good** 2:1 5:15 7:23,24 8:4 9:19 10:2,9 12:23 16:14 17:11 22:17 29:2,25 44:16 46:9 51:20 55:23 61:6,9 68:18,22 69:5,6,8 75:15 88:24 93:1,14 94:7,19,23 100:20,21,25 106:21

Govdelivery 3:13 qovernance 76:10 governed 76:18 graduating 51:8 graduation 51:10 grant 16:8 granted 23:1,10 grants 59:19 grateful 94:14 99:23 Graveline 13:10 great 8:18 10:5,11,16 15:21 16:4 28:23 44:15 51:25 53:5, 16 55:4 59:16 70:9 89:9 91:9, 11 greater 33:5 89:4 Green 33:9 42:10,11,16,18,20 **Greg** 30:22 grievances 72:5 100:5

grind 72:3 ground 58:17 group 46:20,21 47:20,24 50:15 68:19 70:6,16 group- 50:11 group-related 46:14 groups 47:14 grow 55:9 growing 52:4 guide 62:4 guidelines 76:15 gun 10:17,18 18:17 46:14 47:14,19 48:21 49:8,16 50:9 52:3,10

guys 58:13,14 88:1

#### Н

hand 4:1,11 47:10 60:23 93:24 handcuffed 26:7,16 handle 69:22 handled 18:5 74:17 handling 98:22 hands 88:23 hands-on 68:1 Handyside 12:7 happen 41:18 happy 52:16 62:9 66:9 67:2 hard 105:14 harm 65:24 Harper 52:19,25 Harris 16:9 haven 64:1 havens 65:22 head 9:6



headed 57:8 95:21
healing 5:24 6:5
health 55:24 56:1,4 61:19 64:5,17,18,21,22,23,24 65:2, 3,4,6,7,13,15 66:17 68:17 74:1
hear 13:2 30:20,23 67:2 69:23 88:2 91:5 96:22,25 97:7,17 99:8 100:21,25 101:24 103:3 104:18 106:7
heard 15:18 56:5 73:25
hearing 52:15 82:3 89:14
heart 5:23 7:4,13 59:14 73:25
hearts 7:9
heaven 6:17
heavily 37:4
held 18:11 66:19 67:11 73:8
helicopter 22:19,24 23:2,5,12, 14,15,16,22
helped 51:11,24 53:7 94:9
helping 8:15 51:3 57:3,17
helps 62:4
Henry 51:15 53:1,3
Herman 5:15 6:7
Hernandez 10:1,2
<b>Hey</b> 44:15 49:6
<b>high</b> 51:3,8,13,15,18 52:16,25 53:2 54:15 55:5,13 100:23
higher 16:24 73:20
highest 66:12
<b>highlight</b> 47:4 49:21 50:4,16 60:2 62:6 78:6 79:2 82:15
highlighted 79:8 93:9
highlights 53:21
hijacked 25:1
hill 95:3
hire 38:18

02/18/2021
hired 44:24
hires 38:22
hiring 91:1
Hispanic 34:2
historical 63:7
historically 66:2 78:6 79:12 85:14
history 16:4 21:11 25:12 67:10 77:4
<b>hold</b> 9:10 19:3 22:9 23:8 27:1 29:13 76:18,20 96:19
holding 18:25 87:25
Holley 10:24,25 11:5,6,12,20 24:20,22,23 25:17 27:19 30:4 39:9 86:18 91:8 93:4 97:18
Holt 7:23 8:2 11:21 24:17,19 29:16 36:3,6,9,10 37:2,7,8 38:10 41:13,14,16 66:9 67:8, 20,23 80:6,14,15,24 81:4 82:7,9,18,19,20,23 83:4,6 84:7 85:5,7,21 86:20 93:1,5, 21,23 94:1
home 18:6 32:2 57:2 69:19
homeless 8:8,25 9:2 65:9,15
homelessness 65:14
homepage 3:16
homes 91:25
homicide 95:21 98:9,11,19
homicides 16:16
honestly 49:21
honor 5:20 7:13
honorable 4:23 5:1 12:4 61:7 70:1,12 78:21 89:15 93:15 100:19
hooked 84:3
hooking 82:25

30:4

hope 10:15 13:8 15:6 24:18 28:16 29:21 53:12 59:9 64:11 69:7 104:16

COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO

HAN

hoping 40:14 88:15 89:3 100:22 101:4,9 hopped 23:22 hospital 48:14 hospitals 6:4,21 host 4:6 65:21 **HOT** 65:9 hotspots 48:2 hour 3:22 58:10,12,15,21 hours 62:8 house 61:16,18 64:4,15 94:16 housed 63:4,6 66:7,24 household 62:16 housing 49:14 50:6 57:17 64:19 65:10 **HR** 12:12 90:25 **HRD** 64:20 Hudson 5:10,17,18,19 6:13 7:5,16 28:9 huge 56:12

hopeful 71:24

human 21:16,17,19,25 24:21 98:13

humane 26:15 27:8

hundred 37:21

#### icon 4:1

idea 27:21 28:15,23 29:2 73:7 74:8 88:15

Т

ideas 28:17 29:25

identified 31:23 34:2,3 40:17 45:15 55:3 83:23 84:12

identifies 66:11 84:24

identify 2:5 21:6 36:21 83:20

identifying 34:1,2 84:17

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com 313.567.8100

identity 63:22 **IG** 90:15 ill 62:20 illegal 73:13 **image** 40:13,16 images 4:6 38:3 45:7 immediately 106:2 impact 60:17 99:21 impacted 62:14 impacting 17:21 impartial 74:13 impartiality 99:2 implementing 56:12 importance 29:7 important 4:3 28:5,7,8 45:24 85:9 101:11,25 imposed 34:16 imposition 79:21 **impound** 83:1,9 impounds 70:17 improve 87:22 improved 88:22 in-depth 21:24 57:5 in-home 29:19 inactive 32:14,16 33:10 inadvertent 73:8 inappropriate 4:7 103:4 inaudible 24:7 inbox 5:3 incidences 95:16 incident 26:21 47:23 62:21 incidents 17:20 include 33:14 48:11 106:9 included 35:4 54:16 89:24 98:25

02/18/2021 includes 32:9 35:12 50:24 including 71:6,8,14 inclusiveness 63:25 income 73:22 incoming 89:16,25 increase 50:9 63:23 indicted 50:8 individual 15:7 18:6 20:11 21:6 23:1,14 26:24,25 32:3 36:22 46:20 63:13 individual's 20:13 25:11.12 individuals 18:24 19:5,14,18 20:7 21:9 26:19 44:18 48:3.9. 20 50:2,4,5 57:14 58:8 64:22 77:18 indulgence 69:11 industry 70:24 71:1 73:18 industry-leading 70:7 73:19 inequitable 72:4 inexpensive 76:13 information 2:21 3:5,17 5:4 18:1 20:19,22 21:16 22:18,21, 23 33:8 34:8 35:8 39:4 40:20 44:16 57:6 58:20,21 81:19 82:16 83:21 105:12,15,16,20, 21.24 106:1 inherent 70:14 initial 23:13 71:4,13,18 initially 47:6 66:4 78:10 initiative 60:3.12 66:4 initiatives 64:16 injured 62:20 injustice 101:15 inner-city 52:4 Innovation 12:5 inquiry 21:2 **inside** 26:8

insights 28:24 inspector 90:6 102:21 103:1 instance 52:8 instructions 3:19 instrument 23:3 intake 81:19 integrated 64:21 65:5,13 intelligence 31:12 33:24 34:24 38:19 39:2,18 47:22 interactions 89:12 interested 71:5 77:18 Interim 12:13 14:19,24 98:23 intern 14:22 internal 22:5 61:10,14,15 63:7,16 66:7,21,23 Internal- 67:1 Internally 61:20 internet-related 20:17 interrupting 4:22 intervention 52:5 56:6 64:25 65:1 interview 86:25 interviewing 37:25 introduce 13:2 52:18 75:10 introduced 7:20 introduction 12:20 introductions 12:18 invasion 32:2 invest 75:20 investigate 33:12 40:4 103:1 investigation 17:24 22:25 26:9 32:7 43:15 98:15,21 102:23 investigations 2:25 investigator 3:2 5:13 12:11,

13,14,15 14:24 98:23 103:14

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100 invited 4:6 71:3 92:1

invocation 5:11

- involved 14:15 18:6 28:12 29:17,18 33:16 48:21 49:8 54:6,13,21,24,25 55:20,25 59:1,7 60:4 73:13 85:25 88:1, 2 89:11 91:8
- involving 47:20 79:14
- irate 103:11

isolated 62:13

**issue** 5:8 23:6 30:13 55:24 78:18 79:3 82:11,12 85:11 86:23 91:1 102:20 103:4,10

**issued** 45:17 78:9,10,15,17,23

**issues** 56:1 77:21 78:1 80:11 82:15 85:8 90:12

- item 7:20 11:7,18 12:3,20 39:1 80:14,21,24,25 82:21 90:3
- items 67:17 72:19
- it's 27:13
- **I'd** 104:14
- l'm 39:25 40:14 97:13

#### \_\_\_\_\_

James 12:12

January 32:14,20 35:13,15,17, 19,24 47:8

J

jealousy 7:7

Jefferson 62:11

jeopardy 28:7

Jesus 6:13 7:14

Jim 20:13

job 8:11,18 13:23 15:4 49:10 53:12,15 55:4 59:16 68:18 74:6 94:15

jobs 90:25

Johnson 69:3,4,5,7,22 70:2 72:21 74:15 80:5,19 82:3 83:3 join 2:8 3:9 4:4

#### joining 4:4

Jones 10:8,9,10,21 30:7 37:1 41:22,24 42:1,2,4 43:6,7 44:2 49:23 53:11 55:4 56:22,23,24 58:3 60:18 70:21 71:5,17 89:10 96:16 97:12 105:3

Jones' 70:23 88:18

Jones's 71:20

Jonya 12:10 97:25

journey 62:1

journeys 63:15

**Joy** 13:7

judge 72:5 95:18

judge's 90:21

judicial 90:22

June 78:12

junior 52:25 53:2

jury 72:5

**justice** 21:4 55:20 61:18 64:4, 9,14 65:19

juvenile 54:21 55:1,20

**JW** 99:6 100:14 102:1

## κ

kicked 60:14 kids 28:3 51:16,18 52:12 55:1 94:11 killing 101:3 kind 13:1 20:9 38:9 48:5,17 56:8 99:12

kindness 59:14

Kirkwood 10:15

knowing 26:20 81:17

knowledge 104:14

knowledgeable 56:5 kudos 93:6,11 95:2 Kukula 14:7 29:10 Kyra 13:7

L lack 45:6 lady 101:23 Larcenies 16:25 Large 10:1 lastly 4:14 65:8,18 74:15 late 94:8 launch 66:14 launched 61:13 64:19 66:1 law 16:6 18:24 19:1 26:16 46:16,25 47:15,17 48:10,12, 17 71:7,12 78:25 83:17 85:3, 23 86:10 89:21,22 98:17 100:6 Lawrence 12:13 14:24 98:3,23 laws 4:19 73:15 76:8 lawyer 76:1 85:15 lawyers 82:2,3 85:15 89:7 layman's 81:15 lead 31:22 32:21 41:1 53:14 56:8 leader 49:1 leaders 51:19 55:2,8 leadership 30:16 64:2 67:16 71:21 leads 32:6,7 learn 51:20 55:9 learned 34:22 70:9 learning 68:1 74:6 leave 46:21,22 103:23 led 26:24 49:23 60:12



313.567.8100

legal 49:12 69:12,14 70:5 71:8 75:10 79:22 82:4 83:4 89:20 legislative 79:10,25 legitimacy 61:19 64:5,10,14 65:19 legitimate 86:5 Lena 13:6 lend 24:19 Lennard-gilbert's 61:3 Leonard 13:6 Leonard- 61:10 Leonard-gilbert 22:6 56:7 59:8 61:6,7,9 62:24 64:3 65:18 67:19 68:4,11,25 lessons 34:22 letter 80:13 let's 24:5 60:20 Levalley 12:21,23,24 13:4 14:1,3 16:14 19:16 20:10 21:21 22:22 23:25 24:4,11,24 25:6,18,24 26:18 27:10,17 28:13,19,23 30:2 53:13 level 54:11 58:17 59:2,5 87:20 104:8 levels 58:11 liability 73:23 liable 73:8 liaisons 62:17 63:4 liar 98:1 license 49:12 73:4 83:19 licensed 73:2 licenses 57:19 licensing 71:15 72:23 76:4 licensure 73:5 lies 95:20 lieutenant 5:15 12:11 13:8,10 23:4 48:23

# 02/18/2021 life 6:19,20 28:6 46:23 52:10, 11 53:23 55:18 57:8,13 **lift** 5:11 58:12 light 21:23 26:12 33:9 42:10, 12,18,21 Lights 42:16 likelihood 37:20 limited 68:18 Linda 8:22 39:9 58:24 78:21 88:14 lineup 15:20 41:5 link 3:16 linking 43:22 links 3:8 Lions 51:25 Lisonya 12:15 list 3:9 13:14 42:20,25 43:1,5 71:13,16 listed 35:3 listened 29:6 listening 6:8 10:12 43:10 61:23 82:5 99:15 listens 102:21 literally 6:8 literature 48:4 litigation 20:24,25 90:7 live 9:13 62:16 92:20,22 lives 7:1 10:20 62:6 99:14,21 101:12 living 58:18 local 47:16 48:7 58:11 located 62:11 location 33:16 42:21 locations 8:9 42:23 lock 10:18 locked 104:20

NAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

locks 10:17 18:17 logging 2:14 loitering 18:21 Lomax 91:21 loneliness 6:24 long 27:1 69:18 71:12 77:3,4, 11 longer 19:2 27:23 78:20 86:4, 5 looked 43:12 103:21 lose 96:10 lost 52:7,10,11 88:1 lot 19:20 26:3,23 27:2 28:24 49:24 53:5 56:18 57:5 84:17 90:8 99:25 lots 75:1 love 6:1 9:12,20 30:4,6 92:6, 20,22 94:18 loved 94:18 **lower** 25:4 lowest 17:9 lynching 101:3 Lyondell 13:7 Μ

made 11:3 18:23 20:11,20 35:13 43:16 67:13 68:6 102:17
Madrigal 12:16 14:25
main 60:14
maintained 39:10
maintaining 93:6
major 53:23 101:2
majority 76:10
make 2:6 3:24 15:10,11 18:2 19:7,12 21:6,8,23 25:2,9,15 36:12 43:9,13 55:5,13 57:13,

15 67:22 69:25 77:13 78:1 82:18 83:22 88:6,9 102:25 106:8 makes 28:25 94:13 103:11 making 8:15 10:22 27:3 57:12 61:21 103:12 male 32:12 52:18 males 33:25 38:15 man 26:7 45:19 57:10 60:17. 22 95:19 management 34:23 manager 33:22 mandated 96:5 manner 30:13 72:24 75:22 **mantra** 67:4 marathon 63:9 March 17:10 93:17 margins 99:25 Maria 96:15 Marie 14:8.11 Marsha 92:3 Martin 10:10 29:16 marvelous 8:11.13 mask 94:22 masked 2:7 match 31:22 32:8,21 39:7,14, 21 40:4,5 41:9,20,21 43:13 matched 40:3 matches 32:6,13,16,23 40:8 43:11,24 matching 40:18 material 90:10 materials 36:11 matter 15:11,12 30:14 45:24 81:9 83:17 84:15 89:9 98:16, 22 99:3 101:12 103:6,15

02/18/2021 matters 98:24 Mayor 60:12 101:19 Mayor's 8:24 10:6 Mcginnis 92:8 Mclean 69:13 71:8 75:11,15 76:22 78:7 80:19 83:5,8 84:8, meander 79:25 meaningful 7:17 79:13 80:1 media 18:16 32:4 38:3 40:7 median 33:9 medical 98:12 medication 56:10 **meet** 53:10 71:22 meeting 2:2,6,15,18 3:7,20,25 4:4,5,8,20,22,25 5:9 6:6,10,23 7:6,8,11 10:13 12:6 14:8,17 18:22 20:12 39:1 70:23 71:18 88:4,17 93:16 99:11 104:4,7, 10 106:10,23 meetings 2:3 15:25 18:8,11 47:21 71:17 86:3 93:15 102:22 106:10 Melanie 97:23 102:17 106:8 member 49:2 52:15 members 10:12 12:8 17:7,12 43:10 48:16 52:7 57:1,16 58:2 59:10 61:21,24,25 62:4,8,13, 15,19,20,24 63:2,15,19,20 65:11,23 66:17 74:13 79:20 86:17 88:15 97:24 99:22 100:9,11 101:9 103:17 membership 75:4 memo 78:15 90:7 **men** 8:1 mental 55:24,25 56:3 61:19 62:25 63:12 64:5,17,18,22,23, 24 65:2,4 68:16 mentally 61:22

13

mention 54:15 57:17 66:21 104:12 mentioned 13:20 16:7 18:15 35:1 43:23 54:5 57:17,18 58:8 mentor 56:9 mentoring 51:6 mentors 50:25 55:18 59:5 mentorship 57:3 mentorships 50:23 **menu** 96:3 message 2:4 met 71:19 100:3 metric 35:10 Michael 13:7 71:6 Michelle 99:7 100:16 Michigan 47:18 73:1,3 84:16 87:19 microphone 4:25 61:3,4 middle 54:11 56:17 **Mike** 60:13 Mildred 8:6 MIN 95:8 mind 25:3 106:8 Minister 94:6 95:7.8 Minnesota 44:6 minute 50:15 102:7 minutes 3:7 4:14 11:18.23 17:5 69:17 100:8 103:21 miscellaneous 34:6 misconduct 95:11,16,17,21, 23,24 96:6,13 missed 13:13 missing 101:17,20,22,24 **mission** 63:23 mistake 96:17

misuse 34:17,18

19

NAISSANCE hansonreporting.com 313.567.8100

mixture 51:18,21 55:2 mobile 4:11 models 46:13 moment 27:17 64:17 **moments** 17:18 monetize 79:18 money 37:3 Monica 96:16 monitor 47:19 71:7 monitoring 12:5 month 18:11 42:21 months 23:18 26:10 98:5 mother 94:10,13 motion 11:17 12:2 98:17 102:6,18,25 103:7 105:4,7 106:14,17 motor 17:1 move 7:1 9:11 14:18 16:12 24:7 29:2,20 30:25 41:11 44:14 46:1 60:7,20,24 84:4

89:8,13 97:23 99:20 103:25 **moved** 11:12,14,20,24 47:7,8 106:15,17

**movie** 29:6

**moving** 12:3 17:6 32:24 33:15 45:12 60:25 74:8 91:6

MPOS 8:14 48:6

**mugshot** 37:1,2,5 40:5 45:10 **mugshots** 37:11,13,14 40:3,6, 18 45:7

multi-layered 38:5

multiple 33:6

murder 32:1 98:10,21

**muted** 4:5 5:18 61:4 93:25 97:4,5

mutual 64:11

mutually 33:1

02/18/2021

Ν

Nabid 89:21 NACOLES 16:5 67:13,15,16 Nakia 20:23 names 13:15,16 44:19 national 16:6 63:22 naturally 68:21 nature 37:22 74:9 necessarily 37:4,10 43:20 necessity 36:24 needed 10:23 59:16 96:9 needing 36:19 negative 55:8 75:1 neglect 98:24 neighborhood 9:22 57:4 65:12 nervous 53:1 network 64:21 65:14 **news** 3:14 26:13 38:4 nexus 47:20,24 55:20 74:19 night 59:15 94:23 106:21 **Nobel** 101:12 nominated 101:12 nomination 96:6 non- 2:25 non-fatal 16:20 non-sworn 62:3,4 63:2,19 non-violent 65:3 none@none.com 2:13 **normal** 23:20 notation 88:6 note 2:3 5:1 16:11 88:9 noted 67:10

notice 45:9 84:21 notification 48:22 84:1 notifications 48:20 50:1 notified 84:23 notify 83:19 nourish 64:12 NPO 10:14 13:6 NPOS 13:20 number 3:3 17:9 21:18 22:2 32:5 33:3 38:16 42:22 57:19 66:12 84:20 89:18,20,22,24 91:18 98:19 104:21 numbers 2:7 49:21 59:11 numerous 59:11 nutrition 63:12

## 0

observation 19:12 observed 19:14 obtain 51:11 82:24 obtained 50:4 obtaining 62:9 **obvious** 67:25 occurrence 49:2 occurring 19:13 **OCI** 66:14 98:15,21,23 **October** 61:13 off-screen 69:23 offenders 21:3,11 73:17 offense 21:10 offenses 34:12 47:20 offer 17:14 58:1 offered 17:14 57:5 70:20 offering 29:13 offhand 42:17,20

20

NRENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100 office 2:22,23 3:1 5:13 8:24 10:6 12:24 14:9,23 17:24,25 20:15 21:7,14 22:5 25:7,16 41:7 61:10,12 63:6 66:7,21,23 67:1 71:21 88:18 98:22 103:13

officer 13:9 26:7 31:12 52:19, 24 65:3

officers 8:14 9:22 10:15 13:20 18:4 19:20 27:1,22 28:1,22 36:19 50:24 52:2 53:4,16 59:6 62:17 65:12 66:11 68:2 75:25 91:19,25 94:9 96:19 101:6

officials 14:4 58:16

on-going 5:8

one-to-one 33:2

open 36:1 53:24 60:9 74:11 106:10

**opened** 9:1 60:11

operate 73:18 78:8 79:1 88:23,24,25

operating 72:24 95:22

operation 79:7

operations 12:25 46:6 70:9 73:24

operator 83:14,17 84:22 85:1

opinion 81:14 82:4,6 90:6

opportunity 5:13 24:19 38:8 57:7 67:13,25 69:9,11,25 77:16,25 80:1 81:9 82:17 88:16

opposed 11:17 12:2 56:8

opting 74:6

option 4:24

options 4:12

oral 3:24

order 5:10 18:1 79:18 87:22 90:21 99:1 104:15 106:7

ordered 71:5,17 95:19

### 02/18/2021

ordinance 19:4,7,11,12,20,21 20:3,6 70:20 71:4,14,24 72:10,18,20 74:1 76:1,5 77:1, 8,19 80:2 85:4,10 86:12,13 87:13 88:16,20

ordinances 4:19

orientation 63:23

origin 63:22

originally 20:12

Osborne 51:14

outcome 18:8

outline 89:2

outreach 20:15 21:19 47:25 48:1,8,13,24,25 49:22 52:2 53:11 59:12 65:9

outreaching 47:2

outstanding 9:22 13:23 14:14 69:2 70:15

overly 76:5

overnight 9:3

oversee 34:25

oversight 15:23,24 16:6

overwhelming 95:15

owing 99:3

owner 83:15,16 84:3,8,25

owners 83:11

### Ρ

package 105:10
packet 5:3 36:12 89:25
pages 80:18
paid 34:12 86:6
pairs 65:2
pandemic 17:11 23:10 50:2,3
66:16 87:24
panelists 2:10 4:24 91:7

panels 35:5 panhandle 19:6 panhandlers 18:21 panhandling 25:25 paranoia 71:15 pardon 92:11 Parish 80:12 parked 83:11.24 Parker 78:22 parking 84:16 Parnell 94:5,25 95:1 Parnell's 94:16 Parrish 13:7 71:11 82:13 part 16:23 17:3,4 19:2 23:6,12 31:2,6 35:1 43:7 45:22,23 57:25 60:10,11 68:21 73:13 75:6 79:9.16.17 80:8 85:7 86:5 91:4 participant 52:7 participants 3:25 4:4 91:4 participate 55:14 66:12 80:2 104:10,15 participated 8:10 52:9 63:8 79:12 participating 10:22 95:9,13 parties 71:6,22 77:19 partner 51:25 67:3 74:4 75:23 89:1 partnered 65:10 partnering 48:6 partners 46:18 64:19 partnership 46:15,16 61:20 64:6,17 72:8 pass 20:21

passed 5:12 8:8

**past** 34:5,23 45:10 51:2 74:18, 21 86:23



path 46:24 49:16 79:25 pathetic 94:12 patient 15:16 82:10 patrol 65:12 Patti 14:7 29:10 **Patty** 14:13 Paula 5:11 pause 53:20 80:7,8 94:2 pay 29:5,9 70:13 73:21 peace 7:8 48:2 101:13 peacekeeper 48:17 peer 61:16,23 62:3,7,8,12,16, 22 pending 20:24 people 3:13,14 9:2 15:19 20:8 21:19 27:20 28:1,2,6,21 29:5 38:15 44:21,24 51:9,23 53:15 55:19 57:3,20,21 59:1,13 85:19 94:17 100:24 101:11, 20,22 104:13 105:17 people's 9:23 40:15 99:14 perceived 63:20 percent 50:11,14 percentage 50:13 perception 75:1 Perez 71:6 **perfect** 28:25 performance 73:9 95:11 performed 48:22 period 74:11 permanent 50:6 permission 22:24 75:9 98:4 permit 77:10,11 78:9 79:2,7 85:13,22 permits 74:8 78:9,16,19,23,24 Perry 5:15 6:7

# **Pershing** 51:15 54:15,17 person 14:21 15:9 19:8 25:1 27:22 28:15 29:20 39:21,22 40:6,8 43:21 45:18 53:21 54:19 57:6 66:19 85:1 97:4 103:5 104:19 person's 19:3 40:6 45:1 personal 62:6 personally 15:8 30:20 personnel 86:23,25 103:8 perspective 81:15 petition 96:10 petitions 96:6 Petty 99:6,8,10 100:13 101:1 phenomenal 53:12,14 **phone** 2:6,7 5:9 76:20 84:20 phones 4:21 **photo** 39:14,15,16,19 40:3,8, 17 41:5,21 43:21 45:5,15 **photos** 32:9 physical 62:25 63:12 physically 61:22 picking 76:20 **picture** 39:21 pictures 37:17,21,22 **pill** 73:1 **pilot** 64:6,18,24 place 7:12 19:17 23:9 24:1 42:13 65:17 73:16 76:8,9,17 77:11,22 83:11 84:10 placement 49:11 places 26:3 99:18,19 plagued 74:23 planning 51:4 plans 44:17 66:22 platforms 2:19

02/18/2021

play 28:8 70:13 pleased 91:5 pleasure 69:8 PLLC 89:21 pm 3:23 4:12 93:17 pocket 98:13 point 16:17 50:13 55:17 80:24 81:1,18 82:18,24 83:12,13 84:2,6,17 87:23 88:12,19 95:18 105:9 106:7,13 poison 73:1 **police** 2:2,24 3:22 5:24 7:24 9:4,20,22 12:12 13:9,10,12 15:21 17:15 18:18 20:7 22:19 28:1,14,22 29:17 32:3 44:22, 25 45:8 52:17,19,24 53:15 57:25 58:1 61:19 63:3,5,10 64:2,4,9,10,13,14 65:4,11,12, 19,20 66:1,3,11 70:1,18 71:25 72:2,6,12,15 73:16 74:16,19 75:1,2 77:6 78:8,16,21 79:4, 11,23 83:18,21,25 84:22,23 86:1 87:14 91:22 92:5 93:16 94:9,12,15,18 95:10,15,17,23, 24 96:5,9,12,19 98:9 101:6,15 police-community 65:21 66:8 police-directed 83:10 policies 2:4,16,18,20 26:18 35:7 **policy** 3:8 26:15 34:15,17,21 41:11,12 91:1 100:6 Pontiac 24:3 population 8:25 portion 22:1 69:11 70:4 portions 75:7 positive 17:8,9 18:7 27:24

36:18 50:23 55:18 64:1

possession 98:11

possibly 59:13

post 88:17

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com 313.567.8100

posted 3:17 4:19 32:3 84:10 90:25 postpone 66:18 potential 44:22 Potts 59:7 93:6,11 poverty 58:13,18 power 72:2,4,14 86:15 87:5 powerful 7:17 36:13 powers 72:17 **PPE** 51:7 practice 63:21 65:25 practices 34:22 72:9 87:18,21 praise 7:13 pray 5:23,24,25 6:2,4,6,9,16 7:8,14 prayer 5:22 6:16,17 7:17,18 15:18 28:9 prayers 5:16 96:19 praying 6:16 pre- 23:7 precinct 10:14 18:4,9 20:12, 16 32:5 47:9,21 48:24 49:2 53:5 54:9 56:13 62:12 66:2,4, 9,13,22,25 67:12 92:6 93:6,9, 10 95:2 96:18 precincts 18:10.18 29:15 47:7 48:7 66:15 91:20 precipitously 50:12 predicated 43:15 prefer 77:7 prejudicial 73:10 prepared 24:14 31:14 34:11 69:24 75:12 80:13 present 9:16 14:8,9 25:7,8 61:11 69:15 72:22 75:11,12 78:1 84:9 88:4 103:20 presentation 20:11,16,20 21:7,24 22:5 31:2,6 36:11,13

55:2 67:9 69:25 presentations 3:7 54:11 presented 18:3 21:14 22:3 82:13 presenting 82:13 Presently 73:1 President 16:9 70:21,23 71:5, 17,20 88:18 89:10 press 4:1 63:9 95:9 pressure 96:12 pretty 17:22 55:23 59:24 99:16 103:9 prevail 84:11 prevent 4:22 45:12 48:5 prevented 44:24 prevention 50:17 previous 45:13 70:22 previously 34:12 priest 96:1 primary 96:8 primer 51:10 principals 51:17 55:3,5,11,12 prior 78:14 82:25 priority 17:5 prison 95:20 prisoners 26:16 27:8 private 70:17 83:1,9 privileged 70:3 Prize 101:13 **pro** 32:9 39:14,15 40:2,8,17 41:21 43:21 45:5,15 proactive 58:4 problem 38:20 102:2 problem-solve 65:23 problems 71:14 74:24 76:4

NAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

02/18/2021

procedures 26:19 87:18,22 proceed 26:1,5 proceedings 90:8 process 16:8 23:21 37:5 40:2 41:3 53:7 60:10 77:10,12,13, 14 79:10.13.16.17.22.25 85:16,22,25 86:1,6,8 89:11 91:5 103:7,8,11 104:14 105:2, 22 processes 76:15 productive 57:16 professional 4:17 62:5 professionals 70:7 75:18 77:6 program 10:18,23 18:17 22:3 28:10 29:16 46:13 47:6 48:4 50:21,24 51:12,22 52:1,9,10, 14 53:3,13 54:5,21,23,25 55:7,14,25 56:6,11,12 57:1,22 64:18 67:10 100:22 programs 50:16 51:6 56:17,18 prohibit 19:17 prohibition 84:16 prohibits 19:5 project 18:16 33:9 promise 46:19,20,24 Promote 63:25 promotion 98:25 prompt 2:11 75:22 prompted 2:9 proms 51:8 promulgated 72:13 79:16 prong 65:9,17 proper 76:22 78:17

procedural 61:18 64:4,9,14

65:18

procedure 26:15

properly 11:14,24 78:23 106:17

property 17:3 34:6 70:17 73:22 83:1,9,11,15,16 84:25

proposal 71:14 74:3 78:2

proposed 70:20 74:1 76:25 77:19 80:2 87:5

prosecute 21:15 25:10

prosecuted 21:3,12

prosecution 25:14

prosecutions 35:8,10

prosecutor's 17:24,25 21:14 25:16 41:7

prosecutors 47:17

protection 42:12

protests 17:18,20

protocol 85:25

proud 57:12

proved 71:15

provide 3:11 33:17 38:9 42:20,22 46:22 48:15 50:22 62:14,18,19 63:25 83:20 88:17,20 89:4 95:22

provided 19:19,25 31:14,15 32:25 34:4 35:25 40:13 50:1 70:21 76:4 77:15 84:1 90:6 91:21

providing 10:17 55:18 61:21 64:8

provision 71:15 72:23 84:11, 21

prudent 26:10,12

**public** 3:19,20,23 4:3,13,15 14:7,13 20:15 38:4 43:14 93:18 95:10,12 100:2 104:16 106:7

public's 95:14

published 35:18

pulling 39:21

punish 73:16

02/18/2021 purchase 73:20 purged 39:14,17 41:21 73:14 purging 41:17 purpose 95:15 purposes 70:18 **pushed** 104:4 pushing 58:12,17 100:10 **put** 5:22 18:16 23:8,13,18 60:22 65:16 84:17 91:7

putting 28:6 38:2,3

### Q

**Q&a** 45:25 qualifies 25:14 quality 62:2 73:20 Quantifiable 38:5 quarantine 17:9 quarantined 62:13 **quarter** 66:23 queries 44:18 question 17:16 18:20 20:10, 22 21:2,5 24:12,13 26:6,22 28:2 30:11 33:15,18 36:15 38:12,13 39:3 41:16 42:9

44:1,5,14,17 54:20 55:22 58:7 80:16.23 81:7.10 82:22 83:5 84:14 85:7 87:23

questioning 40:15 98:2

questions 18:19 21:22 22:2,8 25:24 31:15,17 32:24 33:8,12 34:3 35:25 36:1 53:17 54:5 59:1 67:6 69:19,20 77:23 80:4,10 87:12 88:7,9,11 89:4 99:24 100:2

quick 59:1 72:22

quickly 106:6

quorum 11:8,9

race 32:10 61:17 62:1 63:17, 22 Race/ethnicity 33:25 racist 101:6 Raimi 71:11 raise 4:1,10 87:12 105:9 raised 18:20 24:12 103:5 105:10 raising 93:24 ran 44:25 range 46:17 rate 58:10,15 rates 37:18 rating 37:19 rationale 88:21 reach 2:21 6:17 7:4 67:3 68:21 104:9 reached 66:25 104:13 reaching 104:3,13 read 41:11 68:8 69:24 74:3 86:13,14,23 88:16 99:12 ready 49:24 real 20:3 76:3 85:23 102:15 reason 45:5 73:6 75:4 reasonable 19:8 recall 78:13 79:10 receive 3:14 16:7 17:15 21:13 29:5 47:14 91:1 105:16 received 5:1 29:4 36:12 50:5 58:9 80:17 82:21 86:7 89:22 receiving 58:15 recent 17:19

R

recently 17:21 18:3 33:13 44:6 64:19

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com 313.567.8100

recognition 17:16 22:7 31:3, 13,20 32:19 33:4,7,19,21 34:25 35:6,9,13 36:17 38:14 39:18 44:7.8 45:1 89:18 99:11 100:25 101:5,8,10 recognize 13:17 14:19 79:9 recognized 101:14 recommendations 55:6,13 recommended 28:10 recording 12:6 recoup 79:18 recovered 50:8 recruiters 28:21 recruiting 13:10,12 27:20 recruitment 12:12 53:16 **recuse** 99:2 red 42:16 76:12 reduction 46:13 refer 89:16 reference 82:21 referring 83:8 refrain 4:17 refreshed 47:5 refusal 95:24 regard 17:19 18:16,19 20:24 21:16,25 registered 73:2 regulate 70:24 regulations 76:8 regulatory 76:16 rehabilitative 58:1 **Reid** 13:11 46:2,3,4 49:15,18 100:21 reject 25:15 **related** 50:12.15 70:8 76:25 79:4 95:10 99:3

02/18/2021 relates 36:22 41:17 59:12 80:16 relations 12:10 20:12,17 22:6 38:3 61:11,12,14,15,16,18 63:7,16 66:7,21,24 relationship 33:3 55:4 91:23 100:7 relationships 64:7,12 65:20 release 18:16 20:23 21:1 released 20:25 relegated 99:25 relevant 4:19 36:15 relied 73:5 religion 63:22 relinguish 87:6 relocation 49:13 reluctantly 71:12 **rely** 37:4 relying 71:21 remain 4:16 71:23 77:8 79:2 83:24 86:2 remaining 32:11 remains 70:15 remarks 69:10,24 74:15 remember 4:9 reminded 24:13 reminder 2:15 reminders 2:3 4:3 reminding 27:7 remove 77:1,10,12 83:16 84:5 removed 84:6,18,19,25 85:1 101:3,10 removing 49:12 renewal 78:11 **renewed** 78:10 repair 64:12 65:24

**repeat** 21:10 73:12

repeated 71:10

**report** 14:14,18 16:12,15 17:17 22:1,7,19 23:13 24:16, 24 31:3,7,13,23 33:15 34:4,6, 9,11,13,14 35:12,18 43:5,8 44:16 45:22,24 54:3 56:25 57:5 58:25 62:9 66:9 68:6,22 89:19 90:6,17 99:11 100:25 101:1 103:6

reported 22:23 33:4 34:12

reporter 12:6

reporting 34:10 69:2 76:22 87:23 90:16

reports 3:7 22:2 34:5,6 89:24

represent 15:14 70:3,6 73:19 89:7 100:2

representative 14:9,12 99:1

representatives 14:5

represented 15:12 86:3

representing 12:12 14:12

request 3:23,25 35:13 98:25

requested 90:5

requests 6:8 34:19,20 71:11 99:13

require 33:11

required 23:3

requirements 76:5

requires 2:19

requiring 82:24

rescued 94:10

research 80:11

reserve 70:5

residents 73:23 74:2,7,25

resolve 71:25

resource 63:18,19

resources 3:5 61:21 62:18,19 64:8 65:16 101:5



respect 8:25 9:12 39:7 86:22 respected 42:14 respectful 4:17 respond 48:13 59:16 81:9 85:7 103:9 responded 30:13 45:25 103:9 responding 48:11 **response** 17:5 24:7,14 33:13 58:4 61:20 65:5 80:22 83:2 84:13 88:8 89:23 101:18 responses 80:16 100:4 responsibilities 48:10 86:21 responsibility 15:14 72:12 85:10 **responsible** 47:24 81:22 85:20 restorative 65:25 result 2:18 4:8 resulting 32:6 35:9 **resumes** 86:24 retaliation 7:6 48:5 retired 5:11 6:6 retrieve 74:25 returns 84:23 reverence 6:18 **Reverend** 30:4 91:8 review 70:23 85:10,16 87:4 revisit 67:9 revitalization 64:20 65:10 revoked 72:24 73:5 **revolving** 54:21,24 rhetorical 88:13 ride 26:13 ride-a-longs 53:5 ridiculous 91:14 road 18:25 19:15

02/18/2021 **ROB** 93:14 94:4,25 95:7 96:14,21,23 97:1,6,11 99:5,9 100:14,16,18 102:1,4 robberies 16:21 robbery 32:1 Robert 12:8 role 28:8 33:22 75:23 77:3 101:16 103:4 roll 13:25 76:3 Ron 13:9 **Roo** 96:16,21,22,24 97:2,7,9, 13,15,17,19,22 98:15 **roof** 9:6 Rosalia 12:15 **roster** 60:4 rounds 65:4 routed 21:3 routinely 73:20 **rule** 98:10 **ruled** 19:2 rules 72:13 73:15 79:15 ruling 18:22 90:22 **rulings** 98:12 run 25:3 44:17 runaways 101:24 Russell 13:8 22:4 46:6,8 47:11,13 48:25 50:20 51:23 52:23 53:9 54:3,7,15,23 55:12 56:2,3 57:23 58:8,19 59:4,21 60:8,19,22 100:20 Russell's 55:17 S safe 18:17 63:25 65:22 75:22

94:19 safeguard 63:24 safety 10:17 14:7,13 19:8 20:5

74:1 sat 86:2 satisfied 102:24 103:13 satisfy 15:9 Savage 12:17 save 10:19 37:22 94:13 saves 37:23 saving 37:3 savings 36:19 scene 39:15 40:17 48:14 83:14 scenes 48:11,15,19 100:1 schedule 21:23 31:4 scheduled 62:10 63:3 66:14 scheme 76:4 95:20 scholarships 51:11 **school** 51:8,13,16,17 52:16 53:1,2 54:10,11,15 55:3,5 schoolers 51:3 schools 51:18 54:6.8 55:13 56:18 100:23 screen 4:10 37:16,17 67:1 search 33:5.6 37:13 39:5 77:14 searches 31:19 32:13,19,25 33:4 35:12 43:22 44:18 searching 79:6 sec 93:21 seconds 17:6 Secretary 14:20 89:14 secrets 74:6 securing 10:19 28:1 **sees** 74:23 select 78:18 selected 51:16,17 66:13 85:19 send 27:7 43:1 93:5



senior 12:15 91:19 seniors 9:23 29:19 51:9 91:24 92:6,14 93:10 sense 28:25 77:13 sentences 21:13 separate 56:11 83:9 separated 28:15 September 67:15 sergeant 5:11 6:7 10:15 13:11 sergeants 59:11 serve 48:17 77:2 **served** 70:16 **service** 48:8 65:8 103:13 services 4:18 46:9,22 47:2 48:9 52:7 58:2 64:23 65:16 serving 28:15 sessions 50:24 51:6 set 51:4 88:25 sets 76:14 settle 102:20 103:17 settled 96:24 102:22 settling 71:10 72:5 severe 21:13 sexual 16:18 32:1 63:23 shame 98:16 **share** 14:19 15:9 28:10 33:8 52:14 68:9,16 80:18 81:13 shared 10:4 15:6 28:16 Sharon 94:5 95:1 she'll 84:18 shed 26:25 28:24 sheriffs 8:6 **shift** 77:12 shifts 13:21 shine 26:12

02/18/2021 Shirley 9:9 30:23,24 shoot 32:4 shooting 48:14 shootings 16:20 50:14 **short** 70:25 **shot** 94:20,21 shouldering 72:11 **shout-out** 9:21 91:18 92:2,7 shoveled 93:9 **shoveling** 9:23 94:16 95:3 **show** 36:13 57:15 83:14,25 85:2 91:22 92:6 showing 6:1 shows 29:7 31:23 32:12,17 84:3 shut 71:16 **sick** 6:5.22 side 18:25 19:15 46:19,23 47:12 50:6 59:12 61:14,15,16, 18 63:16 64:3,14 69:14 91:22 sidewalk 20:1 28:4 sidewalks 19:19,23,24 26:3 **sight** 95:12 sign 3:15,21 17:11 18:25 19:4, 15 signage 84:17 signal 42:16 signatures 96:9 significant 70:8 74:7 significantly 37:18 signs 21:19 silence 4:21 similar 2:13 **simple** 76:20 98:16,17 simply 74:4 76:5,11 77:13,21 79:24 83:10 85:4 91:25

27 simultaneously 38:2 **sincere** 70:25 single 84:14 99:14 singular 95:12 sins 6:15 sir 12:18,22 13:4 14:3 16:14 22:17 24:5 25:6,18,22 27:11 28:18 29:1,24 30:12 31:10,18 44:1,2,4 55:23 57:23 58:6,19, 22 61:9 69:16 75:14 78:5 87:10 93:17 94:4 97:21 102:11,18 105:17 106:4 sisterhood 50:17,19,20 51:13, 24 52:8 54:18 55:18 56:9 59:7 sit 37:13 77:16.17 85:17 **sitting** 83:18 situation 17:6 18:5,7 20:6 37:12 84:8 situations 19:22 20:1 44:20 57:4 Slappy 10:14 54:17 59:8 92:7 slavery 29:8 **Sloan** 12:15 14:25 Smartsheet 3:21,25 4:9 smile 37:7 **Smith** 94:5,7 Snapchat 36:25 **snow** 9:23 10:6 13:24 19:25 93:9 94:16 95:4 social 32:4 40:7 48:9 **society** 57:16 software 34:18 35:6 37:18 38:17.24 40:9 solution 77:14,22 79:24 solutions 28:17 solve 38:7 somebody's 20:4



**Sonia** 13:8 46:8 sort 82:14 85:24 101:7 sounds 4:22 source 33:7 **space** 84:9 100:4 speak 3:23 4:15 22:14 27:16 36:8 69:12 97:19,21 102:11 speaker 4:14,16 56:21 60:14 93:19 94:4 96:21 100:15 102:4,5 speakers 93:19 96:14 99:5 speaking 67:24 69:3 81:20 102:16 **special** 46:8 47:15 **specialist** 12:9 20:15 65:2 specialists 33:24 65:6 **specific** 18:19 21:22 26:21 32:24 104:24 105:18 specifically 76:9 80:17 speech 4:7 19:3 **spent** 95:19 spoken 29:10 71:20 74:4 squad 17:25 squashed 99:25 staff 4:15 5:21 7:25 12:7,18 13:2 14:18,23 15:3,10,15 33:24 38:14,15,23 43:4 61:4 71:7 73:21 89:24 stage 98:8 stand 19:3 74:4 106:20 standing 7:18 19:15 26:7 75:24 Stanley 13:8 star 4:2,11 start 4:5 90:11 97:8 started 17:11 18:8,13,18 66:4 state 5:25 14:8,12 21:15 47:16

02/18/2021 58:11 68:17 72:25 73:2 75:17 76:9 78:25 84:15 87:19,20 stated 7:21 25:23 30:12 55:1 89:9 101:1 statements 15:10,11 states 26:16 statistical 49:18 stats 16:16 status 32:12 33:10 35:20,21, 24 statute 76:9 83:12,13 stay 39:16 92:1 steadily 104:13 steal 23:15,22 **step** 53:23 **steps** 41:4 Stewart 12:11 14:21 Stiham 69:13 71:9 75:11 77:24 78:4,6 80:20 **stipend** 29:4,9 stole 23:14 stolen 83:23 84:24 stop 28:14 stopped 27:2 store 49:24 stories 35:5 story 52:14 strategy 47:18 street 19:22 20:8 25:25 26:2 28:4 37:25 38:8 streets 19:18 20:2 28:2 strength 6:20 63:24 strengthen 64:12 strengthening 64:7 stress 62:21 stricken 88:22

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

strife 7:7 stripped 72:18 74:10 strive 64:11 strong 53:4 65:19 strongest 35:7 strongly 87:3 struck 76:24 struggling 8:12 **student** 52:18 students 54:17 stuff 39:11 90:9 subject 45:24 71:5 84:10 90:22 subjective 74:9 submission 96:7 subscribe 3:13 subsequent 43:15 71:18 substance 15:5 suburbs 81:22 success 52:14 53:23 sudden 76:14 suffering 64:22 sufficient 40:22 suggest 41:10 suggested 67:13 sum 74:15 summer 16:10 74:18 summit 51:1 66:1,8,10,11,19 67:11 91:3 summits 51:2 65:21 66:3 Supervising 12:14 supply 17:25 support 5:16 12:24 14:16 15:2 23:5 30:8 48:11,16 61:16,21, 23 62:4,7,8,12,15,16,19,22 63:4 64:8 73:12 86:9 100:11

supportive 50:23

supports 62:3,18

supposed 25:2 29:22 36:23 38:1 72:7

surely 7:17

surrounding 25:13 98:21

survival 72:10

suspect 38:8 43:21 45:15

suspect's 40:10

suspects' 33:6

sustainable 65:16

swing 50:18

switch 91:13

**sworn** 33:24 59:3 62:3,4 63:2, 19 68:2

**system** 21:4 25:4 39:14,18 44:19 45:6,11,13 54:22 55:1 79:2,7 95:23 101:6

### Т

table 71:3 96:2 102:18 tailored 77:20 takes 84:3 taking 40:16 53:14 56:8 talk 29:20 46:11,15 47:2,11 49:19 50:18 64:16 69:14 92:15 105:1 talked 49:5 57:20 87:16 talking 6:9 11:2 81:21 90:8 91:24 92:19 101:8 Tamari 52:19 tamping 74:22 Tanesha 98:8 tangible 38:11 **Tanisha** 98:10 **Tanya** 61:7

02/18/2021

tape 76:12 target 62:10

targeted 47:19 50:21 73:10

tattoos 49:12

**Tawana** 99:6

taxes 73:22

**TCF** 9:1

team 16:9 34:23 47:22 48:13, 24,25 49:1,2,25 52:2 53:11 59:10,13 65:1,9

teams 13:18 49:22 50:23 63:13

technical 34:10

technology 12:5 31:20 34:17, 23 35:13 36:18,23 37:3,12 89:18 99:17 101:4

telephone 4:2 104:21

telephonic 99:3

tells 83:16

Temple 91:21

temporary 50:5

Teresa 12:9

term 78:11 81:15

terms 4:18 5:7,9 13:17 15:13, 15,20,22,24 35:2,10 36:19 80:10,11 91:7 104:23,25

tested 17:7

testimonies 63:14

testimony 70:22

testing 17:8

tests 17:9

**Texas** 5:25

text 81:7

thanked 94:12

thankful 73:14 75:4

that's 100:8

the11th 54:9 thefts 17:2

theme 15:22

theory 73:17

thing 8:13 26:10,12,14 29:23 49:5,8 50:10 66:20 76:11,19 88:24 90:4 92:6

things 6:23 23:9 27:2 37:25 40:12 41:5 44:20 45:1 49:4 51:5,9 55:21 62:7,22 70:8 77:24 81:16 85:20

thinking 90:11

Thomas 13:9

thought 10:17 27:20 90:16,19 92:16

thousands 37:11,21

threat 32:3 74:5

threaten 72:10

tickets 20:7

ties 29:12

Tiffany 12:11

time 4:21,25 5:10 9:10 17:5 18:10 20:23 33:12 37:22,23 38:2 41:19 53:17 61:4 67:6,20 69:12,20 70:4 71:2 73:5,6,25 75:13 77:11 79:19 80:10 81:4 82:16 84:3 87:17 89:5 92:3 93:2 96:20 103:12

timeframe 5:14

timeline 35:17

timely 30:13 105:13,15

times 13:23 60:16 99:25

timestamp 104:7

timing 23:7

tired 96:3

today 6:21 7:12 8:7,10,18 10:13 12:6,8,18 16:16 17:12 22:3 26:6 28:9 46:6,11 69:15 70:11,19 87:24 91:18 98:7



102:18 Todd 13:4 98:1 told 20:13 **Tom** 69:13 71:9 75:11 77:23 tonight 7:11 **Tonya** 13:6 22:6 61:2,10 71:12 top 60:18 topic 21:17 topics 18:2 **Tosqui** 13:5 17:17 22:8 31:1, 10,11,19 33:11 34:19 36:10 37:6,9 38:10,16 39:13,23 41:16,18,19,25 42:19 43:8,18 44:9,15 45:3,22 total 17:3,8 totally 91:14 98:13 touch 6:11 83:25 touched 42:14 tow 71:6 75:17,18 76:18,20 81:21,24 82:24 83:10,16 84:12,21 85:1 86:4 87:24 towed 84:11 tower 72:24 74:9 78:21 79:5 towers 71:972:173:275:2 76:13 78:8 79:1,11,22 80:1 88:11 towing 69:370:3,8,9,13,14,16, 19,20,24 71:3 72:12,16,18,25 73:7,14,18 74:19 75:6,8 77:6 78:16,19,20,23 79:5,15,18 83:13 85:13 87:13,16,20,22 88:1,3 town 49:13 tows 70:17 track 35:10 trade 74:6 traditionally 62:12 traffic 8:15 20:4

02/18/2021 trafficking 21:16,18,20,25 24:21 trained 33:21 37:14,24 38:17, 20,23 65:3 training 23:2,3,4,6,8,9,11,13, 16,17,18,20,25 24:1 27:23,25 38:22 49:10 56:6 63:13 75:21 transfer 72:2 transferred 72:14 transform 58:2 transparency 98:20 transpired 68:2 trauma 52:3,5 traumatic 61:24 traveling 8:17 treat 81:22 84:8 treatment 26:15,19 27:8 62:2 63:21 trial 45:18 95:19 troublesome 72:19 trucks 81:21.24 true 2:12 22:23 86:22 truth 98:7 Tuesday 3:12 18:11 turn 71:13 79:22 80:3 twos 33:23 type 29:19 types 15:11 51:21 103:11 **Tyrone** 14:9,12 U unauthorized 84:18

**unfair** 15:4 unfinished 90:3 unfortunate 86:22 unhook 84:5 85:3 unifying 92:4,20 62:4,9,22 64:5,6 65:19 unite 29:24 units 47:22 **University** 63:1,8,11 unlawfully 78:17 unleash 74:18 unprotected 4:7 unrelated 98:24 unrest 74:17 unusual 13:24 update 22:7 updates 35:22 uphold 104:16 urge 87:4 utilize 27:21 100:22

#### V

vaccinated 17:13 vaccine 6:2 17:14 valid 82:11 validate 104:11 valuable 28:24 Vegas 63:9

understanding 23:3 64:11 80:21 81:16 90:15 92:19 95:14 96:4.8 99:17.20 undertaken 70:7 Underwood 12:10 14:22 97:25 unit 21:17,23 23:5 31:12 34:24 38:14,19 39:2 61:11,13,20,23

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com 313.567.8100

54:13 68:8 75:7,23 77:4 101:6

underlying 65:7

102:21

understand 15:6 29:5,25

vehicle 17:2 23:4 26:8 65:1 73:3 82:25 83:10,16,18,22,23 84:2,3,5,10,19,24 85:2 vehicles 74:25 versus 32:25 35:20 37:21 57:8 vice 21:17,23 Vice- 83:3 Vice-chair 7:22,23 8:2 11:21 24:17.19 36:3.6.9 37:2 38:10 41:13,14,16 67:8,23 80:6,15, 24 81:4 82:7,23 84:7 85:5,20 93:1,5,21,23 Vice-president 13:9 victim 38:9 40:17 victims 48:11.16 video 3:8 4:5,6,25 20:23,25 videos 63:12 Village 51:15 VIN 83:20 violate 78:25 violated 73:4 84:9 violating 4:17 violation 19:10,19 20:9 33:18 **violations** 34:16,18 violence 18:5 46:13,14 47:14, 19 48:12,21 49:8,16 50:10,12, 17 52:3,10 54:13 violent 16:23 21:3,11 34:4 38:8 45:13 virtual 2:3 3:19 93:16 visible 2:10 vision 61:12 87:2 **visit** 3:4,6 visitations 57:2 visuals 5:7 voice 63:20 79:6,13 80:1 88:5 volunteering 29:5

02/18/2021 vortex 26:11 vote 82:5 101:11 voted 101:10 103:19 **voting** 99:2 W wage 58:18 wages 73:21 wait 74:11 83:25 102:7 waiting 29:20 98:3 walk 20:2 walking 19:18,22 20:4,8 26:2, 3 28:2,3 walks 48:2 Wallace 20:23 wanted 27:16 47:4 50:15 52:23 53:9,10 54:20 79:18 81:13 90:20 91:17 92:2,7 105:20 warning 95:23 warrant 33:10 40:20,22 41:6 45:17 warranting 56:1 waste 81:4 watch 74:4 Wayne 8:6 21:14 25:15 64:21 95:18 98:11 ways 88:22 weapon 47:20 weapons 10:19 wear 94:22 weather 7:3 9:7 10:7 13:24 website 3:4,6,18 4:1 96:7 Wednesday 18:12 week 5:16 16:7 17:5 18:9,13 24:13 29:22 42:10 59:23 62:8 89:17,19 90:1,16 91:1,6,13

95:18 99:14 101:23 102:3,15 103:19 105:10 week's 18:22 weekly 3:9 5:3 34:9,14 47:21 50:24 89:18,25 weeks 17:19 89:3 weigh 30:15 70:5 welcomed 77:3 welfare 74:1 wellness 62:1 63:11,15 66:18 Westside 47:7 we'd 88:2 we're 7:18 We've 60:24 whatsoever 73:14 white 2:1 5:6,18 11:7,9 12:3,4, 19,22 13:2 14:6,19 20:19 31:1,6,10 34:3 41:12 61:2 69:4 81:8 88:6 89:14,15 90:2 97:23 102:17 Whitley 12:17 whoever's 87:23 wholly 72:4 wide 46:17 wife 94:10 WIHN 65:13 William 9:20 28:11 100:12 Williams 66:5 92:3 Willie 7:21 9:15 98:7 100:12 Willy 97:2,22 Wilson 49:5,15 56:7 59:21 60:9 win 96:10 window 19:9 winter 26:10 wisdom 7:9 95:25



100:24 101:17,20,22,23

youth 50:17 51:1,2 100:22

Ζ

**zoom** 2:4,7,8,11,19 3:16 4:10

5:7 6:6,23 18:12 37:16,17

younger 54:12,14

You're 68:13

66:20

zoom's 2:16 4:18

**zoom.us.** 2:4

**young** 26:7 48:3 50:21 51:5,11 53:21 54:8 57:3,10 60:17,22

witnesses 37:25

woman 83:4

women 8:1 101:17

wonderful 94:15 101:13

wondering 22:18 59:20

worded 19:7

words 95:25

work 5:14 9:21 10:5 13:19 14:22 20:19 27:21 29:25 33:14 38:21 49:25 53:7 54:4 58:14 59:13 60:16 66:13 69:17 75:16,17 77:17,23 94:19 100:7

worked 5:12 8:8 13:21 79:12, 19,23 85:18

workers 65:15

workgroup 71:9,18

**working** 8:17 16:8 17:25 28:21 41:1 54:19 55:5 56:11 62:9 68:19,20 75:25 93:11

works 31:17 54:17,18 77:12

world 6:19 101:14

worn 93:8 104:8

worthwhile 60:15

write 101:17

writing 20:7 87:15

written 70:22

wrong 73:11 76:19 83:11

wrote 101:19

#### Y

**year** 16:17,18,20,21,22,24,25 17:1,2,4,10 34:7,23 52:25 53:2 66:15

years 50:22 52:17 74:12 78:11 81:18 86:18 95:20 96:12

yesterday 18:15,18 105:11,15

